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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slaag

December 31,
June 30, 2014 2013

(Unaudited) (1)

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 73,87 $ 77,62¢
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior 230,46! 89,68

Senior intere-only 220,13: 229,06!

Subordinate( 485,54 457,56¢

Subordinated intere-only 15,60¢ 16,57:
Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Pas-through 7,976,92. 1,954,791

Interes-only 38,627 42,78
Receivable for investments sc - 253,54:
Accrued interest receivab 31,10¢ 15,82
Other assets (includes Due from FIDAC of $2 milleomd $0, respectivel 82,18: 8,297
Derivatives, at fair value, n - 8,09

Subtotal 9,154,45 3,153,85.
Assets of Consolidated VIEs

Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabterigst entities ("VIES"), at fair val 2,682,30: 2,981,57.

Securitized loans held for investment, net of allaee for loan losses of $9 million, respectiv 714,47: 783,48

Accrued interest receivab 14,68 17,17:

Subtotal 3,411,46! 3,782,22.
Total asset $ 12,56591 $ 6,936,08
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RMBS ($6.1 billion and BilliGn pledged as collateral, respective $ 5,564,55 $ 1,658,56
Payable for investments purcha: 2,030,12 -
Accrued interest payab 9,01¢ 1,39
Dividends payabli 92,45t 297,90:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 1,094 1,861
Investment management fees and expenses payaiffdiabe 6,28( 5,65¢
Derivatives, at fair valu 25,32¢ 30,19¢

Subtotal 7,728,85. 1,995,58!
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs

Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBR.7 billion and $3.0 billion pledged as coltaie

respectively’ 787,16. 933,73:

Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestment ($703 million and $763 million pledged a

collateral, respectively 604,65! 669,98:

Accrued interest payab 4,54~ 5,27¢

Subtotal 1,396,36. 1,608,99:
Total liabilities $ 9,125,211 $ 3,604,57.

Commitments and Contingencies (See Note

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1000000shares authorized, 0 shares issued and alitgjan

respectively $ - $ =
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,5000000hares authorized, 1,027,534,449 and 1,022826,

shares issued and

outstanding, respective 10,27: 10,27:
Additional paic-in-capital 3,605,35! 3,605,24.
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 1,079,64 990,80:
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,254,571 (1,274,800
Total stockholders' equi $ 3,440,700 $ 3,331,51
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 1256591 $ 6,936,08

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finanstatements.
See accompanying notes to consolidated financtsients.






CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

(unaudited’
For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30, 201

Net Interest Income:
Interest incom: $ 49,05¢ $ 33,62¢ $ 84,51: $ 62,69¢
Interest expens (3,504 (1,629 (5,230 (3,462
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 85,26: 93,93¢ 170,47 190,66:
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (17,176 (24,987 (37,879 (51,979
Net interest income (expens 113,63t 100,95¢ 211,88 197,92(
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (3,817 - (4,217) -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerine (loss (1,539 - (2,669 (6,169
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (5,349 - (6,887 (6,163
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (22,49)) 13,17¢ (24,699 18,58(
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (19,79 (5,399 (25,540 (10,927
Net gains (losses) on derivative (42,289 7,78 (50,23%) 7,65¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 5,791 (12,97¢) 20,80: (13,98)
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn (4,339 54,117 4,03¢ 54,12
Gain on deconsolidatic 47,84¢ - 47,84¢ -
Loss on Extinguishment of De - - (2,189 -
Total other gains (losse 7,00¢ 48,93( 20,26¢ 47,79¢
Net investment income (los 115,30( 149,88: 225,26! 239,55:.
Other expenses
Management fee 6,271 6,49¢ 12,49: 12,94
Expense recoveries from Manai (2,164) (3,315 (2,845) (5,170
Net management fe: 4,107 3,18 9,641 7,771
Provision for loan losses, n 214 (1,709 538 (1,279
General and administrative expen 6,21( 5,19 9,94¢ 10,04+«
Total other expense 10,53: 6,67 20,12¢ 16,54:
Income (loss) before income taxe 104,76¢ 143,20° 205,13¢ 223,01(
Income taxe: - - 2 2
Net income (loss $ 104,76¢ $ 143,200 $ 205,13° $ 223,00t
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic $ 0.1C $ 014 $ 0.2C $ 0.22
Diluted $ 0.1C $ 0.1¢ $ 0.2C $ 0.22
Weighted average number of common shares outstandjn
Basic 1,027,208,94 1,027,066,04 1,027,235,63 1,027,052,34
Diluted 1,027,534,44 1,027,593,44 1,027,561,45 1,027,594,47
Dividends declared per share of common stoc $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢ $ 0.1t $ 0.1¢
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 104,76¢ $ 143,200 $ 205,13 $ 223,00t
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on availi-for-sale securities, ni 100,64 (22,587) 138,15( 95,01
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includetket income (loss) for
other-than-

temporary credit impairment loss 5,343 - 6,881 6,16
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggems) included in net
income (loss 37 (54,11 (8,340 (54,129
Reclassification adjustment for gain on deconstitidaincluded in net
income (47,846 - (47,846 -
Other comprehensive income (lo 58,18¢ (76,699 88,84 47,05:
Comprehensive income (los $ 162,95 $ 66,50¢ $ 293,98: $ 270,06(




See accompanying notes to consolidated financsrsients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Accumulated
Other

Retained
Earnings

Common Stoc  Additional Comprehensiv  (Accumulated
Par Value Paic-in Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,604,55 $ 989,93t $ (1,062,27) $ 3,542,47
Net income - - - 223,00¢ 223,00¢
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleisges,
net - - 95,01 - 95,01
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includatkt

income (loss) for other-thaemporary credit impairmel

losses - - 6,162 - 6,162
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggems)

included in net income (los - - (54,129 - (54,127
Proceeds from restricted stock grs 3 16C - - 163
Common dividends declared, $0.18 per sl - - - (184,869 (184,869
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,27 $ 3,604,71. $ 1,036,98 $ (1,024,14) $ 3,627,83.
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,27 $ 3,60524. $ 990,80: $ (1,274,80) $ 3,331,51
Net income - - - 205,13 205,13
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-saleisges,
net - - 138,15( - 138,15(
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includeatkt
income

(loss) for othe-thar- temporary credit impairment loss - - 6,881 - 6,881
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggems)

included in net income (los - - (8,340 - (8,340
Reclassification adjustment for gain on deconstibda

included in net incom - - (47,84¢) - (47,846
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 1 117 - - 11¢€
Common dividends declared, $0.18 per sl - - - (184,909 (184,909
Balance, June 30, 20: $ 10,27 $ 3,605,350 $ 1,079,64i $ (1,254,57) $ 3,440,70.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financtgsients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousand:

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 205,13 $ 223,00t
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountefpiums, ne (39,92) (40,607)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 1,17 3,85(
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetaipremiums, ne 5,064 4,75%
Net unrealized losses (gains) on derivati 24,69t (18,580
Net realized losses (gains) on option contractiesk 1,24¢ -
Proceeds (payments) for derivative sales and sedties 5,471 -
Margin (paid) received on derivativ (99,81) -
Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS (20,80)) 13,981
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (4,03¢) (54,129
Gain on deconsolidatic (47,84¢) -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 6,881 6,162
Loss on extinguishment of securitized d 2,18¢ -
Provision for loan losses, n 53& (1,279
Equity-based compensation expe! 11€ 163
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivabét (10,17¢ 1,79¢

Decrease (increase) in other as: (2,420 67t
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and ddbdities (767) 1,12¢

Increase (decrease) in investment managementridesx@enses payable to affili 622 (1,877

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payahil 6,88¢ (3,00€)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 34,23 $ 136,05:
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Agency RMBS portfolio

Purchase $ (4,333,38) $ (934,68)

Sales 578,84 285,69¢

Principal payment 121,10( 300,18
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio

Purchase (188,779 (174,66))

Sales 49,44¢ 143,86«

Principal payment 16,921 3,328
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI

Sales 212,39: -

Principal payment 141,32: 230,94
Securitized loans held for investme

Principal payment 67,42 367,76!
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ (3,334,70) $ 222,43t
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 880523 $ 3,633,224

Payments on repurchase agreem (4,899,23) (3,683,13)

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaiezdlby loans held for investme (65,545 (363,45)

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, colléized by Nor-Agency RMBS (97,302) (213,29))

Repurchase of securitized debt borrowings, cobiditead by No-Agency RMBS (56,072 -

Common dividends pai (390,359 (184,869
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ 3,296,71 (811,49)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (3,75%) (453,001)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 77,62¢ 621,15:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 7387, % 168,15:.
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest receive $ 202,26 $ 214,55:

Interest paic $ 29,97¢ $ 49,84¢

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 11,87C $ 14,82«
Non-cash investing activities;

Payable for investments purcha: $ 2,030,120 $ -

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ 88,84f $ 47,052




Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p $ 92,45¢ $ 92,43¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financssients.




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Comgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial jprbffering. The Company elected to be taxed ssahestate investment tru“REIT”) under
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendedeguthtions promulgated thereunder (the “Codele Tompany formed the following
wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiaries: Chim&ecurities Holdings, LLC in July 2008; Chimera Addelding LLC and Chimera Holding
LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Special Holding LibGQanuary 2010 which is a wholly-owned subsididrglaimera Asset Holding LLC. In
July 2010, the Company formed CIM Trading Compah¢ | a wholly-owned taxable REIT subsidiary (“TRS'In October 2013, the Company
formed Chimera Funding TRS LLC, which is a whollred TRS.

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apxmately 4.4% of the Company’s common sharese Chmpany is managed by Fixed
Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC”), an irstenent advisor registered with the Securities axchBEnge Commission
(“SEC”). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepasagordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StAt@&AAP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustms considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positi@suits of operations and cash flows have beendedlu These statements should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial statamseand notes thereto included in the Annual Remoform 10-K for the year ended December
31, 2013. Certain prior year amounts have bedagsified to conform to the current year’s presgéota

The consolidated financial statements include, oarsolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, and
variable interest entities (“VIES”) in which the @pany is the primary beneficiary. All significamtércompany balances and transactions have
been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaattransactions. VIEs are defined as entities in
which equity investors (i) do not have the chanasties of a controlling financial interest, and(@)y do not have sufficient equity at risk for the
entity to finance its activities without additioreibordinated financial support from other partidee entity that consolidates a VIE is known a
primary beneficiary, and is generally the entityhn{i) the power to direct the activities that megmificantly impact the VIES’ economic
performance, and (ii) the right to receive bendfitsn the VIE or the obligation to absorb losseshef VIE that could be significant to the

VIE. For VIEs that do not have substantial on gadctivities, the power to direct the activitieattmost significantly impact the VIES' economic
performance may be determined by an entity’s inmwlgnt with the design and structure of the VIE.

The trusts are structured as pass through erfiééseceive principal and interest on the undegydollateral and distribute those payments to the
certificate holders. The assets held by the sézation entities are restricted in that they calyde used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lintit® its risks and rights as a certificate holder
of the bonds it has retained. There have beeecent changes to the nature of risks associatédtldtCompany’s involvement with VIEs.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determinad fitr the securitizations it consolidates,
its ownership of substantially all subordinate iagts provided the Company with the obligationtisaib losses and/or the right to receive ber
from the VIE that could be significant to the VI addition, the Company is considered to haveptheer to direct the activities of the VIEs that
most significantly impact the VIES’ economic perfance (“power”) or the Company was determined t@h@wer in connection with its
involvement with the purpose and design of the VIE.




The Company’s interest in the assets held by thesaritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provigmf these entities, and a recovery of the Conipanyestment in the vehicles will be limited by
each entity’s distribution provisions. The liabé# of the securitization vehicles, which are agnsolidated on the Company’s Statements of
Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the Compand can generally only be satisfied from eacluistzation vehicle’s respective asset pool.

The securitization entities are comprised of sediasses of residential mortgage backed secuif®ldBS”) and jumbo, prime, residential
mortgage loans. See Notes 3, 4 and 8 for furtlseudsion of the characteristics of the securdies loans in the Company’s portfolio.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation

The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@naldition separately present: (i) the Comparditect assets and liabilities, and (ii) the &
and liabilities of consolidated securitization v&@bs. Assets of each consolidated VIE can onlydsel to satisfy the obligations of that VIE, and
the liabilities of consolidated VIEs are non-re@mito the Company. The Company is not obligatgutdwide, nor has it provided, any financial
support to these consolidated securitization vehicl

The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbof the consolidated securitization vehidies to the determination that these entities are
substantively similar and therefore a further digagated presentation would not be more meaninghd.notes to the consolidated financial
statements describe the Company’s direct assetiadildies and the assets and liabilities of adidated securitization vehicles. See Note 8 for
additional information related to the Company’sdsiments in consolidated securitization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handaahddeposited overnight in money market fundschvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser€orporation. There were no restrictions on eashcash equivalents at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Badd Securities

The Company invests in RMBS representing inteliestbligations backed by pools of mortgage loafke Company delineates between Agency
RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS as follows: Agency RMBS8 arortgage pass-through certificates, collaterdlinertgage obligations (“CMOs”),
and other RMBS representing interests in or olkibigatbacked by pools of mortgage loans issued aragiieed by agencies of the U.S.
Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or federally chedteorporations such as Freddie Mac or Fanniewtae principal and interest repayments
are guaranteed by the respective agency of theGbh®rnment or federally chartered corporation ndgency RMBS are not issued or
guaranteed by a U.S. Government Agency or othétutien and are subject to credit risk. Repaynwrgrincipal and interest on Non-Agency
RMBS is subject to the performance of the mortdagas or RMBS collateralizing the obligation.

The Company classifies its RMBS as available-foe;s@cords investments at estimated fair valugeasribed in Note 5 of these consolidated
financial statements, and includes unrealized gamaslosses considered to be temporary on all RMRB8uding interest-only (“IO”) strips, in
Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consa@iti&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive i¢boss). 10 strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss). From time to time, as part of therall management of its portfolio, the Company rea@y any of its RMBS investments and
recognize a realized gain or loss as a componegaroings in the Consolidated Statements of Opermtind Comprehensive Income (Loss)
utilizing the average cost method.

The Company’s accounting policy for interest inccane impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition




The recognition of interest income on RMBS secesitiaries depending on the characteristics ofeberity as follows:
Agency RMBS and No-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“ FASBAccounting Standards Codification (“* ASC”) 310;2bnrefundable Fees and Other Cc
(“ASC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénést income for the following securities:

° Agency RMBS
° Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condits at the acquisition date (referred to hereafiéNonAgency RMB¢
of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized drealiing agency. The Company uses the lowestgaiailable

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid shelh the Company would not recover substantiallyohits recorde
investment

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premsuand discounts associated with the acquisitidhexfe securities, is recognized over the
life of such securities using the interest methasdd on the contractual cash flows of the securityapplying the interest method, the Company
considers estimates of future principal prepaymigntise calculation of the constant effective yidhifferences that arise between previously
anticipated prepayments and actual prepayments/egbes well as changes in future prepayment ggsons, result in a recalculation of the
effective yield on the security on a quarterly ba%his recalculation results in the recognitioranfadjustment to the carrying amount of the
security based on the revised prepayment assurspimha corresponding increase or decrease inteedaterest income.

Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount lzeuckire not of high credit quality at the time afghase are accounted for under ASC
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality(*“ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4Beneficial Interests in Securitized
Financial Asset(“ASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Nonr-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3beffollowing conditions are met as of the acqigsidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unabledtiect all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atttwplisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definesirated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otiesgettled in such a way that the Company woutdr@xover substantially all of
recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gr&liality is recognized using the interest methaded on management'’s estimates of
cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based on rearag’s estimate for each security of the
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabsearvation of current market information and idel@ssumptions related to fluctuations in
prepayment speeds and the timing and amount oit tosdes. Quarterly, the Company reviews andpjifrapriate, makes adjustments to its cash
flow projections based on inputs and analyses veddrom external sources, internal models, andCibmpany’s judgments about prepayment
rates, the timing and amount of credit losses,ahdr factors. Changes in the amount and/or timfngash flows from those originally projected,
or from those estimated at the last evaluation, deeconsidered to be either positive changes\arae changes. For securities accounted for
under ASC 325-40, any positive or adverse changash flows that does not result in the recognitiban other-than-temporary impairment
("OTTI") results in a prospective increase or desein the effective interest rate used to recegnizrest income. For securities accounted for
under ASC 310-30, only significant positive changesreflected prospectively in the effective ipt#rate used to recognize interest

income. Adverse changes in cash flows expectbég wllected are generally treated consistenthRMIBS accounted for under ASC 325-40 and
ASC 310-30, and generally result in recognitiomefOTTI with no change in the effective intere$é nased to recognize interest income.




Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost the security isidensd impaired. On at least a quarterly basis
the Company evaluates its securities for OTTIthéf Company intends to sell an impaired securityt, is more-likely-than-not that the Company
will be required to sell an impaired security befds anticipated recovery, then the Company maignize an OTTI through a charge to earr
equal to the entire difference between the investte@amortized cost and its fair value at the measentaate. If the Company does not inter
sell an impaired security and it is not more-likéhan-not that it would be required to sell an ifnga@ security before recovery, the Company must
further evaluate the security for impairment dueredit losses. The credit component of OTTI i®geized in earnings and the remaining or non-
credit component is recorded as a component ofr@tiraprehensive income (loss) (“OCI”). Followingettecognition of an OTTI through
earnings, a new amortized cost basis is establihigtle security and subsequent recoveries invedire may not be adjusted through earnings.

When evaluating whether the Company intends tcaseilinpaired security or will more-likely-than-rnw required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company makes judgments tretider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent andtgld hold the investments that are deemed inguhirThe determination as to whether an OTTI
exists is subjective as such determinations aredbas factual information available at the timeas$essment as well as the Company’s estimates
of future conditions. As a result, the determimatbf OTTI and its timing and amount is based dimeges that may change materially over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewha tinderlying securities or mortgage loans
securing the RMBS. The Company considers histoinfarmation available and expected future perfante of the underlying securities or
mortgage loans, including timing of expected futcash flows, prepayment rates, default rates,dessrities, delinquency rates, percentage of
non-performing loans, extent of credit support Ede, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FICO”) scores ari@rigination, year of origination, loan-to-
value ratios, geographic concentrations, as walkkpsrts by credit rating agencies, such as Mookhyestors Service, Inc., Standard & Poor’s
Rating Services or Fitch Ratings, Inc., generalketeassessments and dialogue with market partitipaks a result, substantial judgment is used
in the Company’s analysis to determine the expecast flows for its RMBS.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of Higredit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHEredit Quality involves comparing the presentgaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized codtekecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value of the
expected future cash flows is based on the se@&ugffective interest rate as calculated under 83Q-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in the
security as of the last measurement date). Iptesent value of the remaining cash flows expeittdet collected is less than the amortized cost
basis, an OTTI is recognized in earnings for tHieince. This amount is considered to be the thesls component; the remaining difference
between amortized cost and the fair value of tlcer#ty is considered to be the portion of loss ggiped in other comprehensive income (loss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eagsrfor the credit loss component, a new amortizest lsasis is established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not beséeljLthrough earnings.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Nothifgh Credit Quality
Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily inguhwhen the following two

conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less thiaa &amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwaise change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e e@vchanges in either the amount or timing of das¥s from those previously expected).




The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compotiettis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ Irecognized in other comprehensive inc
(loss). The credit component is comprised of thgaat of the fair value decline due to changes suiaptions related to default (collection) risk
and prepayments. The portion of loss recognizedtier comprehensive income (loss) comprises thegeha fair value of the security due to all
other factors, including changes in benchmark @éstierates and market liquidity. In determining @iETI related to credit losses for securities,
Company compares the present value of the remaazisly flows adjusted for prepayments expected tmbected at the current financial
reporting date to the present value of the remgioash flows expected to be collected at the axlginrchase date (or the last date those estir
were revised for accounting purposes). The discaia used to calculate the present value of eggdature cash flows is the effective interest
rate used for income recognition purposes as detechunder ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eagsrfor the credit component, a new amortized casistis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not beséeljLthrough earnings. However, to the extentttieat are subsequent increases in cash flows
expected to be collected, the OTTI previously rdedrthrough earnings may be accreted into int@restme following the guidance in ASC 325-
40 or ASC 310-30.

The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is sultfestgnificant judgment and management’s
estimates of both historical information availaatehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s estimates of
the future performance and projected amount aniagirof cash flows expected to be collected on #dwaisty. As a result, the timing and amount
of OTTI constitutes an accounting estimate that ofenge materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in 10 Agency and Non-Agency FBips (“IO RMBS strips”). 10 RMBS strips regent the Compang’right to receiv
a specified proportion of the contractual inteflest's of the collateral. The Company has accoufiedO RMBS strips at fair value with changes
in fair value recognized in the Company’s ConsdédaStatements of Operations and Comprehensivenag¢hoss). The Company has elected
the fair value option to account for IO RMBS stripssimplify the reporting of changes in fair valu€he 10 RMBS strips are included in RMBS,
at fair value, on the accompanying ConsolidatetkStants of Financial Condition. Interest incomd®@rRMBS strips is accrued based on the
outstanding notional balance and the security’srectual terms, and amortization of any premiundiecount is calculated in accordance with
ASC 325-40. Changes in fair value are present&teirunrealized gains (losses) on interest-only RMB3$he Consolidated Statement of
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). leclud Non-Agency RMBS transferred to VIEs, at faifue on the Consolidated Statements
of Financial Condition are 10 RMBS strips carrigdair value with changes in fair value reflectecearnings of $12 million as of June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013. Interest income reportd@aecurities was $8 million and $7 million foetquarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Interest income reported on 10 séesrwas $18 million and $10 million for the sionths ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relad Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedaae comprised of fixed-rate and variable-rategoaMortgage loans are designated as held
for investment, and are carried at their principglance outstanding, plus any premiums, less digs@nd allowances for loan losses. Interest
income on loans held for investment is recognizezt the expected life of the loans using the irteneethod. Nonrefundable fees and costs
related to acquiring the Company’s securitizeddesiial mortgage loans are recognized as expenseshe life of the associated debt using the
interest method of amortization. Income recognii®suspended for loans when, based on informé&tion the servicer, a full recovery of inter
or principal becomes doubtful. The Company eses#te fair value of securitized loans for disctequurposes only as described in Note 5 of
these consolidated financial statements.

(9) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loanséid for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prirhadf hon-conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbdnge loans that are not guarant
as to repayment of principal or interest. Seaegdiloans are serviced and modified by a thirdypsetvicer. The Company generally has the
ability to approve certain loan maodifications arededmine the course of action to be taken asateslto certain loans in technical default,
including whether or not to proceed with foreclasur




The Company’s general reserve is based on histdoesrates for pools of loans with similar credharacteristics, adjusted for current trends and
market conditions, including current trends in dgliencies and severities.

The Company has established a specific reservedfiatts consideration of loans more than 60 dkymquent, loans in foreclosure and
borrowers that have declared bankruptcy. The loss provision related to these loans is measisehleadifference between the unpaid principal
balance and the estimated fair value of the prggeturing the mortgage, less estimated costdlto™ee specific reserve also reflects
consideration of concessions granted to borrowgthd servicer in the form of modifications (i.eeductions). Loan loss provisions related to
these modifications are based on the contractiradipal and interest payments, post-modificatidagdunted at the loan’s original effective
interest rate. Loans with specific reserves adevidually evaluated for impairment. Loan modificeas made by the servicer are evaluated to
determine if they constitute troubled debt restitings (“TDRS”). A restructuring of a loan constitutes a TDR if Hsvicer, for economic or leg
reasons related to the borrower's financial diffies, grants a concession to the borrower thabiild not otherwise consider. Impairment of
modified loans considered to be TDRs is measureddan the present value of expected cash flowsuliged at the loan’s effective interest rate
at inception. If the present value of expected dsirs is less than the recorded investment irldbhe, an allowance for loan losses is recognized
with a corresponding charge to the provision famnldosses. Impairment of all other loans indivitluaelaluated is measured as the difference
between the unpaid principal balance and the etarfair value of the collateral, less estimatesteto sell. The Company charges off the
corresponding loan allowance and related prindijpdédnce when the servicer reports a realized Fossmplete discussion of securitized loans
held for investment is included in Note 4 to thesasolidated financial statements.

(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifiggortion of its Agency mortgadeacked securities with repurchase agreements. dhepany
has evaluated each agreement and has determinezhtteof the repurchase agreements be accoumted $ecured borrowings. None of the
Company’s repurchase agreements are accounted émngponents of linked transactions. As a redt@Qompany separately accounts for the
financial assets posted as collateral and relaedrchase agreements in the accompanying consaliflatncial statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans Hi for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmartion of its residential mortgage loan and RM®®&folios. Certain transactions involving
residential mortgage loans are accounted for agsgdorrowings, and are recorded as Securitizaaslbeld for investment and the
corresponding debt as Securitized debt, collaterdlby loans held for investment in the Consolidi&&tements of Financial Condition. These
securitizations are collateralized by residentiflistable or fixed rate mortgage loans that haemlpgaced in a trust and pay interest and principal
to the debt holders of that securitization. Redsiéization transactions classified as Securitidebt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBS reflect
the transfer to a trust of fixed or adjustable RBS which are classified as Non-Agency RMBS tfamred to consolidated VIEs that pay

interest and principal to the debt holders of teagecuritization. Re-securitization transactioosipleted by the Company that did not qualify as
sales are accounted for as secured borrowings.a3duxiated securitized debt is carried at amortipst. The Company estimates the fair valt

its securitized debt for disclosure purposes asridesl in Note 5 to these consolidated financialeshents.

(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5 to
these consolidated financial statements.
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(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s investment policies permit it to eimé& derivative contracts, including interesieratvaps, interest rate caps, options, and futures
as a means of managing its interest rate risk dsas/éo0 enhance investment returns. The Compaterivatives are recorded as either assets or
liabilities in the Consolidated Statements of FiziahCondition and measured at fair valu€hese derivative financial instrument contractsramt
designated as hedges for GAAP; therefore, all cbsimgfair value are recognized in earnings. Thmpany estimates the fair value of its
derivative instruments as described in Note 5 e$¢hconsolidated financial statements. Net paysr@nterivative instruments are included in
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows as a compofast income (loss). Unrealized gains (lossesjlerivatives are removed from net

income (loss) to arrive at cash flows from opegattivities.

The Company elects to net by counterparty theviine of its derivative contracts when appropriafbese contracts contain legally enforceable
provisions that allow for netting or setting offalf individual swaps receivables and payables wé#bh counterparty and, therefore, the fair value
of those swap contracts are reported net by cquentigt The credit support annex provisions of@loenpany’s interest rate swap contracts allow
the parties to mitigate their credit risk by requirthe party which is in a net payable positioptst collateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swaptiacts, it also nets by counterparty any caslateshl exchanged as part of the interest rate sway
contracts.

(I) Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionghich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on sales
of assets are calculated using the average cobbthethereby the Company records a gain or losk@udifference between the average amor
cost of the asset and the proceeds from the salkeddition, the Company from time to time secmé$ or re-securitizes assets and sells tranches i
the newly securitized assets. These transactiayshe recorded as either sales and the asset#hotedto the securitization are removed from
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condéioth a gain or loss is recognized, or as securedwimgs whereby the assets contributed to the
securitization are not derecognized but rathed#i# issued by the securitization entity are reedro reflect the term financing of the assets. In
these securitizations and re-securitizations, the@any may retain senior or subordinated inteiadtse securitized and/or re-securitized assets.

(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIThaéenldis to comply with the provision of the Codehwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state galoancome tax to the extent that qualifying dmtitions are made to stockholders and as long as
certain asset, income, distribution and stock oslmprtests are met. If the Company failed to qualg a REIT and did not qualify for certain
statutory relief provisions, the Company would bbjsct to federal, state and local income taxesmaayl be precluded from qualifying as a REIT
for the subsequent four taxable years followingytaar in which the REIT qualification was lost. TBempany, CIM Trading and CIM Funding
TRS made joint elections to treat CIM Trading aniflGunding TRS as TRS’s. As such, CIM Trading anM@&unding TRS are taxable as
domestic C corporations and subject to federate séand local income taxes based upon their reispeeixable income.

A tax position is recognized only when, based onagament’s judgment regarding the application obine tax laws, it is more likely than not
that the tax position will be sustained upon exatiim. The Company does not have any unrecogmizebenefits that would affect its financial
position or require disclosure. No accruals fangdées and interest were necessary as of Jur2034d,or December 31, 2013.

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per slyadéviding net income for the period by the baskighted-average shares of its common

stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netoime per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments such as unvested restricted
stock.
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(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&f8iates at the fair value of the
stock-based compensation provided. The Compangunesithe fair value of the equity instrument ushegstock prices and other measurement
assumptions as of the earlier of either the datehath a performance commitment by the recipieme&ched or the date at which the recipient’s
performance is complete. Stock compensation expetested to the grants of stock is recognized tivervesting period of such grants based on
the fair value of the stock on each quarterly vestlate, at which the recipient’s performance mpiete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards gremthe Company’s independent directors is re@eghpro-rata over the vesting period of
such awards, based upon the fair value of suchdsnairthe grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conféymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatelsassumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosu@afingent assets and liabilities at the datdeffinancial statements and the reported amounts o
revenues and expenses during the reporting pekidtbugh the Company’s estimates contemplate cticenditions and how it expects them to
change in the future, it is reasonably possibléadbtual conditions could be materially differémam anticipated in those estimates, which could
have a material adverse impact on the Companylstsesf operations and its financial condition. Mgement has made significant estimates in
accounting for income recognition and OTTI on Ageaad Non-Agency RMBS and 10 RMBS (Note 3), valoatof Agency and Non-Agency
RMBS (Notes 3 and 5), and derivative instrumentst¢d 5 and 9). Actual results could differ matlrifrom those estimates.

(g) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Broad Transactions

Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt®di6-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R®&tlassification of Residential Real Estate Cotldtzed Consumer Mortgage Loans Upon
Foreclosure. This update clarifies when the Company is carsid to have obtained physical possession, froin-anbstance possession or
foreclosure, of a residential real estate propestiateralizing a mortgage loan. Current guidaincicates that the Company should reclassify a
collateralized mortgage loan such that the loamlshbe derecognized and the collateral asset réoedjavhen it determines that there has been ar
in-substance repossession or foreclosure by thep@oyn This update defines the teérmsubstance repossession or foreclogoreeduce diversit

in interpretation of when such an event occurse ghidance in this update is effective for the Canypbeginning January 1, 2015. The Comj

is evaluating the impact of this update.

Transfers and Servicing (Subtopic 860)

In June 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014Rdpurchase-to-Maturity Transactions, Repurchasafaings, and DisclosuresThis update
makes limited amendments to the guidance in ASCoB6ccounting for certain repurchase agreemertts. ASU requires entities to account for
repurchase-to-maturity transactions as secure@dWworgs, rather than as sales with forward repurela@seements. The ASU defines a
repurchase-to-maturity transaction as a repo fl)aditles at the maturity of the transferred foiahasset and (2) does not require the transteror
reacquire the transferred financial asset. Initiaag the ASU eliminates accounting guidance okeid repurchase financing transactions. The
ASU also expands disclosure requirements relatedrtain transfers of financial assets that areatted for as sales and certain transfers
accounted for as secured borrowings. The guidemites update will be effective for the Companygiming January 1, 2015, except for the
disclosure requirements for transactions accouioteals secured borrowings, which are required tpresented by the Company in the second
quarter of 2015. As of June 30, 2014 and Decer®dbg?013, the Company does not have any repurdbaseturity transactions or any linked
repurchase financing transactions, therefore, thag2iny expects that this standard will impact dsates only and will not have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statementh®fCompany.
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3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as sesinior 10, subordinated, subordinated 10, and-Ngency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs. The Company also invests innfkgeRMBS. Senior interests in Non-Agency RMBS @vasidered to be entitled to the first
principal repayments in their pro-rata ownershigiiests at the reporting date. The total fair @afithe Non-Agency RMBS that are held by
consolidated re-securitization trusts was $2.7duiland $3.0 billion at June 30, 2014 and Decer8tieR013, respectively. See Note 8 of these
consolidated financial statements for further diséon of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or notibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains, gross
unrealized losses, and net unrealized gain (lesaded to the Company’s available-for-sale RMBSfpbo as of June 30, 2014 and December 31,

2013, by asset class.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand
Principal or Gross Gross Net
Notional Total Total Amortized Fair Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium  Discount Cost Value Gains Losses  Gain/(Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 317,54 $ - $ (9931) $ 218,231 $ 230,46! $ 1225! $ 17 $ 12,23
Senior intere-only 5,605,32. 252,85: - 252,85: 220,13: 14,73¢ (47,459 (32,720
Subordinate( 807,22: - (465,55() 341,67: 485,54 144,53 (662) 143,87
Subordinated intere-only 266,76t 13,36¢ - 13,36¢ 15,60¢ 2,717 (472) 2,24¢
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: 3,471,22, 6,98¢ (1,568,42) 1,834,49; 2,682,30! 847,81t - 847,81t
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 7,522,10. 374,28¢ - 7,896,39: 7,976,92. 103,00( (22,469 80,53:
Interes-only 219,30: 41,27 - 41,27 38,62% 32¢ (2,979 (2,646
Total $18,209,48 $688,76t $(2,133,29) $10,598,27 $11,649,60 $1,125,38( $ (74,059 $1,051,33

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand

Principal or Gross Gross Net
Notional Total Total Amortized Fair Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Value Premium  Discount Cost Value Gains Losses  Gain/(Loss
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 12821 $ - $ (39,39H $ 8882 $ 8968 $ 974 $ (209 $ 86&
Senior intere-only 5,742,78 283,27: - 283,27: 229,06! 11,80: (66,009) (54,20¢)
Subordinate( 830,63: - (490,400 340,23: 457,56¢ 119,23: (1,89¢) 117,33
Subordinated intere-only 274,46:. 14,66¢ - 14,66¢ 16,57: 2,48: (57¢) 1,90¢
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: 3,912,371 7,49C (1,763,40) 2,075,620 2,981,57. 905,94 - 905,94.
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 1,898,13 90,84: (5,0049) 1,983,971 1,954,79 22,32( (51,49¢) (29,17¢)
Interes-only 247,34« 43,76¢ - 43,76¢ 42,78 332 (1,316 (984
Total $13,033,94 $440,03¢ $(2,298,20) $4,830,35 $5,772,04 $1,063,08 $ (121,40) $ 941,68!

The table below presents changes in AccretabladY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgaeto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30, 201

(dollars in thousand: (dollars in thousandk
Balance at beginning of peri $ 1,72647 $ 2,014,78 $ 1,79457 $ 2,107,38
Purchase 15,27¢ - 39,56¢ -
Accretion (73,169 (82,995 (150,449 (168,93()
Reclassification (to) from ne-accretable differenc 53,35¢ 18,29 39,37¢ 11,66
Sales and deconsolidati (91,789 (28,409 (92,919 (28,439
Balance at end of peric $ 1630,15. $ 192168 $ 1,630,15 $ 1,921,68

The table below presents the outstanding prinddpkince and related amortized cost at June 30, &@d.December 31, 2013 as it pertains to the
Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted focarding to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter For the Year
Ended Ended
December 31,
June 30, 201 2013



(dollars in thousand

Outstanding principal balanc
Beginning of perioc
End of perioc

Amortized cost
Beginning of perioc
End of perioc

3,936,901 $ 4,508,47
3,664,54. $ 3,949,66.

2,043,071 $ 2,268,75
1,891,87. $ 2,027,73
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The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the Company’s RMBlength of time that such securities
have been in a continuous unrealized loss positidtune 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013. All s@esiin an unrealized loss position have been
evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discussedoite 12(d).

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Less Unrealized Loss Position for 12

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealizec Number oi Estimated Unrealizec Number o0 Estimated Unrealizec Number of
Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value  Losses  Securities

Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 1353 $ (17) 1 $ - % - - $ 1353 $ (19 1

Senior intere-only 46,481 (7,236 39 93,96 (40,229 43 140,44¢ (47,459 82

Subordinatec - - - 11,39¢ (662) 3 11,39¢ (662) 3

Subordinated intere-only 1,291 (472) 3 - - - 1,291 (472) 3

RMBS transferred to

consolidated VIE! - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS

Pas-through 212,68( (87) 3 738,34t (22,387 14 951,02¢ (22,469 17

Interes-only 23,68 (1,099 3 10,89¢ (1,876) 3 34,57¢ (2,975 6
Total $297,66¢( $ (8,91)) 48 $854,60° $ (65,149 63 $1,152,27! $(74,052) 112

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Less Unrealized Loss Position for 12

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimated Unrealizec Number o0 Estimated Unrealizec Number o Estimated Unrealizec Number o
Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value  Losses  Securities

Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ 28,16 $ (109 3 3 - $ = - $ 28,16: $ (109 3

Senior intere-only 119,91¢ (35,25) 54 45,16" (30,75¢) 28 165,08( (66,009 82

Subordinatet - - - 17,66: (1,896 2 17,66 (1,896 2

Subordinated intere-only 1,06z (57¢) 2 - - - 1,06z (57¢) 2

RMBS transferred to

consolidated VIE: - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS

Pas-through 1,126,88 (51,499 3C - - - 1,126,88 (51,499 3C

Interes-only 22,24¢ (1,019 4 491 (296) 3 22,73% (1,316) 7
Total $1,298,26! $ (88,45)) 93 $ 63,31¢ $ (32,950 33 $1,361,58 $(121,40) 12¢€

At June 30, 2014, the Company did not intend tbassf of its RMBS that were in an unrealized lossifion, and it was not more likely than not
that the Company would be required to sell theseBBMefore recovery of their amortized cost baskEcivmay be at their maturity. With respect
to RMBS held by consolidated VIESs, the ability ofyaentity to cause the sale by the VIE prior tortregturity of these RMBS is either expressly
prohibited, not probable, or is limited to spedifievents of default, none of which have occurredfasine 30, 2014.

Gross unrealized losses on the Compafydency RMBS were $25 million and $53 million ahé 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respect
Given the credit quality inherent in Agency RMBBg tCompany does not consider any of the currerdimmgnts on its Agency RMBS to be
credit related. In evaluating whether it is makelly than not that it will be required to sell aimypaired security before its anticipated recovery,
which may be at their maturity, the Company considiee significance of each investment, the amofimhpairment, the projected future
performance of such impaired securities, as wathasompany’s current and anticipated leveragaagpand liquidity position. Based on these
analyses, the Company determined that at Juned3@, &nd December 31, 2013, unrealized losses éwyéacy RMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (excluding Non-Agency RMBS 10 strips whicleaccounted for under the fair
value option with changes in fair value recordedanings) were $1 million and $2 million at Jui®e 3014 and December 31, 2013, respecti
Based upon the most recent evaluation, the Comgaey not consider these unrealized losses to mEathaé of OTTI and does not believe that
these unrealized losses are credit related, bueratre due to other factors. The Company haswevdéts Non-Agency RMBS that are in an
unrealized loss position to identify those secesitivith losses that are other-than-temporary basedh assessment of changes in cash flows
expected to be collected for such RMBS, which abarsi recent bond performance and expected futuferpence of the underlying collateral.
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A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters and six months ended June 30, 2014 argli2@tesented below.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (3,819 % -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerne (loss (1,539 -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (5,349 $ s

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ (4,219 $ -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerine (loss (2,668 (6,163
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (6,88]) $ (6,16%)

The following table presents a roll forward of tiredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Ma@ency RMBS for which a portion of lo
was previously recognized in OCI. The table deltes between those securities that are recognirig for the first time as opposed to those
that have previously recognized OTTI.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 521,48. $ 513,94t
Additions:
Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 5,341 -
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidatethdithe perioc (11,219 (10,760

Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnem securities with
previously recognized ott-thar-temporary impairment - -

Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdnttoollected that are
recognized over the remaining life of the sect (3,039 (4,939
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 512,580 $  498,25.

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 524,43. $ 510,08¢
Additions:
Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 6,881 712
Reductions for securities sold or deconsolidatathdithe perioc (12,88 (11,119
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnem securities with
previously recognized ott-thar-temporary impairment - 5,451
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdntoollected over the
remaining life of the securitie (5,84¢€) (6,881
Cumulative credit impairment loss ending bala $ 512,580 $  498,25.
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Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaupadeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegsare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs ugeashéasure the component of OTTI recognized in egsfior the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:

For the Six Months Ende
June 30,201 June 30, 201
Loss Severity

Weighted Averag: 73% 45%

Range 43%- 80% 41%- 69%
60+ days delinquer

Weighted Averag: 32% 16%

Range 17%- 47% 0%- 34%
Credit Enhancement (.

Weighted Averag: 3% 10%

Range 0%- 14% 0%- 48%
3 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 8% 18%

Range 2%- 11% 0%- 25%
12 Month CPF

Weighted Averag: 11% 20%

Range 6%- 19% 9% - 35%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemenetBR#REMIC anc
underlying from each of their respective capitalctures.

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at June 30, 2014 and Decemp20B3. 10 RMBS included in the tables
below represent the right to receive a specifieghbprtion of the contractual interest cash flowshef underlying principal balance of specific
securities. At June 30, 2014, |0 RMBS had a netalized loss of $28 million and had an amortizest of $314 million. At December 31, 20

IO RMBS had a net unrealized loss of $49 milliod &aad an amortized cost of $349 million. The faitue of 10s at June 30, 2014 and December
31, 2013 was $286 million, and $300 million, regp@ty. All changes in fair value of 10s are refled in Net income (loss).

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included ir Loss Included ir
Accumulated Gross Unrealize Accumulated Gross Unrealize
Other Gain Included ir Total Gross Other Loss Included ir
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Unrealized Los!
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 12,25 $ - $ 12,25 $ @an s - $ a7
Senior intere-only - 14,73¢ 14,73¢ - (47,459 (47,459
Subordinate 144,53« - 144,53 (662) - (662)
Subordinated intere-only - 2,715 2,715 - (472) 472)
RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIE: 843,01: 4,80¢ 847,81t - - -
Agency RMBS
Pas-through 103,00t - 103,00t (22,469 - (22,469
Interes-only - 32¢ 32¢ - (2,975 (2,975
Total $ 1,102,790 $ 22,59C $ 1,125381 $ (23,149 $ (50,900 $ (74,059
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand
Gross Unrealize Gross Unrealize
Gain Included ir Loss Included ir
Accumulated Gross Unrealize Accumulated Gross Unrealize
Other Gain Included ir Total Gross Other Loss Included ir
Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross
Income Deficit Gain Income Deficit Unrealized Los!

Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 974 $ - $ 974 $ (109) $ - $ (109



Senior intere-only - 11,80: 11,80: - (66,009 (66,00¢)

Subordinate 119,23 - 119,23 (1,89¢ - (1,896¢

Subordinated intere-only - 2,48: 2,48: - (57¢) (57¢)

RMBS transferred to

consolidated VIE: 901,77: 4,17( 905,94 - - -
Agency RMBS

Pas-through 22,32( - 22,32( (51,499 - (51,499

Interes-only 2 33C 33z - (1,316 (1,316
Total $ 1,044,30. $ 18,78 $ 1,063,08 $ (53,499 $ (67,90) $ (121,409

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andfltagh expected to be collected, among other iteres affected by the collateral characteri:
of each asset class. The portfolio is most heawilighted to contain Non-Agency RMBS with credstkci The Company chooses assets for the
portfolio after carefully evaluating each investrrignisk profile.
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The following tables provide a summary of the CompeRMBS portfolio at June 30, 2014 and Decemtier2®13.

June 30, 201
Principal or
Notional
Value Weighted
at Period-  Weighted Average
End Average Weighted Weighted Yield
(dollarsin  Amortized Average Average at Periodend
thousands Cost Basic Fair Value Coupon (1)
Nonr-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 317,54 $ 68.7: $ 72.5¢ 1.€% 5.C%
Senior, interest onl $ 5,605,32 $ 451 $ 3.9: 1.€% 12.8%
Subordinatet $ 807,22! $ 42.3: $ 60.1f 3.C% 13.1%
Subordinated, interest on $ 266,76 $ 5.01 $ 5.8¢ 1.1% 11.7%
RMBS transferred to consolidated variable
interest entitie: $ 3,471,222, $ 54.02 $ 78.9¢ 4.€% 16.9%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Pas-through $ 7,522,100 $ 104.9¢ $ 106.5¢ 3.S% 3.1%
Interes-only $ 219,30. $ 18.82 $ 17.61 3.2% 4.6%
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er
December 31, 201
Principal or
Notional
Value Weighted
at Period-  Weighted Average
End Average Weighted Weighted Yield
(dollarsin ~ Amortized Average Average at Periodend
thousands Cost Basis Fair Value Coupon (1)
Nonr-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 12821 $ 69.27 $ 69.9¢ 1.4% 5.8%
Senior, interest onl $ 5,742,78 $ 49z $ 3.9¢ 1.4% 17.2%
Subordinatec $ 83063 $ 40.9¢ $ 55.0¢ 2.5% 13.5%
Subordinated, interest on $ 274,46. $ 534 % 6.04 1.7% 9.C%
RMBS transferred to consolidated variable
interest entitie: $ 3,912,371 $ 5417 $ 77.8: 4.7% 15.6%
Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Pas-through $1,898,13 $ 1045: $ 105.2: 3.€% 3.2%
Interes-only $ 24734. $ 17.6¢ $ 17.3( 3.2% 5.2%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

June 30, 201 December 31, 20:

AAA 0.9% 0.0%
AA 0.5% 0.7%
A 0.0% 0.0%
BBB 0.4% 0.0%
BB 1.8% 1.4%
B 4.1% 4.3%
Below B or not rate: 92.3% 93.6%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortemtlize stated contractual maturities. Actual mégagiof the Company’s RMBS are affected by
the contractual lives of the underlying mortgagesjodic payments of principal and prepaymentsrioigipal. The following tables provide a
summary of the fair value and amortized cost of@Gbenpany’s RMBS at June 30, 2014 and December(B18 according to their estimated
weighted-average life classifications. The weigkdagerage lives of the RMBS in the tables below aseld on lifetime expected prepayment
using an industry prepayment model for the Agen®Bi$ portfolio and the Company’s prepayment assumngtfor the Non-Agency

RMBS. The prepayment model considers current yfeldvard yield, steepness of the interest rateeucurrent mortgage rates, mortgage rat
the outstanding loan, loan age, margin, and vilatil
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than Greater than

one five
Lessthan  year andless years and less Greater than
one yea  thanfive years than ten year ten year: Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 347 $ 4553. $ 11446¢ $ 66,99C $ 230,46
Senior intere-only 561 60,61" 122,89¢ 36,05¢ 220,13:
Subordinatec 2,16¢ 92,83t 269,40° 121,13 485,54
Subordinated intere-only - - 9,70¢ 5,90¢ 15,60¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - 305,59¢ 1,601,16: 775,54¢ 2,682,30:
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 677,11: 7,299,81: - 7,976,92.
Interes-only - 544 38,08: - 38,62°
Total fair value $ 6,20 $ 1,182,23 $ 9,45553 $ 1,00563 $ 11,649,60
Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ 3,31C $ 42,44¢ $ 109,920 $ 62,54¢ $ 218,23
Senior intere-only 1,11¢ 71,16 141,53¢ 39,03 252,85:
Subordinatec 1,74( 70,06¢ 191,60° 78,25¢ 341,67:
Subordinated intere-only - - 8,91¢ 4,44¢ 13,36¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - 232,55 1,087,72. 514,21 1,834,49:
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 655,84: 7,240,54! - 7,896,39
Interes-only - 70€ 40,56 - 41,27:
Total amortized cos $ 6,16¢ $ 1,072,78 $ 8,820,822 $ 698,50: $ 10,598,27
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater than  Greater than
one five
Lessthan  year andless years and less Greater than
one yeal  than five year than ten year ten year: Total
Fair value
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ 29,28: $ 60,40 $ - $ 89,68’
Senior intere-only 37¢ 103,68t 96,96¢ 28,03 229,06!
Subordinatec 3,35¢ 63,17: 321,33 69,70( 457,56¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 14,86: 1,70¢ 16,57
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 5,72¢ 276,75. 1,986,87! 712,21t 2,981,57.
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 20,37¢ 1,808,341 126,07 1,954,79
Interes-only 54 63€ 42,09: - 42,78
Total fair value $ 951: $ 49391 $ 4,330,880 $ 937,73 $ 5,772,04

Amortized cos
Non-Agency RMBS

Senior $ - % 28,90C $ 59,92: $ - % 88,82:
Senior intere-only 1,017 131,15¢ 117,00¢ 34,08 283,27
Subordinatec 2,87 50,48: 243,35( 43,52: 340,23:
Subordinated intere-only - - 13,34+ 1,322 14,66¢
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 4,744 211,92! 1,356,98. 501,97¢ 2,075,62
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 18,60¢ 1,837,61. 127,75 1,983,971
Interes-only 122 82t 42,81¢ - 43,76¢
Total amortized cos $ 8,76( $ 44190 $ 3,671,03 $ 708,66( $ 4,830,35

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to craik. The Company seeks to mitigate credit rishtigh its asset selection process. The Non-
Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralized vhat the Company classifies as Alt-A first lieontgages. The Company categorizes
collateral as A-A regardless of whether the loans were originaflgatibed a“prime” if the behavior of the collateral when the Comp



purchased the security more typically resemblespAlThe Company defines Alt-A collateral charaidtes to be evidenced by the 60+ day
delinquency bucket of the pool being greater tHnos the current weighted average FICO scores leet85 and 700. At June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, 93% and 97% of the Non-AgencBRMollateral was Alt-A, respectively and the weaeghaverage FICO score was 698 for

both periods.

The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fallng collateral characteristics at June 30, 201dtecember 31, 2013.
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June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Weighted average maturity (yea 22.¢ 24.1
Weighted average amortized loan to value 68.9% 69.2%
Weighted average FICO ( 68t 71C
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 38¢€ $ 38t
Weighted average percentage owner occu 83.&8% 84.(%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 65.5% 65.2%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 1.7% 1.€%
Weighted average geographic concentration of topdtate: CA 32.¢% CA 33.%%
FL 8.7% FL 9.1%
NY 8.1% NY 7.1%
NJ 2.9% NJ 3.C%
MD 2.6% MD 2.7%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the co#lbgt the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof Non-Agency RMBS at June 30, 2014
and December 31, 2013.

Origination Year June 30,201  December 3:
201z

1999 0.2% 0.0%
2000 0.6% 0.6%
2001 2.0% 1.2%
2002 0.4% 1.0%
2003 1.1% 1.4%
2004 3.9% 3.6%
2005 20.4% 17.8%
2006 29.4% 32.2%
2007 39.0% 40.1%
2008 2.1% 2.1%
2013 0.9% 0.0%
Total 100.0% 100.0%

Gross realized gains and losses are recorded inrddézed gains (losses) on sales of investmeanighe Company’s Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. The procatigross realized gains and gross realized |fssassales of investments for the quarters
and six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 doHaes:

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Proceeds from sal $ 33,21 $ 429,38l
Gross realized gair 29 54,117
Gross realized loss: (4,369 -
Net realized gail $ (4,339 $ 54,117

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Proceeds from sal $ 133,46¢ $ 429,56.
Gross realized gair 8,49¢ 54,12¢
Gross realized loss: (4,460 (3)
Net realized gail $ 4,03¢ $ 54,12!

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beiagfiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitiziwbole mortgage loans. Refer to Note €
additional details regarding the Company’s involeatnwith VIEs. The securitized loans held for istveent are carried at their principal balance
outstanding, plus unamortized premiums, less upgadiscounts and an allowance for loan lossesfdllowing table provides a summary of
the changes in the carrying value of securitizash$oheld for investment at June 30, 2014 and Deee81) 2013:

19




For the Six Months
Ended For the Year Ende
June 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand

Balance, beginning of peric $ 783,48: $ 1,300,13
Purchase - -
Principal paydown (67,429 (507,682)
Net periodic amortization (accretio (1,057 (10,769
Change to loan loss provisii (539 1,79¢
Balance, end of peric $ 714,47, $ 783,48

The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as f@lithvestment at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013:

December 31,

June 30, 201 2013

(dollars in thousand:
Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 723,08¢ $ 792,54
Less: allowance for loan loss 8,61¢ 9,06:
Securitized loans held for investm $ 71447 $ 783,48:

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizedfmyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 41% were originated during 2012, 37%
were originated during 2011, 6% during 2010, ardréimaining 16% of the loans were originated gad2010. A summary of key characteris
of these loans follows.

June 30, 201 December 31, 201

Number of loan: 972 1,05:
Weighted average maturity (yea 26.€ 27.2
Weighted average loan to value 71.6% 71.%
Weighted average FICO ( 76€ 76€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 72¢ $ 737
Weighted average percentage owner occu 95.2% 94. %
Weighted average percentage single family resid 70.6% 70.(%
Weighted average geographic concentration of topdtate: CA 34% CA 34.1%
VA 5.6% VA 5.6%
NJ 53 NY 5.5%
NY 4.%% NJ 5.1%
MD 4%  TX 4.8%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the co#lbgt the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the changes in tlssvance for loan losses for the securitized mayggan portfolio at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013:

For the Six Months
Ended For the Year Ende
June 30, 201 December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand

Balance, beginning of peric $ 9,06 $ 11,62:
Provision for loan losse 53& (1,799
Chargtw-offs (97€) (762)
Balance, end of peric $ 8,61¢ $ 9,06:

The Company has established an allowance for lwssek related to securitized loans that is compafsadjeneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relatéde@eneral reserve at June 30, 2014 and Dece3tih2013 was $4 million, respectively. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relatebgspecific reserve at June 30, 2014 and DeceBih&013 was $5 million, respectively.

The total unpaid principal balance of impaired & which the Company established a specificrveseras $25 million and $26 million at June
30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively. Gdmapany’s recorded investment in impaired loansvioich there is a related allowance for
credit losses at June 30, 2014 and December 338,284 $18 million and $19 million, respectivelyheTtotal unpaid principal balance of non-
impaired loans for which the Company establishgérgeral reserve was $683 million and $750 millibdume 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
respectively. The Comparg/tecorded investment in loans that are not imgdoewhich there is a related general reserverfedit losses at Jul
30, 2014 and December 31, 2103 was $696 milliongteb million, respectively. Interest income orpaired loans is not significant.
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The following table summarizes the outstanding@pal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and greet reported by the servicer at June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent  Delinquent  Delinquent  Bankruptcy  Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
June 30, 201 $ 571 $ 1,72C $ 4,691 $ 0% 6,53t $ 8l€ $ 14,33:
December 31,201 $ 99¢ $ 57C $ 2,081 $ 47 $ 7,530 $ 1,17¢ $ 12,83¢

With the exception of its ability to approve centédan modifications, the Company is not involveithvthe servicing or modification of loans hi
for investment. The trustee and servicer of tlspeetive securitization are responsible for semgi@ind modifying these loans. The Company is
required to make certain assumptions in accouriinfpans held for investment due to the limitatafrinformation available to the

Company. The following table presents the loaaswere modified by the servicer during the quaresrded June 30, 2014 and 2013.

Amortized Cos Amortized Cos

Unpaid Unpaid of of
Number of Principal Principal Modified Loans Modified Loan:
Loans Balance of Balance of For Which For Which
Modified Modified Modified Amortized Cos  Thereis an There is No
During Loans (Pre-  Loans (Post- of Allowance Allowance
Period modification)  modification) Modified Loan¢ for Loan Losse for Loan Losse

(dollars in thousand:
Six Months Ende:
June 30, 201 2 $ 1,13¢ % 1,25¢ $ 1,17 $ 1,17 $ 0
June 30, 201 3 $ 2,34¢  $ 2,35¢ $ 2,248 $ 2,248 $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodss mitigation. Based on the information availableing the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the
Company determined that all loans modified by #wwiser were considered TDRs, as defined under GAAPDR is generally any modification
of a loan to a borrower that is experiencing finahdifficulties, where a lender agrees to ternet tire more favorable to the borrower than are
otherwise available in the current market. All loaadifications during the quarters ended June B042nd 2013 included a reduction of the
stated interest ratesLoans modified by the servicer have been indivijuassessed for impairment and measurement of impat is based on

the excess of the recorded investment in the leanthe present value of the expected cash floost, podification, discounted at the loan’s
effective interest rate at inception. In the alogeof additional loan modifications by the servicefuture periods that are considered to be TDRs,
the $4 million specific reserve related to TDR®&3une 30, 2014 will be recognized in net incoméuture periods by way of a decrease in the
provision for loan losses. If there are furtherdifioations, the reduction of the cashflow is refl in the provision for loan losses.

As of June 30, 2014, there were no loans that wedified in the past twelve months and delinquenscheduled payments.

5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instruntenThe Company categorizes its finan

instruments, based on the priority of the inputth®valuation technique, into a three-level falue hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the

highest priority to quoted prices in active marKetsidentical assets or liabilities (Level 1) ahé lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Leve

If the inputs used to measure the financial insants fall within different levels of the hierarchiie categorization is based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measneat of the instrument. Financial assets and Iltesirecorded at fair value on the Consolidated

Statements of Financial Condition or disclosechmrelated notes are categorized based on thesitgthe valuation techniques as follows:
Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology aretgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetdliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imgwguoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that are
observable for the asset or liability, either dikgor indirectly, for substantially the full terof the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.
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Fair value measurements categorized within Le\ak3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value and
such changes could result in a significant increasecrease in the fair value. For the Compamysstments in Non-Agency RMBS categorized
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy, the mificant unobservable inputs include the discoat#s, assumptions relating to prepayments,
default rates and loss severities. Significantdases (decreases) in any of the discount ratemjltiedtes or loss severities in isolation woulslit

in a significantly lower (higher) fair value measmrent. The impact of changes in prepayment speedkilave differing impacts on fair value,
depending on the seniority of the investment. Galhgra change in the default assumption is accanegleby directionally similar changes in the
assumptions used for the loss severity and theagragent speed.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtklsy management to ensure the changes are ageopts markets and products evolve
the pricing for certain products becomes more parent, the Company will continue to refine itsuadion methodologies. The methodology
utilized by the Company for the periods presensashichanged. The methods used to produce a fag galculation may not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair vadu€urthermore, while the Company believes itsatidin methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of diffénexethodologies, or assumptions, to determineairesélue of certain financial instruments could
result in a different estimate of fair value at thporting date. The Company uses inputs thaturent as of the measurement date, which may
include periods of market dislocation, during whpsfce transparency may be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beeresgpced for some time and continues to existptservability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS.If third party pricing services are unable to pdeva price for an asset, or if the price providednem is
deemed unreliable by the Company, then the asHidiewalued at its fair value as determined by@oenpany without validation to third-party
pricing. In addition, validating third party piig for the Company’s investments may be more stibje as fewer participants may be willing to
provide this service to the Company. llliquid istraents typically experience greater price votgtéis an active market does not

exist. Observability of prices and inputs can vgignificantly from period to period and may causg#ruments to change classifications within
three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by tb@mpany to estimate the fair value of its finangiatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsyad interest receivable, receivable for secwrititvidends payable, payable for securities and
accrued interest payable are considered to besamable estimate of fair value due to the shom teaiture of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors as
coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted averagediflateral composition, borrower characteristicgented interest rates, life caps, periodic caps,
reset dates, collateral seasoning, expected lossescted default severity, credit enhancementpotimet pertinent factors. Management reviews
the fair values generated by the model to determvimether prices are reflective of the current markdéanagement indirectly corroborates its
estimates of the fair value using pricing modelgbsnparing its results to independent prices pexbioly third party pricing services. Certain \
liquid asset classes, such as Agency fixed-rate-fhaeughs may be priced using independent sostadsas quoted prices for To-Be-Announced
(“TBA") securities.

The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an actiarket such that participants transact with sieffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing habie liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and thaitarity of the Company’s securities to
those actively traded enable the Company to obspreted prices in the market and utilize thosegarigs a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfiddssgency RMBS as having Level 2 inputs in thie ¥@lue hierarchy.

The Company’s fair value estimation process for Mgency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted gsithat are observed in the market. The
Company’s estimate of prepayment, default and ggvarrves all involve management judgment and mggions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement proces$sch renders the resulting Non-Agency RMBS failugaestimates Level 3 inputs in the fair
value hierarchy.
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Derivatives
Interest Rate Swaps

The Company determines the fair value of its irgerate swaps based on the net present valuewéfaash flows of the swap. The Company
compares its own estimate of fair value to dealmtes received to evaluate for reasonablenessd@dler quotes incorporate common market
pricing methods, including a spread measuremetetdreasury yield curve or interest rate swap €@y well as underlying characteristics of the
particular contract. Interest rate swaps are madayethe Company by incorporating such factorhaderm to maturity, Treasury curve, overn
index swap rates, and the payment rates on the figetion of the interest rate swaps. The Compasydiassified the characteristics used to
determine the fair value of interest rate swapsea®l 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Mortgage Options

Mortgage options are valued using an option priomgglel which considers the strike price of theaptthe price of the underlying security, settle
date, a discount rate and the implied volatilitheTmplied volatility is determined from the dagyice of the underlying security as well as prices
on similar financial instruments. The Company hassified the characteristics used to determindaine/alue of mortgage options as Level 3
inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

Treasury Futures

The fair value of Treasury futures is determinedjbgted market prices for similar financial instemts in an active market. The Company has
classified the characteristics used to determiaddin value of Treasury futures as Level 1 inpatthe fair value hierarchy.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilitiesiearat fair value on a recurring basis, includihg tevel in the fair value hierarchy, at June 30,
2014 and December 31, 2013 is presented below.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Counterparty and Ca
Levell Level2 Level 3 Collateral, netting Total

(dollars in thousand:

Assets:

Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 230,46 $ - $ 230,46
Senior intere-only - - 220,13: -$ 220,13
Subordinate - - 485,54: - $ 485,54
Subordinated intere-only - - 15,60¢ -$ 15,60¢
RMBS transferred to consolidat
VIEs - - 2,682,30: - $ 2,682,30:

Agency RMBS

Pas-through - 7,976,92 - - $ 7,976,92
Interes-only - 38,627 - -$ 38,62
Liabilities:
Derivatives, ne (2,637) (45,969 (1,139 24,41 (25,325
Total $ (2,637) $7,969,58. $3,632,92( $ 24,41, $11,624,28
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand
Counterparty and Ca
Levell Level2 Level 3 Collateral, netting Total
(dollars in thousand:
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ -$ -$ 8968 % - $ 89,68
Senior intere-only - - 229,06! - $ 229,06!
Subordinatet - - 457,56¢ - $ 457,56¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,57: -$ 16,57:
RMBS transferred to consolidats
VIEs - - 2,981,57. - $2,981,57.
Agency RMBS
Pas-through - 1,954,79 - - $1,954,79
Interes-only - 42,78 - - $ 42,78
Derivatives, ne 10,62¢ - - (253H)% 8,09t

Liabilities:



Derivatives, ne - (30,199 - - $ (30,199
Total $ 10,62¢ $1,967,37' $3,774,46. $ (2,5634) $5,749,93
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The table below provides a summary of the changései fair value of securities classified as Leat June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency
RMBS Derivatives Total
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ - % 3,774,46.
Transfers in to Level 3 ass¢ - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 assi - - -
Purchase 188,77 - 188,77¢
Principal payment (159,11) - (159,11)
Sales and Settlemer (260,977) (8,379 (269,34°)
Accretion of purchase discour 49,88t - 49,88¢
Gains (losses) included in net inco
Other than temporary credit impairment los (6,88)) - (6,881)
Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler (1,65Y) 2,89¢ 1,24
Realized gain on deconsolidati 47,84¢ - 47,84¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inct 22,46: - 22,46:
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivenia
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe (20,757 4,33¢ (16,410
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,634,05 $ (1,137) $ 3,632,92!
Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
For the Year Ende
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Non-Agency
RMBS Derivatives Total
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,961,20: - $ 3,961,20:
Transfers in to Level 3 ass¢ - - -
Transfers out of Level 3 assi - - -
Purchase 317,29¢ - 317,29¢
Principal payment (475,09)) - (475,09)
Sales and Settlemer (181,21Y) (10,22) (191,436
Accretion of purchase discour 106,29( - 106,29(
Gains (losses) included in net inco
Other than temporary credit impairment los (45,16°) - (45,16)
Realized gains (losses) on sales and settler 36,64: 10,22: 46,86¢
Realized losses on principal w-downs of No-Agency RMBS (18,316 - (18,31¢)
Net unrealized gains (losses) included in inct (43,257) - (43,257)
Gains (losses) included in other comprehensivenia
Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 116,06. - 116,06:
Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 3,774,46. $ -8 3,774,46:

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 fordnarter ended June 30, 2014 and for year endedidexre31, 2013.

Sensitivity of Significant Inputs

The significant unobservable inputs used in theviaiue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BMEBe the weighted average discount

rates, constant prepayment speed (“CPR"), cumelatéfault rate, and the loss severity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, vaogyding to interest rates, the type of investmeomditions in financial markets, and other
factors, none of which can be predicted with anyagety. In general, when interest rates rises ielatively less attractive for borrowers to
refinance their mortgage loans, and as a res@pgyment speeds tend to decrease. When intetesfali, prepayment speeds tend to increase.
For RMBS investments purchased at a premium, gspneent speeds increase, the amount of incomedimpéhy earns decreases as the
purchase premium on the bonds amortizes fasterekected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymeadspesult in increased income and can
extend the period over which the Company amortizepurchase premium. For RMBS investments puezhasa discount, as prepayment
speeds increase, the amount of income the Comang ecreases from the acceleration of the acerefi the discount into interest income.

Conversely, decreases in prepayment speeds nesldtieased income as the accretion of the purclissaunt into interest income occurs over a

longer period
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Cumulative default rates represent an annualizedofadefault on a group of mortgages. The constafdult rate (“CDR”) represents the
percentage of outstanding principal balances iptia that are in default, which typically equateshe home being past 60-day and 90-day
notices and in the foreclosure process. When ttefates increase, expected cash flows on the Uyidgrcollateral decreases. When default rates
decrease, expected cash flows on the underlyiratedl increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etgukefrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan

pool. When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the tléis sold and the resulting proceeds are usedttle the outstanding obligation. In many
circumstances, the proceeds from the sale do tptrépay the outstanding obligation. In theseesas loss is incurred by the lender. Loss
severity is used to predict how costly future Iesaee likely to be. An increase in loss sevegults in a decrease in expected future
cashflows. A decrease in loss severity resultmiincrease in expected future cashflows.

The discount rate refers to the interest rate usétk discounted cash flow analysis to determtireepresent value of future cash flows. The
discount rate takes into account not just the tralae of money, but also the risk or uncertaintjudfire cash flows. An increased uncertainty of
future cash flows results in a higher discount.rdtke discount rate used to calculate the presguae of the expected future cash flows is based
on the discount rate implicit in the security ashaf last measurement date. As discount rates mqovine discounted cash flows are reduced.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of Non-Agency RMBS as of JuneZil4 and December 31, 2013 follows:

June 30, 201 December 31, 201
Significant Inputs Significant Inputs
Weighted Weighted
Average Loss Average Loss
Discount Ratt  CPR CDR Severity Discount Ratt CPR CDR Severity
Range Range
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior 4.9% 1%-8% 0%-33% 50%- 85% 6.4% 1%-6% 0%-33% 50%- 85%
Senior intere-only 13.5% 2%-26% 0%-34% 50%- 85% 14.1% 1%-28% 0%-33% 50%- 85%
Subordinatec 6.1% 2%-24% 0%-33% 50%- 85% 6.1% 1%-22% 0%-38% 50%- 85%
Subordinated intere-only 13.7% 3%-10% 0%-18% 50%- 68% 12.7% 2%-13% 0%-18% 50%- 73%

RMBS transferred to consolidate: 4.6% 1% -18% 0% -32% 50% - 85% 5.3% 1% -20% 0% -33% 50% - 85%
VIEs

All of the significant inputs listed have some degyof market observability, based on the Compakiysvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legssrity projections are in the form of “curves”
that are updated quarterly to reflect the Companyllateral cash flow projections. Methods usededvelop these projections conform to indu
conventions. The Company uses assumptions it censsitd best estimate of future cash flows for gaspective security.

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a raofgebservable prices on securities backed by
similar collateral. As the market becomes morkess liquid, the availability of these observallplits will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage cbttateral balance that is expected to prepaaei point in the future. The prepayment si
is based on factors such as collateral FICO stmae;to-value ratio, debt-to-income ratio, and age on a loan level basis and is scaled up or
down to reflect recent collateral-specific prepaptexperience as obtained from remittance repodsnaarket data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépine” of loans that are more than 30 days delmguin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are real
estate owned (“REQ”). These delinquent loans detertie first 30 months of the default curve. Beyomonth 30, the default curve transitions to
a value that is reflective of a portion of the emtrdelinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s egpeoiss severity is based on collateral-speciffieeience with consideration given to other
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@sssuch as seasoning are taken into consideragicause severities tend to initially increase on
newly originated securities, before beginning tolide as the collateral ages and eventually stahiliCollateral characteristics such as loan size,
loan-to-value, and geographic location of colldtatso effect loss severity.
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Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstent at principal value, plus unamortized prensipless unaccreted discounts and an
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimae&iir value of its securitized loans held forestment by considering the loan characteristics,
including the credit characteristics of the borrovpeirpose of the loan, use of the collateral saguhe loan, and management’s expectations of
general economic conditions in the sector and grestonomy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquiregtment securities. Due to the short term
nature of these financial instruments, the Compestiynates the fair value of these repurchase agneisrasing the contractual obligation plus
accrued interest payable at maturity.

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred twsGladated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Haldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisatr notes financed without recourse to the Compageecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings. Thep@oy carries securitized debt at the principahhed outstanding plus unamortized premiums,
less unaccreted discounts recorded in connectitimtheé financing of the loans or RMBS with thirdres. The premiums or discounts associ
with the financing of the notes or certificates aneortized over the contractual life of the instaiusing the interest method. The Company
estimates the fair value of securitized debt byregttng the future cash flows associated with theéeaulying assets collateralizing the secured debt
outstanding. The Company models the fair valueagh underlying asset by considering, among otbersi, the structure of the underlying
security, coupon, servicer, actual and expectedultsf actual and expected default severitiest iedeEes, and prepayment speeds in conjunction
with market research for similar collateral perfarme and management’s expectations of general edoronditions in the sector and other
economic factors.

The following table presents the carrying value tidvalue, as described above, of the Compangantial instruments not carried at fair value
on a recurring basis at June 30, 2014 and Decegih@013.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fair
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investme 3 714,47: 703,45!
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (5,564,55) (5,571,50)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (787,167 (800,45)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldrgestmen: 3 (604,65%) (591,96°)

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level in Fair
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value
Securitized loans held for investm 3 783,48: 762,55(
Repurchase agreemel 2 (1,658,56) (1,660,94)
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 3 (933,73) (940,71))
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldfigestmen: 3 (669,987 (647,620

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $5.6 billion and $1lioi of repurchase agreements with weighted ayetaorrowing rates of 0.44% and 0.44%
and weighted average remaining maturities of 7S dayl 58 days as of June 30, 2014 and Decemb2083, respectively. At June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013, Agency RMBS pledged as collateider these repurchase agreements had an estifaatealue of $5.6 billion and $1.7
billion, respectively. At June 30, 2014, Non-AgeiRlIBS pledged as collateral under these repurchgigements had an estimated fair value of
$542 million. There were no Non-Agency RMBS pledigs collateral at December 31, 2013. The avetat balances of the Company’s
repurchase agreements for the quarters ended 0u2634 and December 31, 2013 were $3.1 billion%ing billion, respectively. The interest
rates of these repurchase agreements are geriadiked to the one-month or the three-month LIB@R and re-price accordingly.
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At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 , the repaecagreements collateralized by RMBS had thevfiolly remaining maturities.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2013

(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ - $ -
1-29 days 1,694,28 644,33.
30 to 59 day: 1,085,41 606,94!
60 to 89 day: 1,684,61 -
90 to 119 day 63,54¢ 129,04
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,036,68! 278,23!
Total $ 556455 $ 1,658,56

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 , the Coynglidmot have an amount at risk under its repwselagreements greater than 15% of its
equity with any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateradl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyEB8M For financial reporting purposes, the
Company’s securitized debt is accounted for asreeldoorrowings. Thus, the residential mortgagedoar RMBS held as collateral are recorded
in the assets of the Company as securitized loeldsfor investment or Non-Agency RMBS transferredonsolidated VIEs and the securitized
debt is recorded as a non-recourse liability inabeompanying Consolidated Statements of Fina@mabition.

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the Compaeyguritized debt collateralized by residentiaftgege loans had a principal balance of
$605 million and $670 million, respectively. Am#30, 2014 and December 31, 2014 the debt canegighted average cost of financing equal
to 3.28% and 3.31% respectively. The debt matoeéseen the years 2023 and 2042.

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 the Compaeguritized debt collateralized by Non-Agency Rd/ti&ad a principal balance of $815
million and $966 million, respectively. At JuB@, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the debt carneeighted average cost of financing equal to
4.26%, respectively. The debt matures betweegdhes 2035 and 2047.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company aseplisecuritized debt collateralized by Nagency RMBS with an outstanding principal bala
of $54 million for $56 million in cash. This traation resulted in a loss on the extinguishmemtedtt of $2 million. This loss is reflected in
earnings for the six months ended June 30, 2014.

The carrying value of securitized debt is base@tamortized cost, net of premiums or discourttsted to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estichaténcipal repayment schedule of the securitizelot @t June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013,
based on expected cash flows of the residentialgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted for projectecebes the underlying collateral of the

debt. All of the securitized debt recorded in @@mpany’s Consolidated Statements of Financial @onds non-recourse to the Company.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2013

(dollars in thousand
Within One Yeal $ 295,14: $ 370,25(
One to Three Yeal 405,51¢ 497,94:
Three to Five Year 228,65( 264,45t
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 376,40¢ 396,91t
Total $ 1,305,71' $ 1,529,56!

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt aneeshelent upon cash flows received from the undeaglioans. The estimate of their repayment is
based on scheduled principal payments on the widgtbans. This estimate will differ from actuahaunts to the extent prepayments and/or
losses are experienced. See Notes 3 and 4 foreaxdetailed discussion of the securities and l@afiateralizing the securitized debt.
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8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE#e purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laan®-securitizing RMBS and obtaining
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determireiff the primary beneficiary.

As of June 30, 2014, the Company’s ConsolidateteBtants of Financial Condition includes consolida#Es with $3.4 billion of assets and
$1.4 billion of liabilities. As of December 31, 28, the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Finh@ondition includes consolidated VIEs
with $3.8 billion of assets and $1.6 billion ofilties.

During the first quarter of 2014, the Company sldf its interests in a consolidated VIE to amalated third party. Subsequent to this sale, the
purchaser of the interests in this VIE liquidatled YIE and took possession of the underlying séearof the original VIE for the purposes of
creating a new re-securitization entity. The Conypagreed to acquire certain interests in the reegecuritization entity collateralized by the
underlying securities of the original VIE. Thesaninterests acquired by the Company were evaldfatezbnsolidation under GAAP. The
Company determined that the acquired interestsamew re-securitization entity represented vaeiatikerests in only specified assets of the new
re-securitization entity as these specified asset®ssentially the only source of payment foréhated variable interests of the new re-
securitization entity. As the Company acquired%g0ff certain classes of the new resecuritizatiditye it concluded that it was the primary
beneficiary of certain specified assets and interefsthe new re-securitization entity for whicloitned 100% of the class and, therefore,
consolidated the assets and liabilities relategl tmtheir interests acquired.

As the Company did not repurchase all of the irstisran the new re-securitization entity, a gaii$48 million was recognized during the second
quarter of 2014 related to the sale of its inter@sthe previously consolidated VIE which were reggurchased by the Company as part of the
re-securitization entity. This gain is presentedadsain on deconsolidation during the second guaft2014.

As of June 30, 2014, the balance sheet includegrtterlying assets of the original consolidated YH& Company agreed to repurchase from the
new re-securitization entity; therefore, no gaiass is recognized on that portion of the trarisactAll intercompany balances related to the
consolidated interests are eliminated in consabdat

VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Benefficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whible Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company widyiriterests in additional tranches. The resfltsonsolidation at June 30, 2014 is the
inclusion of $2.7 billion of Non-Agency RMBS at faialue representing the underlying securitieefttusts, the inclusion of $714 million of
securitized loans held for investment, the recagmiof $787 million of securitized debt associatath Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $605 million of securitizexbtlassociated with loans held for investmentdiditeon, at June 30, 2014 the Company
recognized $15 million and $5 million of accruetkist receivable and accrued interest payablpecésely, of the securitizations.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilige®rded in the Consolidated Statements of Fiadu@mndition related to the consolidated VIE:
of June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

December 31,
June 30, 201 2013
(dollars in thousand

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V $ 2,682,300 $ 2,981,557
Securitized loans held for investme 714,47 783,48:
Accrued interest receivab 14,68: 17,17
Liabilities
Securitized debt, collateralized by M-Agency RMBS $ 787,16: $ 933,73
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestmen 604,65! 669,98:
Accrued interest payab 4,54t 5,27¢
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Income and expense and OTTI amounts related tootidated VIESs recorded in the Consolidated StatémehOperations and Comprehensive
Income (Loss) is presented in the table below.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 85,26: $ 93,93¢
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (17,176 (24,982)
Net interest incom $ 68,08t $ 68,95/
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: 479 -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerne (loss (3,477 -
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (3,950 $ =

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 170,47. $ 190,66
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (37,879 (51,979
Net interest incom $ 132,59¢ $ 138,68t
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: 479 -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerine (loss (3,477 (135)
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (3,950 $ (135

VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieraafy

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEwlich it has concluded it does not have a contrglfinancial interest, and thus is not the
primary beneficiary. In such cases, the Company do¢ have both the power to direct the entitiesSnsignificant activities and the obligation to
absorb losses or right to receive benefits thaldcpatentially be significant to the VIEs. The Coamg’s investments in these unconsolidated \
are carried in Non-Agency RMBS on the Consolid&&tements of Financial Condition and include seaiml subordinated bonds issued by the
VIEs. The Company'’s investments in unconsolidatégis\at June 30, 2014, ranged from less than $iomitb $45 million, with an aggregate
amount of $952 million. The Company’s investmentsmconsolidated VIEs at December 31, 2013, rafrged less than $1 million to $42
million, with an aggregate amount of $793 millidine Company’s maximum exposure to loss from thesensolidated VIEs was $826 million
at June 30, 2014 and $727 million at December 8132The maximum exposure to loss was determinéldesamortized cost of the
unconsolidated VIE, which represents the purchase pf the investment less any unamortized premiondiscounts as of the reporting date.

9. Derivative Instruments

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk by
entering into derivative financial instrument camtts in the form of interest rate swaps and Trgafsttures. The Company’s swaps are used to
lock in a fixed rate related to a portion of itgremt and anticipated payments on its repurchasseatents. The Company typically agrees to pay a
fixed rate of interest (“pay rate”) in exchange fioe right to receive a floating rate of interést¢¢eive rate”) over a specified period of

time. Treasury futures are derivatives which tréekprices of specific Treasury securities andr@aded on an active exchange. It is generall
Company’s policy to close out any Treasury futyresitions prior to taking delivery of the underlgisecurity. The Company uses Treasury
futures to lock in prices on the purchase or salegency RMBS and to hedge changes in interess maieits existing portfolio.

In addition to interest rate swaps, from time togithe Company purchases and sells mortgage optMoggage options give the Company the
right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell matg backed securities at a future date for a fprexdt. The Company uses mortgage options tc
in prices on the purchase or sale of Agency RMB&tarenhance investment returns.

The use of derivatives creates exposure to crslirelating to potential losses that could be geized if the counterparties to these instruments
fail to perform their obligations under the contgacln the event of a default by the counterpahtg,Company could have difficulty obtaining its
RMBS or cash pledged as collateral for these dévizanstruments. The Company periodically morsttire credit of its counterparties to
determine if it is exposed to counterparty creidik.r See Note 14 for further discussion of coypdety credit risk.
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The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf the derivatives reported in the Consolid&&tements of Financial Condition after
counterparty netting and posting of cash collatasabf June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

June 30, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities

Net Estimated

Location on Consolidated Fair Location on Consolidated Net Estimated Fa
Notional Amoun Statements of Financial Value/Carrying Statements of Financial ~ Value/Carrying
Derivative Instrument  Outstanding Condition Value Condition Value
(dollars in thousand
Interest Rate Swaj $ 3,360,00! Derivatives, at fair value, n. $ - Derivatives, at fair valu $ (24,189
Mortgage Option: 2,000,00¢ Derivatives, at fair value, n - Derivatives, at fair valu (1,137
Treasury Future 1,230,000 Derivatives, at fair value, n - Derivatives, at fair valu -
Total $ 6,590,00! $ - $ (25,325

December 31, 201

Derivative Asset: Derivative Liabilities

Net Estimated

Location on Consolidated Fair Location on Consolidated Net Estimated Fa
Notional Amoun Statements of Financial Value/Carrying Statements of Financial ~ Value/Carrying
Derivative Instrument  Outstanding Condition Value Condition Value
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Sway $ 1,355,000 Derivatives, at fair value, nn = $ - Derivatives, at fair valu $ (30,199
Treasury Future 550,00( Derivatives, at fair value, ni 8,09t Derivatives, at fair valu -
Total $ 1,905,00! $ 8,09t $ (30,199

The effect of the Company’s derivatives on the @tidated Statements of Operations and Compreheisdoene (Loss) is presented below.

For the Quarter Ende
June 30,201  June 30, 201

Location on Consolidated Statements of
Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Lo

(dollars in thousand:

Net gains (losse Net gains (losse

Derivative Instrument on derivatives on derivatives

Interest Rate Sway Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivat  $ (19,839 $ 13,17¢
Interest Rate Swaj Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (12,06)) (5,39))
Mortgage Option: Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 3,59:¢ -
Mortgage Option: Net realized gains (losses) on derivati 1,05( -
Treasury Future Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (6,256 -
Treasury Future Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (8,78)) -
Total $ (42,289 $ 7,78
For the Six Months Ende
June 30,201  June 30, 201

Derivative Instrument

Location on Consolidated Statements of
Operations
and Comprehensive Income (Lo

Net gains (losse Net gains (losse

on derivatives

on derivatives

(dollars in thousand:

Interest Rate Sway Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati  $ (15,769 $ 18,58(
Interest Rate Swaj Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (17,71) (10,92)
Mortgage Option: Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati 4,33¢ -
Mortgage Option: Net realized gains (losses) on derivati 1,65: -
Treasury Future Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (13,265 -
Treasury Future Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (9,482) -
Total $ (50,23%) $ 7,65¢

The weighted average pay rate on the Company’seistteate swaps at June 30, 2014 was 2.28% andkilghted average receive rate was
0.20%. The weighted average pay rate on the Coy'goanterest rate swaps at December 31, 2013 v&i9d and the weighted average receive

rate was 0.17%.
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Certain of the Company’s interest rate swap andgage option contracts are subject to Internati®wedps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreements (“ISDA”) which contain provisions thatgt counterparties certain rights with respec¢h&applicable ISDA upon the occurrence of
(i) negative performance that results in a dedlineet assets in excess of specified threshold®liar amounts over set periods of time, (ii) the
Company’s failure to maintain its REIT status)) (iie Company’s failure to comply with limits oretmount of leverage, and (iv) the Company’s
stock being delisted from the New York Stock Exad®@(NY SE). Upon the occurrence of items (i) thro(igh the counterparty to the applicable
ISDA has a right to terminate the ISDA in accordandth its provisions. Certain of the Company'sieist rate swaps are cleared through a
registered commodities exchange. Each of the Copp#DAs and clearing exchange agreements conpamasions under which the Company
is required to fully collateralize its obligationader the interest rate swap agreements if at aimy fhe fair value of the swap represents a lighil
greater than the minimum transfer amount contawiéiin the agreements. The Company is also requagubst initial collateral upon execution
of certain of its swap transactions. If the Comphraaches any of these provisions, it will be reggliio settle its obligations under the agreem
at their termination values, which approximates ¥alue. Cleared swaps are fair valued using fiagoricing models and compared to the
exchange market values. The aggregate fair vala# dérivative instruments with credit-risk-reldteontingent features that are in a net liability
position at June 30, 2014 is approximately $53iomlincluding accrued interest, which represengsntaximum amount the Company would be
required to pay upon termination, which is fullylateralized.

10. Common Stock
During the quarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2B@ X ompany declared dividends to common sharetwtdi&ling $92 million, or $0.09 per

share. During the six months ended June 30, 26d£@13, the Company declared dividends to comrharesiolders totaling $185 million, or
$0.18 per share.

31




Earnings per share for the quarters and six mamtdded June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively, arputaich as follows:

For the Quarter Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 104,76¢ $ 143,20°
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 104,76¢ $ 143,20°

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,208,94 1,027,066,04
Effect of dilutive securities 325,50( 527,40(
Weighted average diluted shares 1,027,534,44 1,027,593,44
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder- Basic $ 0.1C $ 0.1
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder:-

Diluted $ 0.1C $ 0.14

For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201  June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Numerator:

Net income $ 205,13 $ 223,00¢
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 205,13 $ 223,00t

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,235,63 1,027,052,34
Effect of dilutive securities 325,82: 542,13:
Weighted average dilutive shares 1,027,561,45 1,027,594,47
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder- Basic $ 0.2C $ 0.2z
Net income per average share attributable to camstackholder:-

Diluted $ 0.2C $ 0.22

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thegmrants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incd®m@ClI”) for the six months ended Ju
30, 2014 and 2013:

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized
gains
(losses) on
available- Total
for-sale Accumulated

securities, ne  OCI Balance

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 990,80: $ 990,80:
OCI before reclassificatior 138,15( 138,15(
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (49,309 (49,309
Net current period OC 88,84¢ 88,84!
Balance as of June 31, 2014 $ 1,079,64: $ 1,079,64
June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized
gains
(losses) on
available- Total

for-sale Accumulatec



securities, ne  OCI Balance

Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 989,93t $ 989,93¢
OCI before reclassificatior 95,01 95,01:
Amounts reclassified from AOCI (47,960 (47,96()
Net current period OC 47,05: 47,05:
Balance as of June 30, 2013 $ 1,036,98 $ 1,036,98
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The following table presents the details of thdassifications from AOCI for the six months endedd 30, 2014 and 2013:

June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Amounts Amounts Affected Line on the Consolidated
Reclassified fror Reclassified fror Statements Of Operations And
Details about Accumulated OCI Compone Accumulated OC Accumulated OC Comprehensive Income (Los
Unrealized gains and losses on avail-for-sale securitie (dollars in thousand
Net realized gains (losses) on sale
$ 8,34( $ 54,12{ investmentt
47,84¢ - Realized gain on deconsolidatic
Net othe-than-temporary credit
(6,88 (6,169)impairment losses
$ 49,30t $ 47,96( Income (loss) before income ta>
= - Income taxe:
$ 49,30¢ $ 47,96( Net of tax

12. Long Term Incentive Plan

On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrattark awards in the amount of 1,301,000 sharemfiagees of FIDAC and its affiliates and
the Company’s independent directors. The awartisetindependent directors vested on the dateanit@nd the awards to FIDAC’s employees
vest quarterly over a period of 10 yea®uring the quarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2@1B\a&isand and 27 thousand shares of restrictekl
issued by the Company to FIDAC’s employees vestshectively. During the six months ended Jun€8@4 and 2013, 37 thousand and 55
thousand shares of restricted stock issued by timep@ny to FIDAC's employees vested, respectivedyofrJune 30, 2014 there were 255
thousand remaining non-vested shares represer8itigjthousand of total unrecognized compensatiots gwanted under the long term incentive
plan, based on the closing price of the sharegater end. That cost is expected to be recogrizeda period of approximately 3.5 years.

13. Income Taxes

For the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the Compasyualified to be taxed as a REIT under Code Sex#56 through 860. As a REIT, the
Company is not subject to federal income tax toetktent that it makes qualifying distributions ak&ble income to its stockholders. To maintain
qualification as a REIT, the Company must distebat least 90% of its annual REIT taxable incomiéstehareholders and meet certain other
requirements such as assets it may hold, incomeaytgenerate and its shareholder compositiors déenerally the Company’s policy to distribute
to its shareholders all of the Company’s taxabié®ime.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay iectax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, h@vebe subject to certain minimum state
and local tax filing fees and its TRS’s are subjedederal, state, and local taxes.

For the quarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2018dmpany did not recognize any income tax experfser.the six months ended June 30, 2014
and 2013, the Company recorded income tax expdr&2zthousand, respectively.

In general, common stock cash dividends declaretiéompany will be considered ordinary incomstazkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgat return of capital.

The Company’s effective tax rate differs from itsribined federal, state and city corporate statutoryate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).

The Company’s 2012, 2011 and 2010 federal, statdomal tax returns remain open for examination.
14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compansubject to interest rate risk in connection
with its investments in Agency and Non-Agency RMB&Sidential mortgage loans, and borrowings unglgunchase agreements. When the
Company assumes interest rate risk, it attemptsinomize interest rate risk through asset selectiaging and matching the income earned on
mortgage assets with the cost of related liabdliti®#he Company attempts to minimize credit rishdlgh due diligence and asset selection by
purchasing loans underwritten to agreed-upon sSpatidins of selected originators. The Companydstablished a whole loan target market
including prime borrowers with FICO scores gengrgheater than 650, Alt-A documentation, geograpliversification, owner-occupied
property, and moderate loan-to-value ratios. Tlhas®rs are considered to be important indicawdrgedit risk.
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By using derivative instruments and repurchaseeagesits, the Company is exposed to counterpartyt cigdif counterparties to the contracts do
not perform as expected. If a counterparty failpedcform on a derivative hedging instrument, thenfany’s counterparty credit risk is equal to
the amount reported as a derivative asset on lisba sheet to the extent that amount exceedsamllabtained from the counterparty or, if in a
net liability position, the extent to which colleaéposted exceeds the liability to the countegparhe amounts reported as a derivative asset/
(liability) are derivative contracts in a gain/@gosition, and to the extent subject to masttimgearrangements, net of derivatives in a loss/
(gain) position with the same counterparty andatetial received/(pledged). If the counterpartysfeil perform on a repurchase agreement, the
Company is exposed to a loss to the extent thdathealue of collateral pledged exceeds the lighio the counterparty. The Company attempts
to minimize counterparty credit risk by evaluatangd monitoring the counterparty’s credit, executimgster netting arrangements and obtaining
collateral, and executing contracts and agreenveittismultiple counterparties to reduce exposura single counterparty, where appropriate.

Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadi® governed by underlying agreements that gedair a right of setoff under master net
arrangements, including in the event of defaulhdhe event of bankruptcy of either party to tresactions. We present our assets and liabilities
subject to such arrangements on a net basis inomsolidated statements of financial conditione Tdilowing table presents information about
our liabilities that are subject to such arrangeimeand can potentially be offset on our consolidiatatements of financial condition as of June
2014 and December 31, 2013. The Company has andial instruments subject to master netting aear@nts, or similar arrangements, in an
asset position on a gross basis.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand

Gross Amounts Not Offset with
Financial Assets (Liabilities) in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Posi

Gross
Amounts Net Amounts
Offset Offset
Gross in the in the
Amounts of Consolidated Consolidated Cash
Recognized Statements of Statements of Collateral
Assets Financial Financial Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments Pledgec (') Net Amount
Repurchase agreeme! $ (5,564,55) $ - $ (5,564,55) $ 6,123,37 $ = $ 558,82
Interest Rate Sway (45,967 21,77¢ (24,189 31,56¢ 58,23t 65,61¢
Mortgage Option: (1,139 - (2,139 - - (1,137)
Treasury Futures (2,636 2,63¢ - - 14,63. 14,63.
Total Liabilities $ (5,614,29) $ 24,41F $ (5,589,87) $ 6,154,994 $ 72,86¢ $ 637,93
(1) Included in other asse
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Gross Amounts Not Offset with
Financial Assets (Liabilities) in the
Consolidated Statements of Financial Posi
Gross
Amounts Net Amounts
Offset Offset
Gross in the in the
Amounts of  Consolidated Consolidated
Recognized Statements of Statements of Cash Collateri
Assets Financial Financial Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Position Position Instruments Pledgec Net Amount
Repurchase agreeme! $ (1,658,56) $ - $ (1,65856) $ 1,737,38 $ - % 78,82(
Interest Rate Sway (30,199 - (30,199 39,47( - 9,271
Mortgage Option: - - - - - -
Treasury Futures 10,62¢ (2,539 8,09t - - 8,09t
Total Liabilities $ (1,678,13) $ (25349 $ (1,680,66) $ 1,776,85. $ - % 96,18¢

15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transtéons
Management Agreeme

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEUMAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an autom



one-year extension option and subject to certainitetion rights. Effective November 28, 2012, thanagement fee was reduced from 1.50% to
0.75% per annum of gross stockholders’ equity, tvingnained in effect until the Company was curenall of its filings required under
applicable securities laws.
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Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tleetqrs ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $6 mitkspectively. Management fees
accrued and paid to FIDAC for the six months entlete 30, 2014 and 2013 were $12 million and $1Bamjlrespectively.

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdemhend restated. Effective August 8, 2014, thragement fee was increased to 1.20%
of gross stockholders’ equity. In addition, FIDAGreed to pay us a one-time fee reduction of aqpetely $24 million, which equals a base
management fee equal to 0.75% per annum of grosktsilders’ equity as if it were in effect from damy 1, 2012 through November 27, 2012.

The agreement provides for a two year term endinguat 7, 2016 and may be automatically renewetiforyear terms at each anniversary date
unless at least twthirds of the independent directors or the holdés majority of the outstanding shares of comntoglselects not to renew tl
agreement in their sole discretion and for anymreason. Unless the management agreement isyegadifor “cause” or FIDAC terminates the
management agreement, in the event that the mareageigreement is terminated or not renewed, thep@agnmust pay to FIDAC a termination
fee equal to two times the average annual managdeercalculated as of the end of the most regeatinpleted fiscal quarter prior to the date of
termination. FIDAC will continue to provide seregunder the management agreement for a periddssothan 180 days from the date the
Company delivers the notice not to renew the mamagé agreement.

The Company may also terminate the managementragreevith 30 days’ prior notice from the Companly&ard of directors, without payment
of a termination fee, for cause or upon a changmofrol of Annaly or FIDAC, each as defined in thanagement agreement. FIDAC may
terminate the management agreement if the Compaegniies required to register as an investment coyrypadter the Investment Company Act
of 1940, as amended, with such termination deemeddur immediately before such event, in whicredhe Company would not be required to
pay a termination fee. FIDAC may also declineeioaw the management agreement by providing the @aynpith 180-days’ written notice, in
which case the Company would not be required togoymination fee.

The management agreement provides that FIDAC i}l gl past and future expenses that the Compatpatine Audit Committee of the
Company incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s actingmolicy related to the application of GAAP te Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
“Evaluation”); (2) restate the Company’s finan@tdtements for the period covering 2008 througHh.2@la result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”); and (3) investigate and ea#t any shareholder derivative demands arising the Evaluation and/or the Restatement
Filing (the “Investigation™); provided, however,ahFIDAC's obligation to pay expenses applies dalgxpenses not paid by the Company’s
insurers under its insurance policies. Expensab isiclude, without limitation, fees and costsun@d with respect to auditors, outside counsel,
and consultants engaged by the Company and/oruté &ommittee of the Company for the EvaluatioesRtement Filing and the
Investigation. The amount paid by FIDAC relatedhtese expenses for the quarters ended June 30aR0i12013 is $2 million and $3 million,
respectively, and is presented in the Consolid8tatements of Operations and Comprehensive Inchoss) as Expense recoveries from
Manager. The amount paid by FIDAC related to tleegeenses for the six months ended June 30, 2@l2Gk8 is $3 million and $5 million,
respectively. As of June 30, 2014, $2 milliontodéde expenses is included in other assets asiwatglesfrom FIDAC.

The Company is obligated to reimburse FIDAC fortsdscurred on the Company's behalf under the memagt agreement. In addition, the
management agreement permits FIDAC to require timapg2iny to pay for its pro rata portion of rentgp#one, utilities, office furniture,
equipment, machinery and other office, internal anerhead expenses that FIDAC incurred in conneatith the Company’s operations. These
expenses are allocated between FIDAC and the Conigesed on the ratio of the Company’s proportiogroks assets compared to the gross
assets managed by FIDAC as calculated at eacheqesud. FIDAC and the Company will modify thisoathtion methodology, subject to the
approval of the Company’s board of directors if éitlecation becomes inequitable (i.e., if the Comphecomes very highly leveraged compared
to FIDAC's other funds and accounts). During tharers and six months ended June 30, 2014 and gfd®ursements to FIDAC were not
significant.

RCap
On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrative services agreement with RCap Securities [‘RCap”). RCap is a SEC-registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aptlaat clears the Company’s securities tradegtuarn for normal and customary fees that

RCap charges for such services. RCap may alsaderbvokerage services to the Company from timtérie. During the quarters and six mon
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, fees paid to RCA® less than $1 million.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies
From time to time, the Company may become involmedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In connec
with certain re-securitization transactions engagdaly the Company, the Company has the obligatiwter certain circumstances to repurchase

assets from the VIE upon breach of certain reptaiens and warranties. Management is not awaamypftontingencies that require accrual or
disclosure as of June 30, 2014 and December 3B, 201

17. Subsequent Events

The Board of Directors has determined that thetebia quarterly dividend of $0.09 per share far third and fourth quarters of 2014.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we”“our”) financial condition and results of operattoshould be read in conjunction with the
consolidated financial statements and notes tcetetatements included in Iltem 1 of this quartezyort on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Theseafdlooking statements include informati

about possible or assumed future results of ounbss, financial condition, liquidity, results gferations, plans and objectives. When we use the
words “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” “intend,” “sho uld,” “may,” “would,” “will” or similar
expressions, we intend to identify forward-lookstgtements. Statements regarding the followingestd) among others, are forward-looking by

their nature:

ILINT

e  our business and investment strate

e our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts and our ability to obtain future financingasmgements
e our ability to timely file our periodic reports Withe Securities and Exchange Commission, or ¢

e  our expectations regarding materiality or significe;

e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls amat@dures

e material weaknesses in our internal controls owvericial reporting

e additional information that may arise from the @oegtion of our financial statemen

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal contooksr financial reporting of which we are not cuthgrmaware or which have not be
detected

e general volatility of the securities markets in efhive invest
e the impact of and changes to various governmergrars;

e our expected investmen

e changes in the value of our investme

e interest rate mismatches between our investmendt®anborrowings used to finance such purche
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e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepay st
e effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate investments
e rates of default, delinquencies or decreased regaaées on our investmen

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans lymoigrour mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, threo assebacked securities,
ABS;

e the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatili

e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikgters

e availability of investment opportunities in reatas-related and other securitie

e availability of qualified personne

e  estimates relating to our ability to make distribns to our stockholders in the futu

e our understanding of our competitic

e market trends in our industry, interest rates dibiet securities markets or the general econc

e our ability to maintain our classification as alrestate investment trust, or REIT, for federabime tax purposes; ai

e  our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act of 1940,masraded, or 1940 Ac
The forward-looking statements are based on ouefesehssumptions and expectations of our futurtopeance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoutut place undue reliance on these forward-lookiatestents. These beliefs, assumptions and
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownsoSome of these factors are described under
the caption “Risk Factors” in our 2013 Form 10-K.a change occurs, our business, financial dwrdiliquidity and results of operations may
vary materially from those expressed in our forwiamking statements. Any forward-looking statemgmeaks only as of the date on which it is
made. New risks and uncertainties arise from tionnte, and it is impossible for us to predict thevents or how they may affect us. Except as

required by law, we are not obligated to, and doimend to, update or revise any forward-lookitefements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.
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Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojp@asbn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctlirer indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgabaeked securities, or RMBS, residential mortgagedo commercial mortgage loans, real estate retzteatities
and various other asset classes. We are extematyaged by Fixed Income Discount Advisory Comparhich we refer to as FIDAC or our
Manager. FIDAC is a fixethcome investment management company that is ezgbtas an investment adviser with the SEC. FIALwholly
owned subsidiary of Annaly Capital Management,,lacAnnaly. FIDAC has a broad range of experignamanaging investments in Agency
RMBS, which are mortgage pass-through certificateBateralized mortgage obligations, or CMOs, atiter RMBS representing interests in or
obligations backed by pools of mortgage loans Bsueguaranteed by Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, andi&Mae, Non-Agency RMBS,
collateralized debt obligations, or CDOs, and otieat estate related investments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjusteturns to our investors over the long-term, grity through dividends and secondarily through
capital appreciation. We intend to achieve thigctive by investing in a diversified investmenttiaio of RMBS, residential mortgage loans,
real estate-related securities and various othsat atasses, subject to maintaining our REIT statusexemption from registration under the 1940
Act. The RMBS, ABS, CMBS, and CDOs we purchase maljude investment-grade and non-investment gcéases, including the BB-rated,
B-rated and non-rated classes.

We rely on our Manages’expertise in identifying assets within our taagget classes. Our Manager makes investmentatecisased on vario
factors, including expected cash yield, relativligarisk-adjusted returns, current and projectedit fundamentals, current and projected
macroeconomic considerations, current and projesuiegly and demand, credit and market risk conagatr limits, liquidity, cost of financing
and financing availability, as well as maintainimgr REIT qualification and our exemption from reégasion under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek kinmize the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined witlr Manager's experience, will enable us to pajdeinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credites and provide attractive long-term returnswestors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imeggs we have made and in which we may in theduhwest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS e Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and norestment grade classes, including the BB-
rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

e Agency RMBS
e Interes-only (“10”) RMBS

Residential Mortgage Loans e Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loartctirdorm to the underwriting guidelines of Fannie
Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to as Agencigd@ines; and jumbo prime mortgage loans,
which are mortgage loans that conform to the AgeBuaidelines except as to loan s

e Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have been originated using documentation
standards that are less stringent than the docatimmstandards applied by certain other first lien
mortgage loan purchase programs, such as the Adgauicglines, but have one or more compensating
factors such as a borrower with a strong crediortgage history or significant ass

e FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loang deemply with the underwriting guidelines of the
Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or DepartmehW¥eteran Affairs (VA) and which are
guaranteed by the FHA or VA, respectiv

e Mortgage servicing rights associated with resid¢énmortgage loans, which reflect the value of the

future stream of expected cash flows from the emttral rights to service a given pool of residdntia
mortgage loan
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Commercial Mortgage Loans e First or second lien loans secured by multifarpilgperties, which are residential rental properties
consisting of five or more dwelling units; and nmixeesidential or other commercial properties; tetai
properties; office properties; or industrial praps, which may or may not conform to the Agency
Guidelines

Other Asse-Backed Securities e CMBS
e Debt and equity tranches of CD(

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgeade and non-investment grade classes,
including the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Index options
e Mortgage option:

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawe focused our investment activities on acquiNeg-Agency and Agency RMBS and
on purchasing residential mortgage loans that baes originated by select originators, including tbtail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. At June 30, 2014, based onrtfeetezed cost balance of our interest earning asapproximately 70% of our investment
portfolio was Agency RMBS, 24% of our investmenttfmio was Non-Agency RMBS, and 6% of our investinportfolio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. At December 31, 20&8ed on the amortized cost balance of our inteegsing assets, approximately 36% of our
investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, 50% of owraatment portfolio was Non-Agency RMBS, and 14%waf investment portfolio was
securitized residential mortgage loans. Duringstsgond quarter of 2014, we increased our AgencB&HMoldings by $6.0 billion, primarily
financed with additional repurchase agreements.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakbamd other originators in which we
identified and re-underwrote residential mortgaggbk owned by such entities, and purchased andtsamlisuch residential mortgage loans. In
the past we have also acquired formerly AAA-ratexhdgency RMBS and immediately re-securitized theseurities. We sold the resulting
AAA-rated super senior RMBS and retained the ratedgnrated mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adgntd opportunities in the current interest ratd aredit environment. We expect to adjust our
strategy to changing market conditions by shiftiog asset allocations across these various asssed as interest rate and credit cycles change
over time. We believe that our strategy, combwét FIDAC’s experience, will enable us to pay dighds and achieve capital appreciation
throughout changing market cycles. We expectke talong-term view of assets and liabilities, andreported earnings and estimates of the fair
value of our investments at the end of a finanapbrting period will not significantly impact oabjective of providing attractive risk-adjusted
returns to our stockholders over the long-term.
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We use leverage to seek to increase our potestiains and to finance the acquisition of our ass@ts income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income weaaour assets and the cost of our borrowinge. eWpect to finance our investments using a
variety of financing sources including, when aualéga repurchase agreements, warehouse facilitésecuritizations. We may manage our debt
and interest rate risk by utilizing interest ragglges, such as interest rate swaps, caps, optidifsi@res to reduce the effect of interest rate
fluctuations related to our financing sources.

We have elected and believe we are organized areldgerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedtaxs a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income textaxable income that is distributed to stockbdd Furthermore, substantially all of our assets
consist of qualified REIT real estate assets (eftyipe described in Code Section 856(c)(5)). Weutate that at least 75% of our assets were
qualified REIT assets, as defined in the CodetHferquarters ended June 30, 2014 and the yeard Badember 31, 2013 and 2012. We also
calculate that our revenues qualified for the 75&TRncome test and for the 95% REIT income testlie quarter and six months ended Junt
2014 and for the years ended December 31, 2012@t®I We also met all REIT requirements regardiregownership of our common stock and
the distribution of our REIT taxable income. THere, for the quarter and six months ended Jun@@D4 and for the years ended December 31,
2013 and 2012, we believe that we qualified as A RIBder the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reduio invest a substantial majority of our
assets in loans secured by mortgages on real estateal estate-related assets. Subject to nraimgaour REIT qualification and our 1940 Act
exemption, we do not have any limitations on the@ants we may invest in any of our targeted asssseks.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentageun assets that will be invested in each assssabr whether we will invest in other classes
of investments. We may change our investmentegiyednd policies without a vote of our stockholders

Net Income Summary

The table below presents our net income on a GA#gtstfor the quarters and six months ended Jun203@, and 2013.
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Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:
(unaudited’

For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30,201 June 30,201 June 30, 201

Net Interest Income:

Interest incomi $ 49,05¢ $ 33,62¢ $ 84,51: $ 62,69¢
Interest expens (3,509 (1,629 (5,230 (3,462
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 85,26: 93,93¢ 170,47: 190,66
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (17,176 (24,987) (37,879 (51,979
Net interest income (expens 113,63t 100,95 211,88l 197,92(
Other-than-temporary impairments:

Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss: (3,819 - (4,219) -
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigerne (loss (1,539 - (2,669 (6,169
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (5,349 - (6,887 (6,169
Other gains (losses)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivati (22,49 13,17¢ (24,695 18,58(
Net realized gains (losses) on derivati (19,797 (5,399 (25,540 (10,927
Net gains (losses) on derivativ (42,289 7,781 (50,239 7,65¢
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS 5,791 (12,979 20,80: (13,987
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn (4,339 54,117 4,03¢ 54,12:
Gain on deconsolidatic 47,84¢ - 47,84¢ -
Loss on extinguishment of De - - (2,189 -
Total other gains (losse 7,00¢ 48,93( 20,26¢ 47,79¢
Net investment income (los 115,30( 149,88 225,26! 239,55:
Other expenses

Management fee 6,271 6,49¢ 12,49: 12,941
Expense recoveries from Mana (2,169 (3,315 (2,845 (5,170
Net management fe 4,107 3,18¢ 9,64 7,77
Provision for loan losses, n 214 (1,709 53¢ (2,279
General and administrative expen 6,21( 5,197 9,94¢ 10,04
Total other expense 10,53: 6,67 20,12¢ 16,54:
Income (loss) before income taxe 104,76¢ 143,20° 205,13¢ 223,01(
Income taxe: - - 2 2
Net income (loss $ 104,76¢ $ 143,200 $ 205,13 $ 223,00t

Our net income decreased by $38 million to $10%ianil or $0.10 per average basic common sharghéquarter ended June 30, 2014 as
compared to $143 million, or $0.14 per averagedasmmon share, for the quarter ended June 30, ZD4& decrease in earnings for the quarter
ended June 30, 2014 over the same period of 2Qd@sirily attributable to an increase in the I@ssa derivatives of $50 million, from an $8
million gain for the quarter ended June 30, 2018 $22 million loss for the quarter ended June2B@4. We have increased our derivative
positions as we have increased our repurchaseragnee  Additionally, as interest rates have dediduring the period, the realized and
unrealized losses on derivatives have increasedrapared to the same period of the prior year wimteeest rates were generally rising. The
increase in losses on derivatives of $50 milliopastially offset by increased interest income, aféhterest expense, of $13 million to $114
million for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 fror@3dnillion for the quarter ended June 30, 2013e Atrease in net interest income is primarily
due to increase in Agency RMBS during the secoraditquas the Company has increased leverage tm@xpa portfolio.

Our net income decreased by $18 million to $20%onil or $0.20 per average basic common sharegh#six months ended June 30, 2014 as
compared to $223 million, or $0.22 per averagedse@nmon share, for the six months ended June(@.2The decrease in earnings for the six
months ended June 30, 2014 over the same peri@@ldfis primarily attributable to an increase ia ksses on derivatives of $58 million, from
an $8 million gain for the six months ended JuneZB0 3 to a $50 million loss for the six monthseshdune 30, 2014. The cause for the incre
derivative losses is consistent with the quarter @uarter derivative losses. The increase irekss derivatives of $58 million is partially offse
by increased interest income, net of interest es@eof $14 million to $212 million for the six maistended June 30, 2014 from $198 million for
the six months ended June 30, 2013. The increasetiinterest income is primarily due to increagexthases of Agency RMBS during the
second quarter as the Company has increased levieragpand the portfolio. In addition, the losseglerivatives are offset by $35 million in
increased gains on interest-only RMBS from a $14ianiloss for the six months ended June 30, 2@18 $21 million gain for the six months
ended June 30, 2014. The fair values of Interebtiaovestments have generally increased duringithenonths ended June 30, 2014 as
prepayment are expected to decline in the futaeasing the value of interest-only securities.

We discuss the changes in our net income in grelatail in the discussion on our results of operatibelow.
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Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be tteby various factors, many of which are beyondommtrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the I@felur net interest income, the market value ofassets, and the supply of and demand for
assets. Economic trends, both macro as well & tthioectly affecting the residential housing mgrked the supply and demand of RMBS may
affect our operations and financial results. Wé® @valuate market information regarding curresidential mortgage loan underwriting criteria
and loan defaults to manage our portfolio of as$eterage, and debt. Our net interest incomechvieflects the amortization of purchase
premiums and accretion of discounts, varies priypas a result of changes in interest rates, bamgpwosts, credit impairment losses, and
prepayment speeds, which is a measurement of himklgborrowers pay down the unpaid principal baken their mortgage loans. Further
description of these factors is provided below.

Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Conatepaynent Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteegss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, arfteotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @artainty. In general, when interest rates
rise, it is relatively less attractive for borroweo refinance their mortgage loans, and as atrggsepayment speeds tend to decrease. When
interest rates fall, prepayment speeds tend teasa. For mortgage loan and RMBS investments psedhat a premium, as prepayment speeds
increase, the amount of income we earn decreaghe gsirchase premium on the bonds amortizes fémterexpected. Conversely, decreases in
prepayment speeds result in increased income anextand the period over which we amortize the lpase premium. For mortgage loan and
RMBS investments purchased at a discount, as pmegrayspeeds increase, the amount of income wergagases from the acceleration of the
accretion of the discount into interest income. v&wsely, decreases in prepayment speeds resudtieased income as the accretion of the
purchase discount into interest income occurs avenger period. Recently, the correlation betwiegrest rates and prepayment has not
followed normal trends for certain asset clasg2ge to economic hardship, some borrowers have beable to refinance their loans as
underwriting standards are more stringent and toediditions remain restrictive.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising intestes, rhoweve
increase our financing costs which may result imetinegative impact on our net interest incomeaddition, if we acquire Agency and Non-
Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly reset adjuktarate mortgages, or ARMs, and three- and yieaer hybrid ARMs, such interest r
increases could result in decreases in our netsiment income, as the increase in our adjustalie assets may increase slower thar
adjustable rate financing. We expect that ourdfisate assets would decline in value in a risingregerate environment and that our net ints
spreads on fixed rate assets could decline irirgristerest rate environment to the extent susketasare financed with floating rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringreésted NorAgency RMBS that have been downgraded becausefatiltein the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegslich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prich hat its lossdjusted return profile
in line with our targeted yields. We retain thekrof potential credit losses on all of the rest@@mortgage loans we hold in our portfolio ash
as all of the NorAgency RMBS. We attempt to mitigate credit risklie asset selection process. Prior to the puecblaimvestments, we cond
a creditrisk based analysis of the collateral securingiouestment that includes examining borrower charisttcs, geographic concentratic
current and projected delinquencies, current aojepred severities, and actual and expected pregatyspeeds among other characteristi
estimate expected losses. We also acquire assits wh believe to be of high credit quality.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as measimethe aggregate unpaid principal balance of cantgage loans

and aggregate principal balance of our mortgageeglsecurities and the other assets we own,dsadtsy revenue driver. Generally, as the size
of our investment portfolio grows, the amount dénest income we receive increases. The largesstment portfolio, however, may result in
increased expenses if we incur additional intezgpense to finance the purchase of our assets.
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Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Valu

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotadas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios based on
GAAP book value. The table and discussion belosg@nt our estimated economic book value. We cleand disclose this non-GAAP
measurement because we believe it representsiaraesbf the fair value of the assets we own oraéte to dispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. The estimated economic book value shaatdbe viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance !
GAAP.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitzatand re-securitization transactions where we liketermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeassits to the trusts, which issued tranches ars@nd subordinate notes or certificates. We sold
the senior tranches and therefore have no contirinrolvement in these trusts other than beingldetmf notes or certificates issued by the
trusts, with the same rights as other holders @fibtes or certificates, except as it relates ttaiceVIEs collateralized by loans held for
investment. As it relates solely to certain VIEfateralized by loans held for investment, we htheability to approve loan modifications and
determine the course of action to be taken asatagto loans in technical default, including wigetor not to proceed with foreclosure. The notes
and certificates we own that were issued by th&tdrare largely subordinated interests in thosggtruThe trusts have no recourse to our assets
other than pursuant to a breach by us of the tcdiosadocuments related to the transfer of thetagseus to the trusts, but are presented as if we
own 100% of the trust.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan siations, we present the pre-securitized assetsterred into the consolidated trusts in our
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as-Ngency RMBS transferred to consolidated variafierest entities or Securitized loans
held for investment. Post securitization RMBS tssseld are presented as liabilities in our Codstéid Statements of Financial Condition as
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMiBl Securitized debt, collateralized by loans feldnvestment. We have presented the
underlying securities we transferred to the trémtshe calculation of GAAP book value at fair valand recorded the corresponding liability for
the notes or certificates sold to third partiearabrtized cost. Fair value adjustments that atemalit related are recorded in Other
comprehensive income (loss). Credit related impairts are deemed other-than-temporary and are egtarcarnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into theégruge also present our estimated economic
book value. We believe this measure representsdtimated value of the securities issued by ttreses that we own. In contrast to GAAP book
value, our estimated economic book value considiglfsthe assets we own or are able to disposdeadgp, or otherwise monetize. To determine
our estimated economic book value, we consider tayfair value of the notes or certificates isshgdhe securitization and re-securitization
trusts that we actually own. Accordingly, our esited economic book value does not include assétbdities for which we have no direct
ownership, specifically the notes or certificatéthe securitization and re-securitization truktst were sold to third parties.

At June 30, 2014, the difference between GAAP hadie and estimated economic book value was detedrid be $266 million, or $0.26 per
share. At December 31, 2013, the difference betv@®AP book value and estimated economic book vatas determined to be $438 million,
$0.42 per share. This difference is primarily driby the value of the RMBS assets we have retamtse re-securitization transactions as
compared to the value of consolidated loans andrisies net of RMBS assets sold, but treated a&cared financing and recorded at amortized
cost on the statement of financial condition. Hese re-securitization transactions, we have giyeetained the subordinated, typically non-
rated, first loss notes or certificates issuedhgydecuritization trusts. These securities arepbamtypically locked out as to principal repayrhen
relatively illiquid, and do not necessarily appegeior depreciate in tandem with the broader Noardg RMBS market or with the loans on
securities owned by the trusts. As the seniormpéy off, we expect the difference between ouneroc and our GAAP book value to
decrease. The tables below present the adjustie@8AP book value that we believe are necessaagdequately reflect our calculation of
estimated economic book value as of June 30, 20dDacember 31, 2013.
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June 30, 201

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Estimated
GAAP Book Economic Boo
Value Adjustments Value

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 230,46! $ 289,79¢ $ 520,26

Senior intere-only 220,13: 74,28¢ 294,41!

Subordinate( 485,54 1,374,46. 1,860,00!

Subordinated intere-only 15,60¢ 193 15,80:

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 2,682,30: (2,682,30) -
Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Pas-through 7,976,92. - 7,976,92.

Interes-only 38,621 - 38,621
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alase for loan losse 714,47: (714,47) -
Other asset 201,83¢ - 201,83¢
Total asset $ 1256591 $ (1,658,04) $ 10,907,87
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RM 5,564,55. - 5,564,55.
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 787,16:. (787,167 -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldrieestmeni 604,65! (604,65 -
Other liabilities (1) 2,168,84! - 2,168,84!
Total liabilities 9,125,211 (1,391,81) 7,733,39!
Total stockholders' equit 3,440,70: (266,22:) 3,174,47
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 12,56591 $ (1,658,04) $ 10,907,87
Book Value Per Shal $ 3.3 $ 0.2 $ 3.0¢

(1) Primarily payable for investments purchas

December 31, 201

(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

Estimated
GAAP Book Economic Boo
Value Adjustments Value

Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Senior $ 89,687 $ 12,36¢ $ 102,05:

Senior intere-only 229,06! 116,95: 346,01¢

Subordinate( 457,56¢ 1,593,92. 2,051,49:

Subordinated intere-only 16,57 28C 16,85

RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 2,981,57. (2,981,57) -
Agency RMBS, at fair valu

Pas-through 1,954,791 - 1,954,791

Interes-only 42,78: - 42,78
Securitized loans held for investment, net of allase for loan losse 783,48 (783,489 -
Other asset 380,55¢ - 380,55¢
Total asset $ 6,936,088 $ (2,04153) $ 4,894,54i
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, RM 1,658,56. - 1,658,56.
Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS 933,73: (933,73) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldfigestmen: 669,98: (669,98) -
Other liabilities 342,29 - 342,29
Total liabilities 3,604,57 (1,603,71) 2,000,85!
Total stockholders' equil 3,331,51! (437,827 2,893,68!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 6,936,08. $ (2,041,53) $ 4,894,54




Book Value Per Shal $ 324 % (0.42) $ 2.82
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Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vabifehe securities issued by the trusts which we anah can freely sell or pledge. Should we
the assets in our portfolio, we may realize maligrdifferent proceeds from the sale than we hastéreated as of the reporting date.

The calculation of estimated economic book valusedeed above is used by management to underdiarfdit value of the assets we own anc
liabilities for which we are legally obligated, aigpresented for informational use only. Thenmeated economic book value should not be vie
in isolation and is not a substitute for book vatoenputed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the six months ended June 30, 2014, on greggte basis, we purchased $4.5 billion, sold $8dl®n, and received $347 million in
principal payments related to our Agency RMBS, Marency RMBS, and loans held for investment. Initgid, we used $219 million of
proceeds from our assets to repay principal orseauritized debt during this same period.

The following table summarizes certain charactesstf our portfolio at June 30, 2014 and Decen®ier2013.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2013
Interest earning assets at pe-end (1) $ 12,364,07 $ 6,555,52!
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 6,956,37 $ 3,262,27.
Leverage at peric-end 2.6:1 1.0:1
Leverage at peric-end (recourse 2.4:1 0.5:1
Portfolio Composition, at amortized c«

Non-Agency RMBS 23.5% 49.8%
Senior 1.% 1.5%
Senior, interest onl 2.2% 5.1%
Subordinatec 3.C% 6.C%
Subordinated, interest on 0.1% 0.2%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 16.2% 36.9%

Agency RMBS 70.1% 36.1%
Pas-through 69.7% 35.2%
Interes-only 0.4% 0.8%

Securitized loan 6.4% 14.1%

Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 88.(% 76.2%

Adjustable-rate percentage of portfol 12.(% 23.1%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
The following table presents details of each aslssts in our portfolio at June 30, 2014 and DecerBbhe2013. The principal or notional value

represents the interest income earning balanceatf elass. The weighted average figures are weighy each investment’s respective
principal/notional value in the asset class.
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June 30, 201

Principal o Weightec Weightec Weightec Principal
Notional Average Average Average Weightec Writedown:
Value at Weighted Weightec Yield at 3 Month 12 Montt Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnd Average Average Weightec Period- CPRat CPRat Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in Amortizec Fair  Average End Period- Period- Delinquenc' Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basii Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhanceme! thousands
Nonr-Agency Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 31754: $ 68.72 $ 72.5¢ 1.5% 5.C% 9.2% 11.(% 32.1%  73.2% 9.6% $ 71€
Senior,
interest only $5,605,322$ 4.51 $ 3.9: 1€% 1286 13.5% 14.&% 21.(%  52.2% 0.C%$ -
Subordinatec $ 807,22: $ 42.3¢ $ 60.1f 3.0% 13.1% 15.1% 18.1% 17.2%  49.(% 12.2%$ 5,63¢
Subordinated
interestonly $ 266,76t $ 5.01 $ 5.8t 11% 11.% 10.% 16.1% 14.2%  46.2% 0.C%$ -
RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
VIEs $3,471,22: $ 54.02 $ 78.9¢ 4€% 16.9% 10.4% 12.9% 24.%  57.5% 1.2%%$ 27,59¢
Agency
Mortgage-
Backed
Securities
Pas-through $7,522,10: $ 104.9¢ $106.5¢ 3.8% 3.1% 7.7% 9.€% NA NA 0.C% $ -
Interes-only $ 219,30: $ 18.8: $ 17.61] 3.2% 4.8% 9.2% 9.% NA NA 0.C%$ -
Securitized
loans $ 707,67 $ 102.1¢ $ 99.4( 4.7% 3.8% 15.8% 20.5% 1.5% 21.9% 17.5%$ 612
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daliging widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, 1-month loss, etc.
December 31, 201
Principal o Weightec Weightec Weightec Principal
Notional Average Average Average Weighted Weightec Writedown:
Value at Weighted Weightec Yield at 3 Month 12 Montt Average Average Weighted During
PeriodEnd Average Average Weightec Period- CPRat CPR at Delinquency Loss Average Period
(dollars in Amortizec Fair  Average End Period- Period- Pipeline Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands Cost Basii Value Coupon (1) End End 60+ (2) Enhanceme thousands
Nonr-Agency Mortgage-Backed
Securities
Senior $ 128,21°$ 69.27 $ 69.9¢ 1.4% 5% 12.1% 15.1% 38.%  63.2% 8.2% $ 297
Senior, intere
only $5,742,78. $ 4.9 $ 3.9¢ 14% 17.2% 15.2% 16.8% 19.% 51.1% 0.C%$ -
Subordinatec $ 830,63: $ 40.9¢ $ 55.0¢ 2% 13.52% 17.(% 19.¢% 16.2%  49.¢% 12.€%$ 6,56¢
Subordinated,
interestonly $ 274,46:$ 53/ $ 6.04 1.7% 9.C% 17.(% 18.1% 15.06  45.(% 0.C% $ -
RMBS
transferred to
consolidated
VIEs $3,912,371'$ 54.17 $ 77.8- 47%  15.&8% 11.%% 14.% 25.8%  57.%% 1.6%$ 34,38¢
Agency
Mortgage-
Backed
Securities
Pas-through $1,898,13 $ 104.5: $105.2¢ 3.6% 3.2% 7.7%  18.2% NA NA 0.C%$ -
Interes-only $ 247,34: $ 17.6¢ $ 17.3( 3.2% 5.2% 9.6% 17.% NA NA 0.C%$ -
Securitized loan$ 776,07« $ 102.1: $ 98.2¢ 4.7% 3.5% 18.2% 36.%% 1.5% 22.°% 16.2% $ (6)

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weighteeefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to daligjng widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, 1-month loss, etc.

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgeR®IBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldmspurchase discount expected to be accretedniteiest income, and a portion is designated as
Nonr-Accretable Difference, which represents the cottigqrincipal on the security that is not expedtete collected. The amount designate
Non-Accretable Difference may be adjusted over tingseddl on the actual performance of the securitynitierlying collateral, actual and
projected cash flow from such collateral, econooginditions and other factors. If the performanca e&curity is more favorable than previously
estimated, a portion of the amount designated asAbzretable Difference may be accreted into irgeiecome over time. Conversely, if the
performance of a security is less favorable thavipusly estimated, the amounts designated as Nmnefable Difference may increase, resulting
in an OTTI loss



The following table presents changes to AccretBlideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it paegdo our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts dutigprevious five quarters.

For the Quarter Ende
December 31, September 30,
June 30, 201. March 31, 201 2013 2013 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand
Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of peric $ 990,20: $ 996,69 $ 1,012,510 $ 1,026,92. $ 1,088,15
Accretion of discoun (42,10) (40,309 (40,817 (40,00 (40,042
Purchase (6,77%) 18,81 - - -
Sales and deconsolidation
(669) (3,849 - (6,655 (46,125
Transfers from credit reser 17,13¢ 31,66¢ 28,96: 35,05¢ 30,74«
Transfers to credit reser (6,48¢) (12,82¢) (3,969) (2,80¢6) (5,81%)
Balance, end of peric $ 951,30 $ 990,20: $ 996,69: $ 1,01251. $ 1,026,922

For the Quarter Ende
December 31, September 30,
June 30, 201 March 31, 201 2013 2013 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand
Non-Accretable Differenc

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,171,123 $ 1,217,790 $ 1,261,94 $ 1,370,790 $ 1,464,55
Principal Writedown: (41,15Y) (47,079 (41,709 (93,05¢) (68,83%)
Purchase (6,773) 18,81 - - -
Sales and deconsolidati (71,389 (1,099 - - -
Net othe-than-temporary credit
impairment losse 5,343 1,53¢ 22,54¢ 16,45¢ -
Transfers from credit reser (17,139 (31,66¢) (28,967) (35,059 (30,74
Transfers to credit reser 6,48¢ 12,82¢ 3,96¢ 2,80¢ 5,81%
Balance, end of peric $ 104651 $ 1,171,13 $ 1,217,79 $ 1,261,994 $ 1,370,79
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in accordariteagcounting principles generally accepted inlimited States, or GAAP, which requires the
use of estimates and assumptions. Managementd$massded and reviewed the development, selectidndianlosure of critical accounting
estimates with the Company’s Audit Committee. Mamagnt believes that the most critical accountingcigs and estimates, since these
estimates require significant judgment, are intareome and other-than-temporary impairment, omfQ®n Non-Agency RMBS, the
determination of the appropriate accounting modeNon-Agency RMBS, the impact of default and psapant assumptions on RMBS, and fair
value measurements. Financial results could berratyalifferent if other methodologies were usadfonanagement modified its assumptions.

For a discussion of the Company’s critical accougpolicies and estimates, see “Critical Accounfudicies and Estimates” in Part Il, Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations” included ia @ompany’s Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Recent Accounting Pronouncemen

Refer to Note 2(q) in the Notes to ConsolidatechRaial Statements for a discussion of accountindaguce recently adopted by the Company.
Results of Operations for the Quarters and Six Mortis Ended June 30, 2014 and 2013

Our primary source of income is interest incomeedron our assets. Our economic net interest in@gmals interest income excluding interest
earned on cash and cash equivalents less integemtge and realized losses on our interest rageed-or the purpose of computing economic
net interest income and ratios relating to cosunéls measures throughout this section, intergetese includes net payments on our interest rate
swaps, which is presented as a part of Realizaws dlisses) on derivatives in our ConsolidatedeBtahts of Operations and Comprehensive
Income. Interest rate hedges are used to managedtease in interest paid on repurchase agresrireatrising rate environment. Presenting the
net contractual interest payments on interesthatiges with the interest paid on interest-bearatglities reflects our total contractual interest
payments. We believe this presentation is usefinestors because this presentation depictsabreoenic value of our investment strategy, by
showing actual interest expense and net interestme. Where indicated, interest expense, inclutiitegest payments on interest rate hedges, is
referred to as economic interest expense. Whelieated, net interest income reflecting interegtpents on interest rate hedges, is referred to as
economic net interest income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAmeasurements reflected in the Management’s Gignuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Net
Realized Realized
Losses on Losses on Economic
GAAP GAAP Interest Economic GAAP Net Interest Net
Interest Interest Rate Interest Interest Rate Interest
Income Expense Hedges Expense Income Hedges Income (1)
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 13431t $ 2068( $ 12,060 $ 32,74 $ 11363¢ $ 12,06 $ 101,57
For the Quarter Ended March 31,2( $ 120,66° $ 2242t $ 565( $ 28,07 $ 9824. & 565( $ 92,58t¢
For the Quarter Ended December 31,
2013 $ 128,06 $ 2148 $ 5477 $ 26,96: $ 10657 $ 5477 $ 101,09:
For the Quarter Ended September 30,
2013 $ 130,36 $ 2507+ $ 545¢ $ 30,53 $ 10528 $ 545¢ $ 99,82
For the Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 12756 $ 2661 $ 5391 $ 3200 $ 10095 $ 5391 $ 9555

(1) Excludes interest income on cash and cash
equivalents

Economic Net Interest Incom

The table below shows our average earning assketsitierest earned on assets, yield on averageesitearning assets, average debt balance,
economic interest expense, economic average c@shd$, economic net interest income, and netéstarate spread for the periods presented.
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For the Quarter Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning asset? ):

Agency RMBS $3,351,22! $ 29,21° 3.4% $1,81533° $ 17,30 3.81%

Non-Agency RMBS 829,49( 19,83t 9.56% 646,72" 16,31( 10.0%

Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated

VIEs 1,934,641 76,89¢ 15.9% 2,322,90! 85,49: 14.7%%

Securitized loans held for investme 740,12. 8,36¢ 4.52% 1,014,21 8,44 3.3%%
Total $6,855,47 $ 134,31« 7.84% $5,799,17' $ 127,55: 8.8(%
Liabilities and stockholders' equit

Interes-bearing liabilities

Agency Repurchase Agreemer?) $2,883,89. $ 14,78¢ 2.05% $1,44925 $ 7,02 1.94%

Non-Agency Repurchase Agreeme 170,84 777 1.82% - - -

Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency

RMBS 807,91: 10,86 5.38% 1,185,02! 18,18: 6.14%

Securitized debt, collateralized by lo: 620,92: 6,311 4.07% 882,41¢ 6,80( 3.0&%
Total $4,483,57. $ 32,74: 2.92% $3,516,691 $ 32,00: 3.64%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael $ 101,57: 4.92% $ 95,55! 5.16%
Net interest-earning assets/net interest margit $2,371,90 5.95% $2,282,48. 6.5%
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest bearin
liabilities 1.5¢ 1.65

(1) Interest earning assets at amortized cash
(2) Interest includes cash paid on swaps

For the Six Months Ende

June 30, 201 June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Average Average Average Average
Balance Interest Yield/Cost Balance Interest Yield/Cost
Assets:
Interes-earning asset? ):

Agency RMBS $2,647,221 $ 45,257 3.42% $1,783,75. $ 30,79. 3.45%

Non-Agency RMBS 795,32: 39,24° 9.87% 639,53¢ 31,87¢ 9.97%

Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated

VIEs 1,981,63 154,30¢ 155% 2,360,95 174,33: 14.7%

Securitized loans held for investm 757,59 16,16/ 4.27% 1,113,39 16,33: 2.92%
Total $6,181,78 $ 254,97 8.25% $5,897,64. $ 253,33: 8.5%
Liabilities and stockholders' equit

Interes-bearing liabilities

Agency Repurchase Agreemer?) $2,273,02. $ 22,16¢ 1.95% $1,475,51. $ 14,38 1.95%

Nor-Agency Repurchase Agreeme 86,37 177 1.8(% - - -

Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency

RMBS 849,85: 26,01¢ 6.12% 1,235,43 37,25: 6.02%

Securitized debt, collateralized by lo¢ 637,27! 11,85¢ 3.72% 978,18 14,72¢ 3.01%
Total $3,846,52. $ 60,81¢ 3.16% $3,689,13. $ 66,36: 3.6(%
Net economic interest income/net interest rate spael $ 194,16: 5.0% $ 186,97: 4.9%
Net interest-earning assets/net interest margi $2,335,26! 6.28% $2,208,51. 6.3%%

Ratio of interesi-earning assets to interest bearin
liabilities 1.61 1.6C




(1) Interest earning assets at amortized cash
(2) Interest includes cash paid on swaps

Our net economic interest income increased by $iomio $102 million for the quarter ended June 3014 from $96 million for the same peri

of 2013. Our net interest rate spread, which exjtie yield on our average assets less the ecoramiage cost of funds decreased by 24 basis
points for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as cadpa the same period of 2013. The net interesgim, which equals the net economic inte
income as a percentage of the net average baléioce imterest-earning assets less our interestiigeéiabilities, decreased by 66 basis points for
the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as compared sathe period of 2013. Our net interest margin dedlidue to the increase of repurchase
agreements, as adjusted by our interest rate heglg@ge increased our Agency RMBS holdings. Thenterest margin on our Agency RMBS
portfolio is lower than the net interest marginaam Non-Agency RMBS portfolio. While our total @rest earning assets and interest income has
increased, contributing to our increased net ecanorterest, the net interest margin is diluted tlubower average yields on our portfolio.

49




Our net economic interest income increased by $ifomio $194 million for the six months ended Ji8t 2014 from $187 million for the same
period of 2013. Our net interest rate spread, wbiguals the yield on our average assets lesstmomic average cost of funds increased by 10
basis points for the six months ended June 30, a8 bmpared to the same period of 2013. Thentexest margin, which equals the net
economic interest income as a percentage of thaveeage balance of our interest-earning asset®lesinteresbearing liabilities, decreased b
basis points for the six months ended June 30, a8Tbmpared to the same period of 2013. Thergeiliour net interest margin for the six
month period is consistent with the decline fordoarter; however, as the increase in Agency RMBrapurchase agreements occurred during
the quarter ended June 30, 2014, the impact osixhmonth period is less significant.

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yit

Our average interest-earning assets increased.byb#llon, or 18%, for the quarter ended JuneZL4 as compared to the same period of 2013
as the yield on our Non-Agency RMBS and securitipeahs is higher for the six months ended Jun€804 as compared to the same period of
2013. Our interest earned on assets increased bylfon, or 5%, for the quarter ended June 3A,428s compared to the same period of

2013. The increase in our interest income is pilgndue the increase in our interest-earning @sastwe continue to increase our Agency RMBS
portfolio through the second quarter of 2014. Viedd on our interest-earning assets decreased laSis points to a yield of 7.84% for the
quarter ended June 30, 2014 from 8.80% for thetguanded June 30, 2013. The decrease in ounjetdlis due to the shift in investments from
a majority of Non-Agency RMBS and loans to lowezlgling Agency RMBS. While the increase of $1.%idnil average investments in Agency
RMBS has increased investment income, it has ebita lower overall investment yield on our tqiattfolio. The investment mix change is
due to the decision by management to increasedgeaand Agency RMBS to increase total interestnirecon our portfolio.

Our average interest-earning assets increased8zyélion, or 5%, for the six months ended JuneZ14 as compared to the same period of
2013. Our interest earned on assets increased bylon or 0.6%, for the quarter ended June 3, Las compared to the same period of
2013. The increase is a result of the increasegtdge invested in Agency RMBS as discussed alsoess prevalent on the six month period as
the majority of the purchases occurred during dwsd quarter of 2014. We expect that going fodvearr overall year-to-date interest income
will increase and our total yield will decreasenisar to what has occurred in the quarter to deseilts.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Fur

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typaaliglated to LIBOR and the term of the
financing. The table below shows our average bogtbfunds, economic interest expense, averageotfshds (inclusive of realized losses on
interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBOR a@eesix-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBOR re&atb average six-month LIBOR, and
average cost of funds relative to average onesaadnonth LIBOR.

Average Average Average
One-Month  Cost of Cost of

LIBOR Funds Funds
Average Relative to Relative to Relative to
Average Economic Average One- Average Average Average Average
Debt Interest Cost of Month  Six-Month  Six-Month  OneMonth  Six-Month
Balance Expense (I Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended June &

2014 $4,483,57. $ 32,74: 2.92% 0.15% 0.32% (0.17%) 2.71% 2.6(%
For The Quarter Ended March

31, 2014 $3,145,02! $ 28,07¢ 3.57% 0.16% 0.32% (0.171%) 3.41% 3.24%
For The Quarter Ended

December 31, 201 $3,285,58: $ 26,96 3.28% 0.17% 0.35% (0.1&%) 3.11% 2.9%%
For The Quarter Ended

September 30, 201 $3,360,50: $ 30,53: 3.62% 0.1<% 0.3%% (0.2(%) 3.44% 3.24%
For The Quarter Ended June &

2013 $3,516,69: $ 32,00: 3.64% 0.2(% 0.42% (0.22%) 3.44% 3.22%
(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interats

swaps.

Average interest-bearing liabilities increased Bg&million, or 28%, for the quarter ended JuneZ®,4 as compared to the same period of
2013. Economic interest expense increased byHess$1 million for the quarter ended June 30, 284 dompared to the same period of

2013. The increase in average interest-bearibgitias is a result of the increase in leveragerfrepurchase agreements entered into during the
second quarter of 2014, offset by declines in ecustized debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMB18l éoans. While our average interest-
bearing liabilities increased, we did not obserginailar increase in interest expense as the higherage interest-bearing liabilities was offset by
lower interest rates in the second quarter of 2&1dompared to the same period of 2013. The lowexest rates is due to lower securitized debt
balances, which generally have a higher rate teparchase agreements, as well as declines in LIB®Rg the six month period ended June 30,
2014 as compared to the same period of the pren. y&s our securitized debt balances repay, ougived average costs of funds should
decline. We note that average one-month and sitimdBOR are down 10 basis points and 5 basistpainthe second quarter of 2014 as
compared to the same period of 2013.
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Average interest-bearing liabilities increased kg B million, or 4%, for the six months ended Juie2014 as compared to the same period of
2013. Economic interest expense decreased by I$6rmor 8%, for the six months ended June 30,4284 compared to the same period of
2013. The increase in average interest-bearibgitias is a result of the increase in leveragmfrepurchase agreements entered into during the
second quarter of 2014, offset by declines in egustized debt collateralized by Non-Agency RMB18l é0ans. Economic interest expense
declined as the lower LIBOR interest rates andideslin our securitized debt offset the increagbénaverage interest-bearing liabilities.

Net otherthan-temporary credit impairment losses

OTTI losses are generated when fair values debkf@wv our amortized cost basis, an unrealized brsd the expected future cash flows decline
from prior periods, an adverse change. When a@alined loss and an adverse change in cash flogs,oge will recognize an OTTI loss in
earnings. In addition, if we intend to sell a g@guor believe we will be required to sell, a saty in an unrealized loss position, we will
recognize an OTTI loss in earnings equal to thealimed loss.

OTTI losses were $5 million for the quarter endedel30, 2014. There were no OTTI losses for tletquended June 30, 2013. OTTI losses
were $7 million and $6 million for the six monthsded June 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Asrg 30, 2014, we had two securities in an
unrealized loss position for which we did not retiag impairment. We intend to hold these secwitietil they recover their amortized cost. (
of these securities has been in a continuous upeeddbss position for greater than twelve mont#Ae continue to monitor our investment
portfolio and will impair all investments in an @alized loss position for which we do not believewill recover our amortized cost prior to
maturity or sale.

Net gains (losses) on derivativ
The table below shows a summary of our gain (loegjerivative instruments, net for the quarters siradnonths ended June 30, 2014 and 2013.
For the Quarter Ende For the Six Months Ende
June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201 June 30, 201

Periodic interest cost of interest rate swaps, nel $ (12,06) $ (5,390 $ (17,71) $ (10,927
Realized gain on derivative instruments, |

Mortgage Option: 1,05(C - 1,65 -
Treasury Futures (8,787) - (9,482) -
Total realized gain (loss) on derivative instrunse
net (7,730 - (7,829 -
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments, |
Interest Rate Sway (29,839 13,17¢ (15,769 18,58(
Mortgage Option: 3,59: - 4,33¢ -
Treasury Futures (6,256 - (13,269 -
Total unrealized gain (loss) on derivative
instruments, net: (22,49) 13,17¢ (24,695 18,58(
Total gain (loss) on derivative instruments, net $ (42,289 $ 7,781 $ (50,23%) $ 7,65¢

Our derivative portfolio includes interest rate paaTreasury futures, and mortgage opti@nging the second quarter of 2014, we entered2idt
new interest rate swap agreements with a noticalakevof $2.0 billion. We also increased our Treg$utures positions by $680 million of

notional value during the second quarter of 20h& fiew swaps and Treasury futures are all relatéfietincrease in Agency RMBS financed
primarily with new repurchase agreements. As altre$the increase in derivative positions and thuélling interest rates in the quarter ended
June 30, 2014 and rising rates in the same pefititeqrior year, we recognized net losses on dévigs of $42 million compared to gains of $8
million, respectively. The net gains and losseswnderivatives include both unrealized and realigains and losses. Realized gains and losses
include the net cash paid and received on ourdsteate swaps during the period as well as sakksettlements of our Treasury futures and
mortgage options. Unrealized gains and lossesdedhe change in market value, period over pedndyur derivatives portfolio. We may or

may not ultimately realize these unrealized derreagjains and losses depending on trade activlignges in interest rates and the values of the
underlying securities.
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Our interest rate swaps are primarily used to ecocally hedge the effects of changes in interesisran our portfolio specifically our floating

rate debt. Therefore, we included the periodieriggt costs of the interest rate swaps for thetepsaaind six month periods ended June 30, 2014
and 2013 on these economic hedges in our presantateconomic interest expense and economic teest income and our net interest spreads
and margins in the tables above. As we do not &demccount for these as hedges for GAAP predentaie present these gains and losses
separately in the consolidated statements of dpasand comprehensive income. The increase inghperiodic interest cost of the interest rate
swaps are primarily due to declines in interestggear over year.

Treasury futures are not included in our economtierest expense and economic net interest incoifealso do not include any gains or losse
our mortgage options in our economic interest egpeand economic net interest income as the mortggatigns were sold for income generation
and not as an economic hedge for changes in int@tes in our portfolio. As we identify opporttias in mortgage backed securities market, we
may from time to time purchase or sell mortgageomgt including both call and put options to takeantage of these opportunities. The realized
gains on our mortgage options for the quarter anchenths ended June 30, 2014 was less than $®milWe had no mortgage options during
the quarter and six months ended June 30, 2013.

Net unrealized gains (losses) on inter-only RMBS

Unrealized gains and losses on our Agency and Ngengy 10 RMBS portfolio represent the change inyalue the security from the prior
period. All unrealized gains and losses on ournggeand Non-Agency IO RMBS portfolio are reflectecearnings. During the quarter ended
June 30, 2014, we recorded $6 million in unrealigaiths on our 10 portfolio, compared to unrealiexbes of $13 million for the quarter ended
June 30, 2013. During the six months ended Jun2@®0, we recorded $21 million in unrealized gansur 10 portfolio, compared to
unrealized losses of $14 million for the quartedeshJune 30, 2013.

10 securities represent the right to receive therast on a pool of mortgage backed securitiefydimg both Agency and Non-Agency mortgage
pools. The fair value of IO RMBS securities aravily impacted by changes in expected prepayméesraVhen 10 securities prepay, the ho

of the 10 security will receive less interest oa thvestment due to the reduced principal. Prepaymates on our portfolio of IO RMBS securi
have declined for the quarter and six months edded 30, 2014 as compared to the same periodd8f Zlhe declines in observed and expected
prepayment rates on |0 RMBS have resulted in ise@dair values and higher unrealized gains reeeghin earnings.

Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets and Loss dngaishment of securitized debt

Net realized losses on sales of investments weraifién for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 comgdo realized gains of $54 million for t
same period of the prior year. Net realized gamsales of investments were $4 million for thersbnths ended June 30, 2014 compared to
realized gains of $54 million for the same periéthe prior year.

We do not forecast sales of investments as we giyexpect to invest for long term gains, howeem time to time, we may sell assets to
achieve targeted leverage ratios as well as forsgahen prices indicate a sale is most benefigiakt or is the most prudent course of action to
maintain a targeted risk adjusted yield for ourestors.

During the second quarter of 2014, we recognizedrdlion of gains on sales on $284 million of hioigs related to consolidated VIEs. The gain
on sale of VIE assets is included in Gain on deacliatetion.

During the first quarter of 2014, the company pasgd $54 million of securitized debt collateralibychon-agency RMBS for cash payments of
$56 million. When the Company acquires its outditag debt, it extinguishes the outstanding debtracdgnizes a gain or loss based on the
difference between the carrying value of the deldtthe cost to acquire the debt. This acquisitésulted in a net loss of $2 million which is
reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Opematand Comprehensive Income as a loss on extingeishof debt during the six months ended
June 30, 2014. The Company did not purchase atsyamaing debt of its consolidated VIEs during g@rter or six months ended June 30, 2
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Net Management Fees and General and Administratiegenses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses agpewead to average total assets and
average equity for the periods presented.

Total Total

Total Management Fee Management Fee
Management Fee and G&A and G&A

and G&A Expenses/Total Expenses/Average

Expense:! Assets Equity

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 10,31" 0.42% 1.22%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 9,27¢ 0.54% 1.11%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 8,96¢ 0.51% 1.04%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 9,11 0.51% 1.01%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2! $ 8,38( 0.4€% 0.92%

We incurred management fees of $6 million for eafcthe quarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,atdsgg. We also recognized
reimbursements from our manager related to the detemanagement agreement of $2 million and $3anifior the quarters ended June 30, :
and 2013. We incurred management fees of $12omilind $13 million for the six months ended June?Bd4 and 2013, respectively. We
recognized reimbursements from our manager retatdte amended management agreement of $3 milfidr$& million for the six months end
June 30, 2014 and 2013. The management fee id baseur stockholders’ equity as defined in theeBtment management agreement. See
further discussion of the management fee, includmgndments to the management agreement, as vatiersagreements with our Manager in
our discussion of related party transactions below.

G&A expenses were $6 million and $5 million for tingarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 and $li6mfilr both of the six month periods
ended June 30, 2014 and 2013. Our G&A expenseasreavained consistent period over period.

Provision for Loan Losse

The provision for loan losses related to our séized loans held for investment represents managenestimate of expected future losses on the
securitized loans held. The provision in 2014 ided by an insignificant amount. We do not exgéghificant changes in our loan loss provision
as the total loans held for investment portfoliatimues to decline as a result of principal repayisie

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equ

The table below shows our economic net interestritg; realized gains (losses) on sale of assettharatedit related OTTI, realized and
unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate swagh$@s total management fee and G&A expenses,raaiie tax, each as a percentage of average
equity, and the return on average equity for thégs presented.

Realized and
Unrealized Gains

Realized Gains (Losses) on Total
Economic Net (Losses) on Interest Rate Management Fee
Interest Sales and Swaps and & G&A
Income/Average  OTTI/Average IOs/Average  Expenses/AverageReturn on Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity
(Ratios have been annualiz¢

For The Quarter Ended June 30 12.00% (1.17%) 2.55% (1.22%) 12.38%
2014
For The Quarter Ended March 3 11.04% 0.78% 1.31% (1.11%) 11.98%
2014
For The Quarter Ended Decemt 13.13% (3.12%) 1.55% (1.04%) 8.39%
31, 201%
For The Quarter Ended Septem 11.33% 0.27% (3.10%) (1.01%) 7.49%
30, 201z
For The Quarter Ended June 30 10.50% 6.14% 0.02% (0.92%) 15.73%
2013

* Includes effect of realized losses on interett gEvaps.

Our net income was $105 million and $143 milliontlee quarters ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, tesggc Economic net interest income as a
percentage of average equity increased by 150 pesits for the quarter ended June 30, 2014 as amdo the same period of 2013. The
increase in our economic net interest income ayeeptage of average equity is due to an increeisgarest earned on assets over the prior

year. The return on average equity decreased By&8is points for the quarter ended June 30, 28Tbmpared to the same period of 2013. The
decrease in our return on average equity is priyndude to lower income as a result of higher remiand unrealized losses on derivative
instruments, offset in part by higher net inteiesbme.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieets, including ongoing commitments to repay arrdwings, purchase RMBS, mortgage
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay dimis and other general business needs. Our m@irstiprces of capital and funds for additional
investments primarily include earnings from ourastments, borrowings under securitizations aneecet#tizations, repurchase agreements and
other financing facilities, and proceeds from egoftferings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundsenfdinm of repurchase agreements and, subject
to market conditions, other types of financing.eTarms of the repurchase transaction borrowinggmuour master repurchase agreements
generally conform to the terms in the standard emaspurchase agreement as published by the Sesunitiustry and Financial Markets
Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, margin regaents and the segregation of all securities awe linitially sold under the repurchase
transaction. In addition, each lender typicallguiees that we include supplemental terms and tiongi to the standard master repurchase
agreement. Typical supplemental terms and comditioclude changes to the margin maintenance esgeints, cross default provisions, required
haircuts (or the percentage that is subtracted flenvalue of RMBS that collateralizes the finaggjrpurchase price maintenance requirements,
and requirements that all disputes related togpenchase agreement be litigated or arbitratedorticular jurisdiction. These provisions may
differ for each of our lenders.

We expect to meet our short term liquidity needsdbying on the cash flows generated by our investt:i These cash flows are primarily
comprised of monthly principal and interest payrsaeteived on our investments. We may also selinmestments and utilize those proceeds to
meet our short term liquidity needs or enter ima-necourse financing of our assets through sdlesaurities to third parties of loan
securitizations or RMBS re-securitization transatdi similar to transactions that we have complitgutior periods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe oseswill be sufficient to enable us to meet
anticipated shorterm liquidity requirements. However, a declinghie value of our collateral could cause a tempdiguidity shortfall due to th
timing of margin calls on the financing arrangenseanid the actual receipt of the cash related teipal paydowns. If our cash resources are at
any time insufficient to satisfy our liquidity regements, we may have to sell investments, potigntiaa loss, or issue debt or additional equity
securities in a common stock offering.

To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitalsand funds to continue to be provided by
earnings from our investments, borrowings undeusézations and resecuritizations, repurchase agreements and otierding facilities, as we
as proceeds from equity offerings. As a resutiwoffailure to file our SEC filings by the filingate required by the SEC (including the grace
period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under the Secsriechange Act of 1934, as amended), we are rgiblito file a new Form S-3 registration
statement or use our existing Forn3 egistration statements to raise additional gqeapital until filings with the SEC have been tignmade fol
a full year. Our ineligibility to use Form S-3 ¢hyg this time period will have a negative impactour ability to quickly access the public capital
markets because we would be required to file a-fong registration statement and wait for the SB@eclare such registration statement
effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalaédsed above, we may enter into warehouse fadlgied use longer dated structured repurchase
agreements. The use of any particular sourcepifatand funds will depend on market conditiongikability of these facilities, and the
investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&@&ymillion and $78 million at June 30, 2014 anat®aber 31, 2013, respectively.
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Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $36 million and $136 million for the sixamths ended June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. The cash provided by our operatisrmimarily due to interest received in excesstdriest paid during the period. During the
second quarter of 2014, we also had cash payments/er margin requirements on our interest ratpsvand other financial instruments of
approximately $80 million, which is primarily refited in other assets and other payments from demvsales and settlements during the quarter
ended June 30, 2014.

Our investing activities provided used cash of agjmnately $3.3 billion and provided cash of $222liom for the six months ended June 30, 2
and 2013, respectively. During the six months dntime 30, 2014 purchased investments of $4.6milirimarily Agency RMBS. This use of
cash was offset during the period from sales amtipal repayments of $843 million and $347 millidaring the quarter ended June 30, 2014,
respectively. During the six months ended Jun€8@3, we received cash from principal repaymendssales of RMBS securities in our
portfolio of $902 million and $429 million respeatly. This receipt of cash was offset by cash ude®ll.1 billion to acquire Agency and Non-
Agency RMBS securities.

Our financing activities provided cash of $3.3ibill and used cash of $811 million for the six merghded June 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. During the six months ended Jun€8@4, we received proceeds on our repurchaseragres, net of repayments on our repurc
agreements of $3.9 billion. These proceeds wdselhy payments on our securitized debt of $21Bamiand payments of dividends of $390
million. The payments of dividends during the sinnths ended June 30, 2014 includes the $205 milicpecial dividends announced in the
fourth quarter of 2013, but paid during the firsagter of 2014. During the six months ended Juhe€814, we used cash for payments on
securitized debt of $576 million and paid dividend$185 million.

As a result of our operating, investing and finagcactivities described above, our cash positidmdt materially change from December 31,
2013 to June 30, 2014. Our investments in Non-Ag&MBS and Agency RMBS, at fair value, increasg®® billion during the six months
ended June 30, 2014, not including assets of ciolagetl VIEs. $2 billion of this increase will detturing the third quarter of 2014, while the
remaining purchases were financed through incresegmachase agreements. We believe that our adahdes provide an appropriate level of
liquidity, including $371 million of highly liquiddAgency RMBS investments which are currently notigked as collateral for our financing
arrangements. Even though we have unrestricted@®geMBS investments, we expect to meet our futash needs primarily from principal ¢
interest payments on our portfolio and do not @dite we will need to sell unrestricted Agency RMiB$estments to meet our liquidity needs.

There were no secondary stock offerings duringytheaters and six months ended June 30, 2014 argl Z@&re were no securitized debt
borrowings during the quarters and six months eiddee 30, 2014 and 2013. Recourse leverage:tkad 0.6:1 at June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2013. Our recourse leverage exchheéesecuritized debt which can only be repaid ftbenproceeds on the assets securing this
debt in their respective VIEs. The increase inregourse leverage is a result of the increaseparobase agreements to primarily expand our
Agency RMBS portfolio. Our recourse leverage issgnted as a ratio to our economic net equity.b®lleve that this increased leverage will
result in higher net income to our investors.

We expect to continue to finance our RMBS portfddiaely through repurchase agreements and loansgh the securitization market. In
addition, we may from time to time sell securitiedssue debt as a source of cash to fund new asesh
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At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, the rentamaturities on our RMBS repurchase agreements asfollows.

December 31,

June 30, 201 2013

(dollars in thousand:
Overnight $ - $ -
1-29 days 1,694,28 644,33.
30 to 59 day: 1,085,41 606,94!
60 to 89 day: 1,684,61 -
90 to 119 day 63,54¢ 129,04
Greater than or equal to 120 d: 1,036,68! 278,23!
Total $ 556455 $ 1,658,56

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weouggance our operations with our RMBS investmer@sir counterparties negotiate a ‘haircut’
when we enter into a financing transaction, whiahias from lender to lender. The size of the haireflects the perceived risk associated with
holding the RMBS by the lender. The haircut pregidenders with a cushion for daily market valuezemoents that reduce the need for a margin
call to be issued or margin to be returned as nodaily increases or decreases in RMBS market sabweur. At June 30, 2013, the weighted
average haircut on our repurchase agreements @#s Bespite the haircut, repurchase agreementsculg to two types of margin calls. First,
there are monthly margin calls that are triggereg@rincipal payments and pre-payments are recdiyed as these payments lower the value of
the collateral. As a result, we expect to recemagin calls from our repurchase counterpartiesthipisimply due to the principal paydowns on
our Agency RMBS. The monthly principal payments anetpayments are not known in advance and vargriépg on the behavior of the
borrowers related to the underlying mortgages. Secoounterparties make margin calls or return iaag a result of normal daily increases or
decreases in asset fair values. In addition, viimamcing assets using standard form of SIFMA MaR&purchase Agreements, the counterparty
to the agreement typically nets its exposure toruall outstanding repurchase agreements and issaiggn calls if movement of the fair values
the assets in the aggregate exceeds their allowaplesure to us. A decline in asset fair valuedccoreate a margin call, or may create no me
call depending on the counterparty’s specific politn addition, counterparties consider a numbiéactors, including their aggregate exposure to
us as a whole and the number of days remainingddfe repurchase transaction closes prior torigsaimargin call. See Note 5 to our
Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussiohow we determine the fair values of the RMBSatetalizing our repurchase agreements.

The table below presents our average daily repsechalance and the repurchase balance at eact paddor the periods presented. Our
balance at period-end tends to have little fluetuefrom the average daily balances except in gerishere we are adjusting the size of our
portfolio by using leverage as we did in the secquarter of 2014. Our average repurchase agredmarice at June 30, 2014 increased
compared to our average repurchase agreement bdtarntbe quarter ended December 31, 2013 duediti@thl borrowings on our repurchase
agreements in excess of repayments during thesfikshonths of 2014. We continue to deploy cagdalktrategic purchases of investments.

Average Repurchase
Repurchase Balance at
Period Balance Period Enc

(dollars in thousand

3,054,73 $ 5,564,55
1,648,42' $ 1,561,92
157487 $ 1,658,56
1,464,67 $ 1,589,32
1,422,48 $ 1,478,14

Quarter End June 30, 20
Quarter End March 31, 20:
Quarter Ended December 31, 2(
Quarter Ended September 30, 2!
Quarter Ended June 30, 2C

@ hH BB P

We are not required to maintain any specific debgquity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverimgehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013 tairdebt was approximately $7.0 billion and
$3.3 billion, which represented a debt-to-equitjoraf approximately 2.6:1 and 1.0:1, respectivélye include repurchase agreements and
securitized debt in the numerator of our debt-toiggatio and stockholders’ equity as the denortaina
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We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-degeghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or yedt-édur borrowings at period end are a
shapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nursibeuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiover the period. Our borrowings will
change as we implement our portfolio and risk manant strategies to address changing market conslifly increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during pendasn we raise capital, and in certain instancesmag purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capitaéraSince our average borrowings and period enadWwings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period ile@a more accurate representation of our expdsute risks associated with leverage.

During the second quarter of 2014, we increasedeserage through increased repurchase agreemPoting the second quarter we added four
new repurchase agreement counterparties and iectreas repurchase agreement obligations with 9 athenterparties. At June 30, 2014, we
have repurchase agreements with 14 counterpadiesf our repurchase agreements are secured Bnéygand Non-Agency RMBS. Under
these repurchase agreements we may not be aldelaom our collateral but still be obligated to pay repurchase obligations. We mitigate this
risk by limiting our exposure to any counterpadydss than 15% of our total equity as well as gnguall our counterparties are highly

rated. Therefore, we believe the risk of losswfapllateral posted is mitigated by the termswfagreements. As of June 30, 2014 and 2013, we
have pledged $6.1 billion and $1.7 billion of sétwes against our repurchase agreement obligations.

Our repurchase agreements have original maturdieging from 30 to 365 days. The average termuwmepurchase agreements at June 30, 201¢
is 105 days. We expect to renew each of our réyasee agreements at maturity. When we renew ourgkase agreements, there is a chance tha
we will not be able to obtain as favorable an ie¢érate as a result of rising rates. We offsetigk of our repurchase agreements primarily
through the use of interest rate swaps. The agawgaining maturities on our interest rate swapge from 2 years to 20 years and have a
weighted average maturity of approximately 11 yeavge use these interest rate swaps to proteqdatitolio from short term changes in interest
rates. We currently have four swap counterparti@ben our interest rate swaps our in a net losgipo (expected cash payments are in exce
expected cash receipts on the swaps), we postarallas required by the terms of our swap agretameks of June 30, 2014, we have posted $87
million of cash and securities as collateral to ®uap counterparties.

Secured Debt Financing Transactior
We did not re-securitize any RMBS or jumbo primgidential mortgage loans during the quarters ongixths ended June 30, 2014 or 2013.
Exposure to European Financial Counterpartie

Our Agency RMBS are primarily financed with repussk agreements. We secure our borrowings under #ggeements by pledging our
Agency RMBS as collateral to the lender. The celitwe pledge exceeds the amount of the borrowingsr each agreement, typically with the
extent of over-collateralization being at least 82the amount borrowed. If the counterparty toriygurchase agreement defaults on its
obligations and we are not able to recover ourg#ddassets, we are at risk of losing the overdsoHized amount. The amount of this exposure
is the difference between the amount loaned tdussipterest due to the counterparty and the faue of the collateral pledged by us to the le
including accrued interest receivable on such tmitd.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouestteate risks. Under these swap agreements,adg@lAgency RMBS as collateral as part of a
margin arrangement for interest rate swaps thaneaa unrealized loss position. If a swap copdey were to default on its obligation, we
would be exposed to a loss to the extent thatrii@uat of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded the lineghloss on the associated swaps and
we were not able to recover the excess collateral.
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Over the past several years, several large Eurdpearcial institutions have experienced financiiddiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial tosidns or their U.S. subsidiaries have provi
us financing under repurchase agreements or wedrdeeed into interest rate swaps with such ingtitg. We have entered into repurchase
agreements and/or interest rate swaps with sixtegoerties as of June 30, 2014 that is either didedian Europe or is a U.S.-based subsidiary of
a European-domiciled financial institution. Thédwing table summarizes our exposure to such aparties at June 30, 2014:

Repurchase Interest Exposure as a
Number of Agreement  Rate Swaps Percentage of
Country Counterpatrtie Financing at Fair Value Exposure (1  Total Assets
(dollars in thousand

France 1 $ 573,46( $ (15,349 $ 20,97 0.17%
Germany 1 - (5,339 2,862 0.02%
Netherland: 1 432,68 - 25,65 0.2(%
Switzerlanc 2 1,061,20 (18,817 209,63t 1.61%
United Kingdom 1 184,59! - 7,01¢ 0.0€%
Total 6 $ 225195 $ (39,496 $ 266,14 2.12%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgedligeral to each counterparty less the aggregfatiepurchase
agreement financing and unrealized loss on swapesafth counterpart

At June 30, 2014, we did not use credit defaultpsaa other forms of credit protection to hedgeekposures summarized in the table above.

If the European credit crisis continues to imphaese major European financial institutions, itasgible that it will also impact the operations of
their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings and openatcould be adversely affected by such events.m@nitor our exposure to our repurchase
agreement and swap counterparties on a regulas, hasng various methods, including review of récating agency actions, financial relief
plans, credit spreads or other developments amddmyjtoring the amount of cash and securities aafétpledged and the associated loan amount
under repurchase agreements and/or the fair vélswwaps with our counterparties. We make reveragm calls on our counterparties to recc
excess collateral as permitted by the agreemenergimg our financing arrangements or interest sataps, or may try to take other actions to
reduce the amount of our exposure to a counterpdrgn necessary.

Stockholder’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigston agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiesd,lor UBS. Through this agreement,
may sell through UBS, as our sales agent, up tg0025000 shares of our common stock in ordinarkdms transactions at market prices or other
transactions as agreed between us and UBS. Wetgekll any shares of our common stock under diéyedistribution agreement during the
guarters or six months ended June 30, 2014 or 2013.

During the quarters ended June 30, 2014 and 204 8leslared dividends to common shareholders tgt&@2 million, or $0.09 per share. Dur
the six months ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, wardddividends to common shareholders totalingo$th8lion, or $0.18 per share.

The Board of Directors has determined that thetiebsia quarterly dividend of $0.09 per share far third and fourth quarters of 2014.
There was no preferred stock issued or outstaralingf June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013.

Related Party Transaction

The Management Agreement

We entered into a management agreement with FIDW@;h provided for an initial term through DecemBér 2010 with an automatic one-year
extension option and subject to certain terminatights. Effective November 28, 2012, the managerfee was reduced from 1.50% to 0.75%
per annum of gross stockholders’ equity, which rieethin effect until we were current on all offilings required under applicable securities
laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tlatgrs ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 were $6 mitkspectively. Management fees
accrued and paid to FIDAC for the six months entlgte 30, 2014 and 2013 were $12 million and $1Bamjlrespectively.

On August 8, 2014, the management agreement wasdaehend restated. Effective August 8, 2014, theagement fee was increased to 1.20%
of gross stockholders’ equity. In addition, FIDAGreed to pay the Company a dime fee reduction of approximately $24 million, ialinequals

a base management fee equal to 0.75% per annuross sfockholders’ equity as if it were in effecinh January 1, 2012 through November 27,
2012.

The agreement provides for a two year term endinguAt 7, 2016 and may be automatically renewetiforyear terms at each anniversary date
unless at least twthirds of the independent directors or the holdés majority of the outstanding shares of comntoglselects not to renew tl
agreement in their sole discretion and for anymreason. Unless the management agreement isygtedifor “cause” or FIDAC terminates the
management agreement, in the event that the maeagexgreement is terminated or not renewed, we paysto FIDAC a termination fee equal
to two times the average annual management femjlatdd as of the end of the most recently comglgseal quarter prior to the date of
termination. FIDAC will continue to provide servicander the management agreement for a periogésotihan 180 days from the date



Company delivers the notice not to renew the mamagé agreement.

58




We may also terminate the management agreemen8@ittays’prior notice from our board of directors, withoayment of a termination fee, 1
cause or upon a change of control of FIDAC or Apr@2dpital Management, Inc. (the parent of FIDAGke as defined in the management
agreement. FIDAC may terminate the managemeneagmet if we become required to register as an imess company under the Investment
Company Act of 1940, as amended, with such termanateemed to occur immediately before such ewenthich case we would not be requil
to pay a termination fee. FIDAC may also declimegnew the management agreement by providing tish8D-days’ written notice, in which
case we would not be required to pay a termindéen

The management agreement provides that FIDAC waillgl past and future expenses that we and/oAodit Committee incur to: (1) evaluate
our accounting policy related to the applicatiorG#AP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the “Evati@n”); (2) restate our financial
statements for the period covering 2008 throughL2d¥la result of the Evaluation (the “Restatemdimg®); and (3) investigate and evaluate any
shareholder derivative demands arising from thduat@n and/or the Restatement Filing (the “Invgation”); provided, however, that FIDAC'’s
obligation to pay expenses applies only to expensepaid by our insurers under our insurance mdic Expenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respedauditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged and/or our Audit Committee for the
Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigmti@he amount paid by FIDAC related to these egpsifior the quarters ended June 30, 2014
and 2013 is $2 million and $3 million, respectiveand is presented in the Consolidated Statemé@perations and Comprehensive Income
(Loss) as Expense recoveries from Manager. Thaiahpaid by FIDAC related to these expenses fosthenonths ended June 30, 2014 and
2013 is $3 million and $5 million, respectively. &6June 30, 2014, $2 million of these expensascisided in other assets as a receivable from
FIDAC.

We are obligated to reimburse FIDAC for costs inedron our behalf under the management agreenheatddition, the management agreement
permits FIDAC to require us to pay for our pro rptation of rent, telephone, utilities, office fiture, equipment, machinery and other office,
internal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incurrednnection with our operations. These expeasesllocated between FIDAC and us b
on the ratio of our proportion of gross assets e to the gross assets managed by FIDAC as atddudt each quarter end. We and FIDAC
will modify this allocation methodology, subjectttoe approval of our board of directors if the editton becomes inequitable (i.e., if we become
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC'’s otherdammnd accounts). During the quarters and six Inscenided June 30, 2014 and 2013,
reimbursements to FIDAC were not significant.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administrag@r¥ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnto clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfeges in return for such serviceRCap
may also provide brokerage services to us from tomténe. During the quarters and six months entigw 30, 2014 and 2013, fees paid to RCap
were less than $1 million.

Restricted Stock Grant

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stoeknployees of our Manager and its affiliates and bersiof our board of directors on January 2,

2008. At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2018; there approximately 230,000 and 384,000 unvesdiackes of restricted stock issued to
employees of FIDAC, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gddiions at June 30, 2014 and December 31, 201® estimated principal repayment sche«
of the securitized debt is based on expected dawis Df the residential mortgage loans or RMBSadjsisted for expected principal writedowns
on the underlying collateral of the debt.

June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Greater Than
Within One  Oneto Three Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 5,564,555 $ - % - 3 - $ 5,564,55
Securitized dek 295,14, 405,51t 228,65( 376,40¢ 1,305,71!
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 6,951 - - - 6,951
Interest expense on securitized debt 49,67 73,83t 54,50¢ 174,69! 352,71¢
Total $ 5916,32. $ 479,35 $ 283,15¢ $ 551,100 $ 7,229,94

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsafalune 30, 201

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Greater Than
Within One  Oneto Three Three to Five or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 165856 $ - % - 3 - $ 1,658,56
Securitized dek 370,25( 497,94: 264,45¢ 396,91t 1,529,56!
Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 2,38( - - - 2,38(
Interest expense on securitized debt 57,54¢ 80,44¢ 58,62( 178,39: 375,00:
Total $ 208873 $ 57838 $ 32307t $ 575300 $ 3,565,50

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeafdDecember 31, 201
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured finance or
special purpose entities, which would have beeabéished for the purpose of facilitating off-balargheet arrangements or other contractually
narrow or limited purposes. Further, we have natrgnteed any obligations of unconsolidated estit@ do we have any commitment or intent
to provide funding to any such entities.

Capital Requirements

At June 30, 2014 and December 31, 2013, we hadaterial commitments for capital expenditures. Wkehdhve approximately $2 billion of
purchases of Agency RMBS which settled withoutéssuJuly 2014 financed with new repurchase agre¢sne

Dividends

To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetadsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxatdeme (subject to certain adjustments). We
intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to oackholders. Before we pay any dividend, we must fineet any operating requirements and
scheduled debt service on our financing faciliiad other debt payable.

Inflation

A significant portion of our assets and liabilitea® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a remsuéirest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaig@terest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflation rates.
Our consolidated financial statements are preparadcordance with GAAP and our distributions Wil determined by our board of directors
consistent with our obligation to distribute to @tockholders at least 90% of our REIT taxable inemn an annual basis in order to maintain our
REIT qualification; in each case, our activitiesldimancial condition are measured with referemchkistorical cost and/or fair market value
without considering inflation.

Other Matters

We at all times intend to conduct our businessssaoh to become regulated as an investment compaohgr the 1940 Act. If we were to become
regulated as an investment company, our abilitysleverage would be substantially reduced.
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Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thaitgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuize investment securities having a value
exceeding 40% of the value of the issuer’s tots¢ts(exclusive of U.S. Government securities asth tems) on an unconsolidated basis (the
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investment séiies,” among other things, are securities isdmedhajority-owned subsidiaries that rely on
the exemption from registration provided by Sec8¢c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Ad4elding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the exemption
from registration provided by Section 3(c)(5)(C)tloé Investment Company Act. Section 3(c)(5)(Clngerpreted by the staff of the Securities
and Exchange Commission (or the SEC), requires us/est at least 55% of our assets in “mortgagesagher liens on and interest in real

estate” (or Qualifying Real Estate Assets) an@ast 80% of our assets in Qualifying Real Estatessplus real estate related assets. The assets
that we acquire, therefore, are limited by the miowns of and the rules and regulations promulgateter the Investment Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept eetdbs] “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aoty Mortgages and Mortgage-Related
Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778). Underctreept release, the SEC is reviewing interpretisees related to the Section 3(c)(5)(C)
exemption. We are monitoring developments reladegtiis matter.

Based on our calculations, as of June 30, 201&eeémber 31, 2013, we were in compliance with #tesmgtion from registration provided by
Section 3(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investm@atnpany Act.

As a result of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reforrd @onsumer Protection Act of 2010, the U.S. Commydelitures Trading Commission, or
CFTC, gained jurisdiction over the regulation deirest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thaathies the operators of mortgage real estate
investment trusts that use swaps as part of thisinbss model to fall within the statutory defmitiof Commaodity Pool Operator, or CPO, and,
absent relief from the Division or the Commissitmregister as CPOs. On December 7, 2012, asili odsiumerous requests for no-action relief
from the CPO registration requirement for operatdnmortgage real estate investment trusts, thésdiv of Swap Dealer and Intermediary
Oversight of the CFTC issued no-action relief éadit'No-Action Relief from the Commodity Pool OptaRegistration Requirement for
Commaodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Investrivehicles Organized as Mortgage Real Estate tmesst Trusts” that permits a CPO to
receive relief by filing a claim to perfect the usfethe relief. A claim submitted by a CPO will b#fective upon filing, so long as the claim is
materially complete. The conditions that must ke ta claim the relief are that the mortgage retdte investment trust must:

e Limit the initial margin and premiums requiredetstablish its commodity interest positions to rarerthan five percent of the fair market
value of the mortgage real estate investment's total asset:

e Limit the net income derived annually from itsvomodity interest positions that are not qualifyleglging transactions to less than five
percent of the mortgage real estate investmert’s gross income

e  Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estagstment trust are not marketed to the publioras a commodity pool or otherwise as
or in a vehicle for trading in the commodity futsyeommodity options, or swaps markets;

e  Either:
0 identify itself as ¢ mortgage REI” in Item G of its last U.S. income tax return onid12(-REIT; or

o ifit has not yet filed its first U.S. income tagturn on Form 1120-REIT, disclose to its sharehsldeat it intends to identify itself as
a“mortgage REI” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.

While we disagree that the CFTC’s position thattigmge real estate investment trusts that use sagapart of their business model fall within the
statutory definition of a CPO, we have submittexiieém for the relief set forth in the no-actionie¢lentitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration Requirementfommaodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Inwestt Vehicles Organized as Mortg:
Real Estate Investment Trusts” and believe we tineetriteria for such relief set forth therein.
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Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures bout Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eelab credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymek, market value risk and real estate risk. W
we do not seek to avoid risk completely, we beligweerisk can be quantified from historical expecie and we seek to actively manage that risk,
to earn sufficient compensation to justify takihgge risks and to maintain capital levels consistéth the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with imvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiafttgege loans and face more credit risk on
assets we own which are rated below “AAAThe credit risk related to these investments pestad the ability and willingness of the borrowts
pay, which is assessed before credit is grantednmwed and periodically reviewed throughout tfamlor security term. We believe that residual
loan credit quality, and thus the quality of ousets, is primarily determined by the borrowersdirgrofiles and loan characteristics. We use a
comprehensive credit review process. Our analyffdizams includes borrower profiles, as well as atibhn and appraisal data. We use
compensating factors such as liquid assets, lowtoaalue ratios and regional unemployment stesish evaluating loans. Our resources include
a proprietary portfolio management system, as agthird party software systems. We may utilizkia tparty due diligence firm to perform an
independent underwriting review to ensure compkanith existing guidelines. In addition to statisfisampling techniques, we create adverse
credit and valuation samples, which we individuadlyiew. We reject loans that fail to conform ta standards and do not meet our underwriting
criteria. Once we own a loan, our surveillance pssdncludes ongoing analysis through our propsietata and servicer files. Additionally, the
Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for partfolio are reviewed by us to ensure that tregisfy our risk based criteria. Our
review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS includeitizibg a proprietary portfolio management systéur review of NonAgency RMBS an
other ABS is based on quantitative and qualitativalysis of the risk-adjusted returns on Non-AgeRMBS and other ABS. This analysis
includes an evaluation of the collateral charasties supporting the RMBS such as borrower payristdry, credit profiles, geographic
concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoningpthied pertinent factors.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many éast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic and
political considerations and other factors beyoadamntrol. We are subject to interest rate riskannection with our investments and our related
debt obligations, which are generally repurchaseegents, warehouse facilities and securitizaesécuritization vehicles. Our repurchase
agreements and warehouse facilities may be ofdoirduration that is periodically refinanced at entrmarket rates. We intend to mitigate this
risk through utilization of derivative contractsimarily interest rate swap agreements, swaptifutgres and mortgage options.

Interest Rate Effects on Net Interest Incon

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofieihces between the income from our investmerntanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementgderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR. The
fixed spread varies depending on the type of ugtherlasset which collateralizes the financing. Adoagly, the portion of our portfolio which
consists of floating interest rate assets will ah-funded utilizing our expected sources of stemrh financing, while our fixed interest rate
assets will not be match-funded. During periodgsifg interest rates, the borrowing costs assediatith our investments tend to increase while
the income earned on our fixed interest rate imaests may remain substantially unchanged. Thisreglult in a narrowing of the net interest
spread between the related assets and borrowidgmay even result in losses. Further, during tbisign of the interest rate and credit cycles,
defaults could increase and result in credit lossess, which could adversely affect our liquidityd operating results. Such delinquencies or
defaults could also have an adverse effect ongttead between interest-earning assets and inteeasing liabilities. Hedging techniques are
partly based on assumed levels of prepaymentsrdbad-rate and hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagatoand RMBS. If prepayments are slower
or faster than assumed, the life of the mortgagad@and RMBS will be longer or shorter, which wolduce the effectiveness of any hedging
strategies we may use and may cause losses oftraoshctions.
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Interest Rate Effects on Fair Valu

Another component of interest rate risk is the@fédanges in interest rates will have on theVfalue of the assets we acquire. We face the risk
that the fair value of our assets will increasel@crease at different rates than that of our li#sl including our hedging instruments. We
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratiorupfiabilities. Duration essentially measures the
market price volatility of financial instruments iaserest rates change. We generally calculatetidarasing various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodolog®s produce different duration numbers for the sgecarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimgrest rates on fair value can change signifigamhen interest rates change beyond 100 basis
points from current levels. Therefore, the volgtilh the fair value of our assets could increaggriicantly when interest rates change beyond
basis points. In addition, other factors impactfdievalue of our interest rate-sensitive investtseand hedging instruments, such as the shape of
the yield curve, market expectations as to futnterest rate changes and other market conditioosorélingly, in the event of changes in actual
interest rates, the change in the fair value ofamsets would likely differ from that shown belomdasuch difference might be material and ad\

to our stockholders.

Interest Rate Cap Ris

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRIMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thaetging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewsety’s interest yield may change during any
given period. However, our borrowing costs purstamtur financing agreements will not be subjeditoilar restrictions. Therefore, in a period
of increasing interest rates, interest rate castsus borrowings could increase without limitatioyncaps, while the interest-rate yields on our
adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS would &ffdg be limited. This problem will be magnified the extent we acquire adjustable-rate
RMBS that are not based on mortgages which arg ifudlexed. In addition, the mortgages or the uryilegl mortgages in an RMBS may be
subject to periodic payment caps that result inesportion of the interest being deferred and addele principal outstanding. This could result
in our receipt of less cash income on our adjustadile mortgages or RMBS than we need in ordeayalpe interest cost on our related
borrowings. These factors could lower our net egemcome or cause a net loss during periodsiofrinterest rates, which would harm our
financial condition, cash flows and results of Giens.

Interest Rate Mismatch Ris

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®WBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdggng, have interest rates based on indice
re-pricing terms similar to, but of somewhat shomaturities than, the interest rate indices arprigng terms of the mortgages and RMBS. In
most cases the interest rate indices and re-prieimgs of our mortgage assets and our funding sswl not be identical, thereby creating an
interest rate mismatch between assets and liaili©ur cost of funds would likely rise or fall reaquickly than would our earnings rate on assets.
During periods of changing interest rates, suchr@dt rate mismatches could negatively impactioantial condition, cash flows and results of
operations. To mitigate interest rate mismatchesmay utilize the hedging strategies discussedeatur analysis of risks is based on FIDAC's
experience, estimates, models and assumptionse Bmadyses rely on models which utilize estimafdaiovalue and interest rate sensitivity.
Actual economic conditions or implementation oféstment decisions by our management may produabgsésat differ significantly from the
estimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in this Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding derivatives) may be adversely affectedrduany period as a result of changing interest
rates. The following table quantifies the potdrtlzanges in net interest income and portfolio &dtbr our Agency RMBS portfolio should

interest rates go up or down 50 and 100 basis gaissuming parallel movements in the yield curvdschanges in income and value are
measured as percentage changes from the projestétaerest income and portfolio value at the baterest rate scenario. The base interest rate
scenario assumes interest rates at June 30, 2dvhdnus estimates regarding prepayment and tliitges are made at each level of rate
change. Actual results could differ significarfilgm these estimates.
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June 30, 201«

Projected Percentage
Change in Portfolio Value
Projected Percentage with Effect of Interest
Change in Net Interest Rate Swaps and Other

Change in Interest Ra Income (1) Hedging Transactions (.
-100 Basis Point (19.99%) 0.00%

-50 Basis Point (12.68%) 0.23%

Base Interest Ra - -

+50 Basis Point 10.96% (0.77%)

+100 Basis Point 13.93% (2.76%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incomeudted interest expense on interest rate sv
(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Valumsed on instantaneous moves in interest |

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesestments, premiums and discounts on such investmeihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in prepaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasghpremiums, thereby reducing the interest
income earned on the investments. Conversely, digs®n such investments are accelerated and edérgd interest income increasing interest
income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the borrowers will
prepay the underlying mortgages. In general, whetfrate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgage laamRMBS are acquired via borrowings, we
may, but are not required to, enter into an intenae swap agreement or other hedging instrunmatitetffectively fixes our borrowing costs for a
period close to the anticipated average life offiked-rate portion of the related assets. Thiatetyy is designed to protect us from rising interes
rates as the borrowing costs are effectively fifadhe duration of the fixed-rate portion of tleated assets. However, if prepayment rates
decrease in a rising interest rate environmentlifihef the fixed-rate portion of the related asseould extend beyond the term of the swap
agreement or other hedging instrument. This coalla negative impact on our results from operatias borrowing costs would no longer be
fixed after the end of the hedging instrument wttile income earned on the fixed and hybrid adjlstedie assets would remain fixed. In extreme
situations, we may be forced to sell assets to t@aimdequate liquidity, which could cause us tmirosses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgiegtions of our portfolio through interest rate ps@nd other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglyireasury benchmark interest rates. Basis risiteaelto the risk of the spread between our RI
and underlying hedges widening. Such a widening caage a decline in the fair value of our RMBS thafreater than the increase in fair value
of our hedges resulting in a net decline in bodkeaThe widening of mortgage-backed securitieklgiand Treasury benchmark interest rates
may result from a variety of factors such as apétad or actual monetary policy actions or otherketsfactors.

Market Risk
Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectetheir estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lrsses excluded from earnings and reported in
other comprehensive income if no OTTI has beengmized in earnings. The estimated fair value o$¢heecurities fluctuates primarily due to
changes in interest rates, prepayment speeds, tiigikdity, credit quality, and other factors. @=ally, in a rising interest rate environment, the
estimated fair value of these securities wouldXpeeted to decrease; conversely, in a decreadiagesi rate environment, the estimated fair v
of these securities would be expected to increAsemarket volatility increases or liquidity decses, the fair value of our investments may be
adversely impacted.
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Real Estate Market Ris

We own assets secured by real property and mayrealproperty directly in the future. Residenpabperty values are subject to volatility and
may be affected adversely by a number of factaduding, but not limited to, national, regionabdncal economic conditions (which may be
adversely affected by industry slowdowns and othaetors); local real estate conditions (such asvamsupply of housing); changes or continued
weakness in specific industry segments; constmuafility, age and design; demographic factors;ratrdactive changes to building or similar
codes. In addition, decreases in property valudscesthe value of the collateral and the poteptiateeds available to a borrower to repay our
loans, which could also cause us to incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtdtus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage loans,
RMBS, and other assets and related debt againsfféets of major interest rate changes. We gelyesatk to manage risk by:

e monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreementsaiee a range of different maturities, terms, ainatibns and interest rate adjustn
periods;

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omijoraps, floors and forward sales to adjust therdést rate sensitivity of our investme
and our borrowings

e using securitization financing to lower averagstoof funds relative to shomrm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pexbdime in contrast to short term financing and unigy dates of the investments
included in the securitization; a

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, theesitaate indices, interest rate adjustment periadd, gross reset margins of
investments and the interest rate indices and @ periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thpriging of assets and liabilities. We attemg
control risks associated with interest rate movameviethods for evaluating interest rate risk idel@n analysis of our interest rate sensitivity
“gap,” which is the difference between interestaiiay assets and interest-bearing liabilities matuor re-pricing within a given time period. A
gap is considered positive when the amount of ésterate sensitive assets exceeds the amounteoéstirate sensitive liabilities. A gap is
considered negative when the amount of interestaansitive liabilities exceeds interest-rate semsassets. During a period of rising interest
rates, a negative gap would tend to adversely tafieicinterest income, while a positive gap woelddt to result in an increase in net interest
income. During a period of falling interest rates)egative gap would tend to result in an incréaset interest income, while a positive gap
would tend to affect net interest income adverd@gcause different types of assets and liabilitigs the same or similar maturities may react
differently to changes in overall market rates @mditions, changes in interest rates may affecintetest income positively or negatively even if
an institution were perfectly matched in each mgtwategory.

The following table sets forth the estimated m&puoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets iaberestbearing liabilities at June 30, 2014. -
amounts of assets and liabilities shown within di@aar period were determined in accordance wWithcontractual terms of the assets and
liabilities, except adjustable-rate loans, and stes are included in the period in which theiteirest rates are first scheduled to adjust anihnot
the period in which they mature and includes tliectf the interest rate swaps. The interestsatssitivity of our assets and liabilities in thblé
could vary substantially based on actual prepaysnent
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June 30, 201
(dollars in thousand:

1Yearto3 Greater than 3

Within 3 Months  3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 237288 $ 1,691,80. $ 822,09¢ $ 14,030,37 $ 18,917,15
Cash equivaleni 73,87 - - - 73,87
Total rate sensitive asse 2,446,75. 1,691,80: 822,09¢ 14,030,37 18,991,02
Rate sensitive liabilitie 1,383,54, 1,239,52. 24,01t 977,76¢ 3,624,85!
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 106321 % 45227 $ 798,08. $ 13,05260 $ 15,366,17
Cumulative rate sensitivity gz $ 106321 $ 151548 $ 2,313,57. $ 15,366,17
Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap ¢
percentage of total rate sensitive as 6% 8% 12% 81%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager's® sipce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thegesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sensgjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager may
produce results that differ significantly from tbgtimates and assumptions used in our models arutdfected results shown in the above tables
and in this Form 10-Q. These analyses contaimiceftrward-looking statements and are subjedh¢oshfe harbor statement set forth under the
heading, “Special Note Regarding Forward-Lookingt&nents.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@=cember 31, 2013, we disclosed that managenadntentified material weaknesses in
our internal controls over financial reporting. \id not design and maintain adequate procedurefextive review and approval controls,
including the review of journal entries and rectiations, over routine processes. We did not deaigd maintain adequate review and approval
controls over significant estimates and their egladisclosure process to prevent or detect a mateisstatement and we identified an overreli:
on spreadsheets consisting of manual inputs angleamalculations used to record transactions atichates supporting the financial statement
amounts and disclosures.

Based upon the substantial work described in otmFP®-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, amdwbsequent quarterly reports on Form
10-Q, and the procedures performed through thegfitif this Form 10-Q, we have concluded that thesobdated financial statements for the
periods covered by and included in this Form 10«®Qpaepared in accordance with GAAP and fairly eneésn all material respects, our financial
position, results of operation and cash flows fteof the periods presented herein.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r determined that the aforementioned materiakwesses in our internal controls over
financial reporting were not fully remediated ahdttour disclosure controls and procedures wereffettive as of June 30, 2014. The Company
expects to file its applicable securities law fijinfor the remainder of 2014 on a timely basisedtting reviews and controls on a timely basis
filing its quarterly reports on time in 2014 is eqgped to improve the control environment and wélfribnstrate an effective control environment.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebleameno changes in our “internal control over faiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-15 (f)

under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ae®rttiat occurred during the period covered bydharterly report that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyead, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART Il. Other Information

Iltem 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial stateitsdor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Contestof our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mexounsel and financial advisors engaged by @eitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstants.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigmand letters alleging, among other things,tHeatirectors and our officers, as well as our
Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesisdoy failing to institute adequate internal colstieind failing to ensure that we made accurate
financial disclosures. These letters request, gnodimer things, that the Board of Directors takioacto investigate and remedy the alleged
breaches of fiduciary duty. The Audit Committe@eots to conclude its investigation and make fisabmmendations to the Board of Directors
about an appropriate response to the letters witi@mext few months. The Audit Committee hasledan understanding with FIDAC that
resolves the issues raised in the derivative derfetats. The Audit Committee is also pursuingitioidal remedies against other parties
regarding the facts and circumstances relatingitaocounting for Nokgency RMBS and the restatement of our financitieshents. These a
other potential actions that may be filed agaisstwhether with or without merit, may divert théeation of management from our business, harm
our reputation and otherwise may have a materiarae effect on our business, financial conditiesults of operations and cash flows.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Forl0-K for the year ended December 31, 2013, wioghtrisk factors related to (i) risks
associated with adverse developments in the mogt§iagnce and credit markets, (ii) risks associatéith our management and relationship with
our Manager, (iii) risks related to our business) (isks related to our investments, (v) regulgtand legal risks, (vi) risks related to our comn
stock (vii) tax risks, and (viii) risks associateih the late filings and related matters. Yoouwd carefully consider the risk factors set foirth
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2048 .of the date hereof, there have been no matdrénges to the risk factors set forth in
our Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Item 5. Other Information
On August 8, 2014, we entered into an amendedestdted management agreement with FIDAC.
Fee

Effective November 28, 2012, the management feethd prior management agreement, as amendetPfibe Management Agreement”), was
reduced from 1.50% to 0.75% per annum of groskbktidders’ equity, which remained in effect until were current on all of its filings required
under applicable securities laws.

Effective August 8, 2014, under the amended andtext management agreement, the management fercreassed to 1.20% per annum of gr
stockholders’ equity. In addition, FIDAC agreedpty us a onéime fee reduction of approximately $24 million, ialinequals a base managen
fee equal to 0.75% per annum of gross stockhol@epsity as if it were in effect from January 1, 2Qhrough November 27, 2012.

Term

Our Prior Management Agreement provided for anahierm through December 31, 2010 with automatie-gear extensions unless at least two-
thirds of our independent directors or the holdgra majority of our outstanding shares of commioicls (other than those held by Annaly or its
affiliates) elects to terminate the agreement @irthole discretion and for any or no reason, gtteme. The Prior Management Agreement
provided that we may terminate the agreement atiemeyby delivering 30 days’ notice to FIDAC.

The amended and restated management agreemerdgwdot a two year term ending August 7, 2016 ihatitomatically renewed for two year
terms at each anniversary date unless at leasthives of our independent directors or the holdéra majority of our outstanding shares of
common stock (other than those held by Annalyoaffiliates) elects not to renew the agreemettéir sole discretion and for any or no

reason. The amended and restated management agtgaovides that if we elect not to renew the asedrand restated management agreement
we will provide FIDAC with at least 180 days’ natiof the date the amended and restated managegrestreent will terminate.

Termination Fee

Our Prior Management Agreement provided we mayiteata the management agreement pursuant to its teitout the payment of any
termination fee.

Under the amended and restated management agreemless the management agreement is terminatédafose” or FIDAC terminates the
management agreement, in the event that the maeagegreement is not renewed, we must pay to FIRA&mination fee equal to two times
the average annual management fee, calculatedths ehd of the most recently completed fiscal guaorior to the date of termination.

Definition of“Cause”
Our Prior Management Agreement provided us the tgkerminate the management agreement effectimeeidiately, without payment of a

termination fee, for “cause.” Under the amendedi ra@stated management agreement, we may termheatednagement agreement with 30 days’
prior notice from our board of directors, withoatyment of a termination fee, f“cause”



Our Prior Management Agreement defined “causehaddllowing events: (i) FIDAC engages in any actraud, misappropriation of funds, or
embezzlement against us, (ii) there is an eveahgfgross negligence on the part of FIDAC in thdgumance of its duties under the manager
agreement, (iii) there is a commencement of angg®ding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcy or insolven(v) there is a dissolution of FIDAC, or
(v) FIDAC is convicted of (including a plea of natontendere) a felony.

Our amended and restated management agreemerthaddBowing events to the definition of “causé). FIDAC, its agents or its assignees
materially breaches any provision of the agreeraadtsuch breach shall continue for a period ofyt{80) days after written notice thereof
specifying such breach and requesting that the $ememedied in such 30-day period (or fdite (45) days after written notice of such breéc
FIDAC takes steps to cure such breach within tHB8) days of the written notice), and (ii) theseaichange of control of FIDAC or Annaly
Capital Management, Inc. (the parent of FIDAC).

Additional Terms and Conditior

The amended and restated management agreemenbatams the following terms and conditions whiemain unchanged from our Prior
Management Agreement.

FIDAC may terminate the management agreement i@e®me required to register as an investment coynadier the Investment Company Act
of 1940, as amended, with such termination deemeddur immediately before such event, in whictecss would not be required to pay a
termination fee. FIDAC may also decline to renb@ tnanagement agreement by providing us with 188 aaitten notice, in which case we
would not be required to pay a termination fee.

FIDAC has agreed to pay all past and future expetisgt we and/or our Audit Committee incur to: €¥aluate our accounting policy related to
application of GAAP to our Non-Agency RMBS portfolithe “Evaluation”); (2) restate our financialtstaents for the period covering 2008
through 2011 as a result of the Evaluation (thestRement Filing”); and (3) investigate and evaduaty shareholder derivative demands arising
from the Evaluation and/or the Restatement Filthg (Investigation”); provided, however, that FIDAMbligation to pay expenses applies only
to expenses not paid by our insurers under ouramse policies. Expenses shall include, withoutthtion, fees and costs incurred with respe
auditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged and/or our Audit Committee for the EvaluatiBestatement Filing and the Investigation.

We are obligated to reimburse FIDAC for costs inedron our behalf under the management agreeneatidition, FIDAC may require us to

pay for our pro rata portion of rent, telephonditigs, office furniture, equipment, machinery aoither office, internal and overhead expenses that
FIDAC incurred in connection with our operatioriBhese expenses are allocated between FIDAC andsesiton the ratio of our proportion of
gross assets compared to the gross assets managHIAC as calculated at each quarter end. WeRADAC will modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of our bodrdirectors if the allocation becomes inequitalle. (if we become very highly leveraged
compared to FIDAC’s other funds and accounts).
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1
10.1
31.1

31.2
32.1

32.2

The exhibits required by this item are set forthttom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chéntievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1hHe Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and iraratpd herein by
reference)

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentgwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company'sgert on Form 8-K filed on

May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentgwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’so@e on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retere

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComgarReport on Form & filed on
December 19, 2011 and incorporated herein by nedede

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakeestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpanys Registration Stateme
on Amendment No. 1 to Forn-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and incorpdraégein by reference
Amended and Restated Management AgreememedetChimera Investment Corporation and Fixed Ire@iscount Advisory
Company.

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extree Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Qfér of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30hefSarban«Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finanic@fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.SSection 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the SarbarOxley Act of 2002

Exhibit 101.INS XBRlInstance Document *
Exhibit 101.SCH Taxonomy Extension Schema Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.CAL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.DEF Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&iment Created**

XBRL

Exhibit 101.LAB Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.PRE Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documgnt *

XBRL

*%

Submitted electronically herewith. tAthed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the foilgrdocuments formatted in XBRL (Extensible

Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of June 30, 2Qik(idited) and December 31, 2013
(derived from the audited consolidated financiatatnents); (ii) Consolidated Statements of Opanatand Comprehensive Income for the
quarters and six months ended June 30, 2014 ar8] @i)lConsolidated Statement of Stockholderdiig(Deficit) for the six months ended Ju
30, 2014 and 2013; (iv) Consolidated Statemen€ash Flows for the six months ended June 30, 26d4£6@13; and (v) Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussd&port to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
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Matthew Lambiasi
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and duly authorized officer of the registra

Date: August 11, 201

By: _ /s/Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan
(Chief Financial Office
and principal financial officer of the registra

Date: August 11, 201
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EXHIBIT 10.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDED AND RESTATED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT is mde as of August 8, 2014 by and between CHIM
INVESTMENT CORPORATION, a Maryland corporation (th&Company”), and FIXED INCOME DISCOUNT ADVISORY COMPANY,
Delaware corporation (together with its permittedignees, the * Managér

WHEREAS, the Company has previously engaged thealglemto provide investment advisory services toGbenpany pursuant tc
Management Agreement dated as of November 21, @087 Management Agreemeit and

WHEREAS, the Company and the Manager now wish terahrand restate the Management Agreement uporetims &and conditiol
provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agrests herein set forth, the parties hereto agréalawss:

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS The following terms have the following meaniragsigned to them:
(a) “ Agreemeritmeans this Amended and Restated Management Agirgeas amended from time to time.
(b) “ Annaly’ means Annaly Capital Management, Inc.
(c) “_Bankruptcy’ means, with respect to any Person, (a) the filiggsbch Person of a voluntary petition see

liquidation, reorganization, arrangement or reddjpest, in any form, of its debts under Title 11tloé United States Code or any other fed
state or foreign insolvency law, or such Persditing an answer consenting to or acquiescingny such petition, (b) the making by such Pe
of any assignment for the benefit of its creditdc,the expiration of sixty (60) days after thinfj of an involuntary petition under Title 11 dfe
Unites States Code, an application for the appantrnof a receiver for a material portion of theeas®of such Person, or an involuntary pet
seeking liquidation, reorganization, arrangementeadjustment of its debts under any other fedstate or foreign insolvency law, provided

the same shall not have been vacated, set asgtayad within such 60-day period or (d) the enggiast it of a final and noappealable order f
relief under any bankruptcy, insolvency or simix now or hereinafter in effect.

(d) “ Base Management Feeneans a base management fee equal to 1.20% pemanalculated and paid (in ca
quarterly in arrears, of the Stockholders’ Equitthe Base Management Fee will be reduced, but elotsbzero, by the Comparg/proportionat
share of any CDO base management fees the Manageives in connection with the CDOs in which themPany invests, based on
percentage of equity the Company holds in such CDOs

(e) “ Board of Directorsmeans the Board of Directors of the Company.
) “ CDO" means a collateralized debt obligation.
(9) “ Change of Contrbimeans the occurrence of any of the following:
0] the sale, lease or transfer, in one or a serieslatied transactions, of all or substantially &lthe assets of tl

Manager, taken as a whole, or Annaly, taken as aleyho any Person other than Annaly (in the cdsthe@ Manager) or any of
respective affiliates; or




(ii) the acquisition by any Person or group (within theaning of Section 13(d)(3) or Section 14(d)(2)xr=

Exchange Act, or any successor provision), inclgdimy group acting for the purpose of acquiringdimg or disposing of securiti
(within the meaning of Rule 136(b)(1) under the Exchange Act), other than Anmalyany of its respective affiliates, in a sir
transaction or in a related series of transactibypayay of merger, consolidation or other businemsbination or purchase of benefi
ownership (within the meaning of Rule 13dinder the Exchange Act, or any successor prawisib 50% or more of the total voti
power of the voting capital interests of the MamageAnnaly.

(h)
0

“ Codé means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as aedend

“ Core Earningsmeans:

(A) GAAP net income (loss) excluding roash equity compensation expense;

(B) excluding any unrealized gains, &ss®r other items that do not affect realized nebiine (regardless

whether such items are included in other comprahemscome or loss, or in net income); and

© adjusted to exclude one-time evemissuant to changes in GAAP and certain nash charges afi

discussions between the Manager and the IndepeBietors and approved by a majority of the Indwjant Directors.

0
(k)
0

“ Exchange Actmeans the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asdet
“ GAAP " means generally accepted accounting principlespplied in the United States.

“ Governing Instruments means, with regard to any entity, the articlesnabiporation and bylaws in the case

corporation, certificate of limited partnership &pplicable) and the partnership agreement in #s® ©f a general or limited partnership,
articles of formation and the operating agreemerthé case of a limited liability company, the trisstrument in the case of a trust, or sin
governing documents, in each case as amended ifr@d time.

(m)

“_Independent Directofsmeans the members of the Board of Directors whonateofficers or employees of 1

Manager or any Person directly or indirectly colitng or controlled by the Manager, and who areeotvise “independentth accordance with ti
Company’s Governing Instruments and, if applicathle,rules of any national securities exchange bictwthe Common Stock is listed.

(n)
(0)
(p)
(@
()

“ Investment Company Atimeans the Investment Company Act of 1940, as dedn

“ Investmentsmeans the investments of the Company.
“ LIBOR” means London Interbank Offered Rate.
“NYSE' means the New York Stock Exchange, Inc.

“ Persorf means any individual, corporation, partnershipntjoienture, limited liability company, estate, t

unincorporated association, any federal, statentyoar municipal government or any bureau, depamtnoe agency thereof and any fiduci
acting in such capacity on behalf of any of thefming.

(s)
(®)

“ REIT" means a “real estate investment trust” as defumeakr the Code.

“ Securities A¢tmeans the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.




(u) “ Stockholder€quity ” means:

(A) the sum of the net proceeds from esyances of the Compasyéquity securities since inception (alloci
on a pro rata daily basis for such issuances duhi@discal quarter of any such issuance), plus

(B) the Company'’s retained earnings ateghd of such quarter (without taking into accaamt noneash equit
compensation expense incurred in current or preoiogds), less

© any amount that the Company paysdpurchases of its common stock, and less any limeéayains, loss:
or other items that do not affect realized net meo(regardless of whether such items are includedther comprehensi
income or loss, or in net income), as adjustecktude

(D) one-time events pursuant to change&AAP and certain nooash charges after discussions betwee
Manager and the Company’s Independent Directatsapproved by a majority of the Company’s Indegendirectors.

v) “ Subsidiary means any subsidiary of the Company; any partrigréiie general partner of which is the Compar
any subsidiary of the Company; and any limitediligbcompany, the managing member of which is @@mpany or any subsidiary of -
Company.

(w) “ Treasury Reqgulatiorisneans the regulations promulgated under the Grode time to time, as amended.
SECTION 2. APPOINTMENT AND DUTIES OF THEANAGER .
®) The Company hereby appoints the Manager to martegeadsets of the Company subject to the furthemstexn:

conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Mgmehereby agrees to use its commercially reasereffirts to perform each of the duties
forth herein. The appointment of the Manager sbaléxclusive to the Manager except to the extaitthe Manager otherwise agrees, in its
and absolute discretion, and except to the exitexttthe Manager elects, pursuant to the termsioftreement, to cause the duties of the Mar
hereunder to be provided by third parties.

(b) The Manager, in its capacity as nganaf the assets and the daydtny operations of the Company, at all times
be subject to the supervision of the ComparBoard of Directors and will have only such fuans and authority as the Company may deleg
it including, without limitation, the functions araithority identified herein and delegated to thenisiger hereby. The Manager will be respon
for the day-today operations of the Company and will perform ¢ause to be performed) such services and activitlesing to the assets ¢
operations of the Company as may be appropriatkiding, without limitation:

® say as the Company’ consultant with respect to the periodic reviewtha investment criteria a
parameters for the Investments, borrowings andatipeis, any maodifications to which shall be appblesg a majority of the Independ:
Directors (such policy guidelines as initially apped and attached hereto_as Exhibita#s the same may be modified with such appr
the “ Guidelines), and other policies for approval by the Boarddifectors;

(ii) investigating, analyzing and selecting possiblegtment opportunities and acquiring, financingairenhg
selling, restructuring, or disposing of Investmerdssistent with the Guidelines;

(i) with respect to prospective purchases, sales, dramges of Investments, conducting negotiationsedral
of the Company, with sellers and purchasers aridriggpective agents, representatives and investoagrkers;




(iv)  negotiating and entering into, on behalf of the @any, credit finance agreements, repurchase agrée
securitizations, commercial paper, CDOs, interatd swaps, warehouse facilities and all other agee¢s and instruments required
the Company to conduct its business;

(v) engagand supervising, on behalf of the Company andleaCompanys expense, independent contrac
which provide investment banking, mortgage brokeragcurities brokerage, other financial servidas, diligence services, underwrit
review services, and all other services as maggeired relating to the Investments;

(vi) goinating and managing operations of any joint uenbr coinvestment interests held by the Comg.
and conducting all matters with the joint venturea-investment partners;

(vii) providing executive and administrative personnéfice space and office services required in rend
services to the Company;

(viii) adnistering the day-talay operations of the Company and performing apersising the performance
such other administrative functions necessaryémtlanagement of the Company as may be agreed ypgbe Manager and the Boarc
Directors, including, without limitation, the cotiéon of revenues and the payment of the Compamgbts and obligations ¢
maintenance of appropriate computer services tompersuch administrative functions;

(ix) communicating on behalf of the Company with thededd of any equity or debt securities of the Corg
as required to satisfy the reporting and other irequents of any governmental bodies or agenciesading markets and to maint
effective relations with such holders;

x) caating the Company in connection with policy demsi to be made by the Board of Directors;

(xi) evaluating and recommending to the Board of Dimsctoedging strategies and engaging in hec
activities on behalf of the Company, consistenhvgitich strategies, as so modified from time to timi¢h the Companyg status as
REIT, and with the Guidelines;

(xii) counseling the Company regarding the maintenands efatus as a REIT and monitoring compliancé
the various REIT qualification tests and other sudet out in the Code and Treasury Regulation®tineler and using commerci:
reasonable efforts to cause the Company to qualiftaxation as a REIT;

(xiii)  counseling the Company regarding the maintenands ekemption from the Investment Company Act
monitoring compliance with the requirements for mtaining an exemption from that the Investment Camnyp Act and usin
commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Compamaintain such exclusion from the status asngastment company under
Investment Company Act;

(xiv) assisting the Company in developing criteria faeapurchase commitments that are specificallgridl tc
the Companyg investment objectives and making available toGbmpany its knowledge and experience with resfgegtortgage loan
real estate, real estate-related securities, otlaestate-related assets and non-real estatedelssets;

(xv) fushing reports and statistical and economic resdartie Company regarding the Compangttivitie:
and services performed for the Company by the Manag




(xvi) monitoring the operating performance of the Invesita and providing periodic reports with respeeték
to the Board of Directors, including comparativéonmation with respect to such operating perforneaaad budgeted or projec
operating results;

(xvii) invésg and re-investing any moneys and securitieshef Gompany (including investing in shoerr
Investments pending investment in other Investmgragment of fees, costs and expenses, or payroéudisidends or distributions
stockholders and partners of the Company) and imdvike Company as to its capital structure andtalgising;

(xviii) causing the Company to retain qualified accountantslegal counsel, as applicable, to assist irldging
appropriate accounting procedures, compliance pdoes and testing systems with respect to finan@pbrting obligations ai
compliance with the provisions of the Code applieab REITs and to conduct quarterly complianceaws with respect thereto;

(xix)  assisting the Company in qualifying to do busiriassl applicable jurisdictions and to obtain andintair
all appropriate licenses;

(xx)  assisting the Company in complying with all regaisitrequirements applicable to the Company in ret
of its business activities, including preparingcausing to be prepared all financial statementsired under applicable regulations
contractual undertakings and all reports and docsné any, required under the Exchange Act amrd36curities Act or by the NYSE;

(xxi)  assisting the Company in taking all necessary astto enable the Company to make required taxg
and reports, including soliciting stockholders fequired information to the extent provided by itevisions of the Code applicable
REITs;

(xxii)  placing, or arranging for the placement of, allevedpursuant to its investment determinations e
Company either directly with the issuer or withraker or dealer (including any affiliated brokerdwaler);

(xxiii) handling and resolving all claims, disputes or ooversies (including all litigation, arbitrationetdemen
or other proceedings or negotiations) in which@wenpany may be involved or to which the Company tmapgubject arising out of t
Company’s day-talay operations (other than with the Manager omaffgiates), subject to such limitations or paraeretas may t
imposed from time to time by the Board of Directors

(xxiv) using commercially reasonable efforts to cause msgm incurred by or on behalf of the Company 1
commercially reasonable or commercially customargl within any budgeted parameters or expense guédeket by the Board
Directors from time to time;

(xxv) representing and making recommendations to the @oynm connection with the purchase and financ
and commitment to purchase and finance, mortgaaesi¢including on a portfolio basis), real estata) estateelated securities, otr
real estate-related assets and non-real estatedassets, and the sale and commitment to séllassets;

(xxvi) advigi the Company with respect to and structuring {mm financing vehicles for the Compasy’
portfolio of assets, and offering and selling séms publicly or privately in connection with asuch structured financing;

(xxvii) performing such other services as may be requi@u time to time for management and other actis
relating to the assets and business of the Companthe Board of Directors shall reasonably reqoesthe Manager shall det
appropriate under the particular circumstances; and




(xxviii)  usirgpmmercially reasonable efforts to cause the Companomply with all applicable laws.

Without limiting the foregoing, the Manager will ghgrm portfolio management services (the “ Porddlanagement Servicés on behalf of th
Company with respect to the Investments. Suchiceswill include, but not be limited to, consugiivith the Company on the purchase and
of, and other investment opportunities in connectidth, the Company portfolio of assets; the collection of informatiand the submission
reports pertaining to the Compasyssets, interest rates and general economictioorsgliperiodic review and evaluation of the perfance of th
Companys portfolio of assets; acting as liaison betweenGompany and banking, mortgage banking, investimamking and other parties w
respect to the purchase, financing and dispositioassets; and other customary functions relategottfolio management. Additionally, 1
Manager will perform monitoring services (the “ Mimming Services’) on behalf of the Company with respect to any loarvising activitie:
provided by third parties. Such Monitoring Sergiogill include, but not be limited to, negotiatisgrvicing agreements; acting as a lia
between the servicers of the assets and the Comparngw of servicersdelinquency, foreclosure and other reports on sassapervising clain
filed under any insurance policies; and enforclmgabligation of any servicer to repurchase assets.

(c) For the period and on the terms and conditionsastt in this Agreement, the Company hereby conigtt, appoin
and authorizes the Manager as its true and lavgehiaand attorney-ifact, in its name, place and stead, to negotiatecige, deliver and en
into such credit finance agreements and arrangena t securities repurchase and reverse repurelgasements and arrangements, broke
agreements, interest rate swap agreements anctwmhagreements, instruments and authorizationits diehalf on such terms and condition
the Manager, acting in its sole and absolute digeredeems necessary or appropriate. This podvattorney is deemed to be coupled witt
interest.

(d) The Manager may enter into agreements with otheiegaincluding its affiliates, for the purposeafgaging one
more parties for and on behalf, and at the sol¢ @od expense, of the Company to provide propedpagement, asset management, lee
development and/or other services to the Compamglu@ing, without limitation, Portfolio ManagemeBervices and Monitoring Servic
pursuant to agreement(s) with terms which are thestomary for agreements regarding the provisioseofices to companies that have a:
similar in type, quality and value to the assetshef Companyprovidedthat (i) any such agreements entered into witHiatis of the Manag
shall be (A) on terms no more favorable to suchia# than would be obtained from a third partyamarm’slength basis and (B) to the ext
the same do not fall within the provisions of thaid&lines, approved by a majority of the Independ®inectors, (ii) with respect to Portfo
Management Services, (A) any such agreements lshalbject to the Compasyprior written approval and (B) the Manager sheathain liabli
for the performance of such Portfolio ManagememviSes, and (iii) with respect to Monitoring Sermg; any such agreements shall be subj
the Company’s prior written approval.

(e) To the extent that the Manager deems necesmaaglvisable, the Manager may, from time to tiprepose to reta
one or more additional entities for the provisioh subadvisory services to the Manager in orderetable the Manager to provide
services to the Company specified by this Agreempravided that any such agreement (i) shall lmm terms an
conditions substantially identical to the termasd conditions of this Agreement or otherwis# adverse to the Company, (ii) shall
result in an increased Base Management Fee anegp to the Company, and (iii) shall be apprdwedhe Independent Directors of
Company.

) The Manager may retain, for and on behalf and atdble cost and expense of the Company, such esra
accountants, legal counsel, appraisers, insureskets, transfer agents, registrars, developevestment banks, financial advisors, due diligs
firms, underwriting review firms, banks and othenders and others as the Manager deems necessagvieable in connection with t
management and operations of the Company. Notaitdghg anything contained herein to the contrdrg,Manager shall have the right to ce
any such services to be rendered by its employeaffilates. The Company shall pay or reimbutse Manager or its affiliates performing s
services for the cost theregiovidedthat such costs and reimbursements are no gréatethose which would be payable to outside prafaat
or consultants engaged to perform such servicesipot to agreements negotiated on an arm’s-leragis.b




(9) The Manager may effect transactions by or throlighaigency of another person with it or its affdmtvhich have ¢
arrangement under which that party or its affikatéll from time to time provide to or procure fitre Manager and/dts affiliates goods, servic
or other benefits (including, but not limited tesearch and advisory services; economic and @laialysis, including valuation and performe
measurement; market analysis, data and quotativites; computer hardware and software incidemtahé above goods and services; cle:
and custodian services and investment related qatlins), the nature of which is such that provisian reasonably be expected to benefi
Company as a whole and may contribute to an impneve in the performance of the Company or the Manayg its affiliates in providin
services to the Company on terms that no direatnesy is made but instead the Manager and/or iltaéds undertake to place business with

party.

(h) In executing portfolio transactions and selectimgkbrs or dealers, the Manager will use its befrisfto seek ¢
behalf of the Company the best overall terms abkdlaln assessing the best overall terms avaifablany transaction, the Manager shall con:
all factors that it deems relevant, including withdimitation the breadth of the market in the séguthe price of the security, the finan
condition and execution capability of the brokedealer, and the reasonableness of the commiskammy, both for the specific transaction anc
a continuing basis. In evaluating the best overlins available, and in selecting the broker aleteto execute a particular transaction,
Manager may also consider whether such brokeraedéurnishes research and other information orices to the Manager.

0] The Manager has no duty or obligation to seek waade competitive bidding for the most favorablenagssion rat
applicable to any particular purchase, sale orratfamsaction, or to select any broker-dealer enltisis of its purported or “postedmmissiol
rate, but will endeavor to be aware of the curtemel of charges of eligible brokeealers and to minimize the expense incurred flcenc
purchases, sales and other transactions to thetexdssistent with the interests and policies ef@ompany. Although the Manager will genet
seek competitive commission rates, it is not regflito pay the lowest commission or commission edeit, provided that such decision is
in good faith to affect the best interests of tlwenpany.

0] As frequently as the Manager may deem necessaagh\dsable, or at the direction of the Board of Dioes, th
Manager shall, at the sole cost and expense oftmepany, prepare, or cause to be prepared, wigleceso any Investment, reports and ¢
information with respect to such Investment as tmayeasonably requested by the Company.

(K) The Manager shall prepare, or cause to be prepaté¢ie sole cost and expense of the Companyedirts, financit
or otherwise, with respect to the Company reasgnaguired by the Board of Directors in order foe tCompany to comply with its Govern
Instruments or any other materials required toileg fwith any governmental body or agency, and Ighedpare, or cause to be preparec
materials and data necessary to complete suchtsegoaat other materials including, without limitatjan annual audit of the Compasyjooks c
account by a nationally recognized independentwattatg firm.

0] The Manager shall prepare regular reports for thar® of Directors to enable the Board of Directiargeview thi
Companys acquisitions, portfolio composition and chardstis, credit quality, performance and compliamgth the Guidelines and polici
approved by the Board of Directors.

(m) Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreeimtm the contrary, except to the extent that thgnmgnt o
additional moneys is proven by the Company to Heeen required as a direct result of the Managacts or omissions which result in the rigt
the Company to terminate this Agreement pursuaettion 15 of this Agreement, the Manager shallbeorequired to expend moneyExces
Funds”) in connection with any expenses that are requinelget paid for or reimbursed by the Company purstmi@ection 9 in excess of t
contained in any applicable Company Account (agihedefined) or otherwise made available by the gamy to be expended by the Man:
hereunder. Failure of the Manager to expend Ex€arsls out-opocket shall not give rise or be a contributingdato the right of the Compa
under Section 13(a) of this Agreement to termirlaite Agreement due to the Manager’s unsatisfagberjormance.




(n) In performing its duties under this Section 2, k@nager shall be entitled to rely reasonably onified experts an
professionals (including, without limitation, aceaants, legal counsel and other service provideirgd by the Manager at the Compagole
cost and expense.

SECTION 3. DEVOTION OF TIME; ADDITIONAL ETIVITIES .

(a) The Manager will provide the Company with a manageieam, including a Chief Executive Officer, fdest,
Chief Investment Officer, a Chief Credit OfficerChief Financial Officer, and other support perginto provide the management services t
provided by the Manager to the Company hereunder,miembers of which team shall devote such of ttiwie to the management of
Company as the Board of Directors reasonably deernessary and appropriate, commensurate with e ¢é activity of the Company fro
time to time.

(b) The Company shall have the bendfithe Manages best judgment and best effort in rendering sesviand, i
furtherance of the foregoing, the Manager shallumatertake activities which, in its reasonable judgt, will substantially and adversely affect
performance of its obligations under this Agreement

(c) Except to the extent set forth in clauses (a) d)dabove, nothing herein shall prevent the Manageany of it
affiliates or any of the officers and employeesny of the foregoing from engaging in other bussessor from rendering services of any kin
any other person or entity, including investmentoinadvisory service to others investing in, aypetof investment, including investments wi
meet the principal investment objectives of the @any. The Manager and its affiliates may investti@ir own accounts and for the accoun
clients in various investments that are senior, passu or junior to, or have interests differentf or adverse to, the investments that are o
by the Company. Furthermore, the Manager serves/astment adviser to other funds and accountsjtaraffiliates manage their own accou
and the Manager and its affiliates may make investrdecisions for their own accounts and for treoants of others, including other funds,
may be different from those that will be made by Manager for the Company. When making investrdentsions where a conflict of inter
may arise, the Manager will endeavor to act inimgfad equitable manner as between the Companytdued clients. The Manager may at cel
times be simultaneously seeking to purchase (Yriseestments from the Company and sell (or puselighe same investment for a similar er
including other funds, for which it serves as assahager now or in the future, or for its clientsaffiliates. All such activities will be condud
in accordance with the Manage#llocation policy (as such policy may be amerfdech time to time). In addition, the Manager atgldffiliate:
may buy securities from or sell securities to tlwenPany to the extent permitted by applicable law.

(d) Managers, partners, officers, employees and agéite Manager or affiliates of the Manager maysexs director
officers, employees, agents, nominees or signatéoiethe Company or any Subsidiary, to the expeninitted by their Governing Instrument:
by any resolutions duly adopted by the Board ofeBtiors pursuant to the CompasiyGoverning Instruments. When executing documer
otherwise acting in such capacities for the Compaugh persons shall use their respective titlésarCompany.

SECTION 4. AGENCY. The Manager shall act as agent of the Company ikingaacquiring, financing and disposing
Investments, disbursing and collecting the Compariyhds, paying the debts and fulfilling the obligas of the Company, supervising
performance of professionals engaged by or on betiathe Company and handling, prosecuting andisgtiany claims of or against t
Company, the Board of Directors, holders of the @any’s securities or the Company’s representativgsoperties.

SECTION 5. BANK ACCOUNTSAL the direction of the Board of Directors, the Mger may establish and maintain one or 1
bank accounts in the name of the Company or angi&ialy (any such account, a “* Company Accdiinand may collect and deposit funds
any such Company Account or Company Accounts, d@sttlicse funds from any such Company Account or GompAccounts, under such tel
and conditions as the Board of Directors may apgrand the Manager shall from time to time renggrapriate accountings of such collecti
and payments to the Board of Directors and, upquoest, to the auditors of the Company or any Sidoryid




SECTION 6. RECORDS; CONFIDENTIALITYThe Manager shall maintain appropriate books opawts and records relating
services performed under this Agreement, and swctkd of account and records shall be accessiblénfpection by representatives of
Company or any Subsidiary at any time during norinainess hours upon reasonable advance notice Mahager shall keep confidential .
and all information obtained in connection with 8exvices rendered under this Agreement and sbatliaclose any such information (or use
same except in furtherance of its duties underAligement) to nonaffiliated third parties excaptith the prior written consent of the Boarc
Directors; (i) to legal counsel, accountants atitkoprofessional advisors; (iii) to appraisemaficing sources and others in the ordinary cotf
the Companys business; (iv) to governmental officials havingigdiction over the Company; (v) in connection hwiny governmental
regulatory filings of the Company or disclosurepoesentations to Company investors; or (vi) asireduby law or legal process to which
Manager or any Person to whom disclosure is pezthitiereunder is a party. The foregoing shall pptyato information which has previou
become publicly available through the actions Beason other than the Manager not resulting fraerManagers violation of this Section 6. T
provisions of this Section 6 shall survive the expbn or earlier termination of this Agreement éoperiod of one (1) year.

SECTION 7. OBLIGATIONS OF MANAGER; RESTETIONS.

(a) The Manager shall require each seller or transfefémvestment assets to the Company to make smiesentatior
and warranties regarding such assets as may, ijudgenent of the Manager, be necessary and appteprin addition, the Manager shall t
such other action as it deems necessary or appteprith regard to the protection of the Investraent

(b) The Manager shall refrain from any action thatitsnsole judgment made in good faith, (i) is nocompliance wit
the Guidelines, (ii) would adversely affect thetissaof the Company as a REIT under the Code 9miuld violate any law, rule or regulation
any governmental body or agency having jurisdictomer the Company or any Subsidiary or that woulternwise not be permitted by -
Companys Governing Instruments. If the Manager is ordéoetdike any such action by the Board of Directtire,Manager shall promptly not
the Board of Directors of the Managejudgment that such action would adversely aech status or violate any such law, rule or regrieot
the Governing Instruments. Notwithstanding theedming, the Manager, its directors, officers, stmi#lers and employees shall not be liab
the Company or any Subsidiary, the Board of Dinetor the Company’s or any Subsidiargtockholders or partners, for any act or omisbiy
the Manager, its directors, officers, stockholderemployees except as provided in Section 11lisfAgreement.

(c) The Board of Directors periodicatgviews the Guidelines and the Compangbrtfolio of Investments but will n
review each proposed investment, except as otherprigvided herein. If a majority of the IndepertdBirectors determine in their perio
review of transactions that a particular transactioes not comply with the Guidelines, then a nigjaf the Independent Directors will consi
what corrective action, if any, can be taken. Mamager shall be permitted to rely upon the dicectf the Secretary of the Company to evid
the approval of the Board of Directors or the Irefegent Directors with respect to a proposed investm

(d) The Company shall not invest in CDOs or any segutituctured or managed by the Manager or anyia#ithereo
unless (i) the Investment is made in accordancé tie Guidelines and (ii) such Investment is appdoin advance by a majority of -
Independent Directors.

(e) The Manager shall at all times dyrine term of this Agreement maintain “errors anussions”insurance covera
and other insurance coverage which is customadigried by property, asset and investment mangmeferming functions similar to those of
Manager under this Agreement with respect to asdetiar to the assets of the Company, in an amainich is comparable to that custome
maintained by other managers or servicers of siragaets.




SECTION 8. COMPENSATION

(a) During the Term and any Renewal Term (each as e@flselow), the Company shall pay the Manager thee
Management Fee quarterly in arrears commencing tiiighquarter in which this Agreement was executeith(such initial payment proatec
based on the number of days during such quartethtsaAgreement was in effecton or before August 31, 2014, the Manager shalltpaye
Company a ongéime fee reduction of $23,782,659.98, which equalzase management fee equal to 0.75% per annucojated and paid (
cash) quarterly in arrears, of the Stockholderslifycas if it were in effect from January 1, 20h2augh November 27, 2012.

(b) The Manager shall compute each installment of taseBVlanagement Fee within thirty (30) days afterghd of th
fiscal quarter with respect to which such instaliinis payable. A copy of the computations maddeh®yManager to calculate such installn
shall thereafter, for informational purposes ontg dubject in any event to Section 13(a) of thise&gnent, promptly be delivered to the Boar
Directors and, upon such delivery, payment of snstallment of the Base Management Fee shown thetell be due and payable no later
the date which is five (5) business days afterdéite of delivery to the Board of Directors of seomputations.

(c) The Base Management Fee is subject to adjustmestignt to and in accordance with the provisionSextion 13(e
of this Agreement.

SECTION 9. EXPENSES OF THE COMPANYhe Company shall pay all of its expenses and skafiburse the Manager
documented expenses of the Manager incurred dpehslf (collectively, the “ Expensé$ excepting those expenses that are specificall
responsibility of the Manager as set forth herelxpenses include all costs and expenses whictexgeessly designated elsewhere in
Agreement as the Company'’s, together with the falig:

(a) expenses in connection with the issuance and horeacosts incident to the acquisition, dispositand financing ¢
Investments;

(b) costs of legal, tax, accounting, consulting, anditadministrative and other similar services readdor the Compar
by providers retained by the Manager or, if prodidsy the Manages employees, in amounts which are no greater thagsetwhich would k
payable to outside professionals or consultantagedto perform such services pursuant to agresmegbtiated on an arm’s-length basis;

(c) the compensation of the Independginéctors and expenses of the Companglirectors and the cost of liabil
insurance to indemnify the Company’s directors effiders;

(d) costs associated with the establishment and maintenof any credit facilities or other indebtednefsthe Compan
(including commitment fees, accounting fees, ldges, closing and other similar costs) or any sgesiofferings of the Company;

(e) expenses connected with communications to holdérsecurities of the Company or its Subsidiaries atik|
bookkeeping and clerical work necessary in maimgimelations with holders of such securities am&amplying with the continuous report
and other requirements of governmental bodies eneigs, including, without limitation, all costs mfeparing and filing required reports with
Securities and Exchange Commission, the costs maygbthe Company to any transfer agent and regigtrconnection with the listing and
trading of the Compang’stock on any exchange, the fees payable by thep@uay to any such exchange in connection withistg, costs ¢
preparing, printing and mailing the Compasngnnual report to its stockholders and proxy nmedtewith respect to any meeting of the stockha
of the Company;

) costs associated with any computer software orvenel electronic equipment or purchased informatémhnolog
services from third party vendors that is usedlgdte the Company;

(9) expenses incurred by managers,afficemployees and agents of the Manager for tmavéie Companyg behalf an
other out-ofpocket expenses incurred by managers, officers)oyegs and agents of the Manager in connection thighpurchase, financir
refinancing, sale or other disposition of an Inwemtt or establishment and maintenance of any cfadilities and other indebtedness or
securities offerings of the Company;
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(h) costs and expenses incurred with respect to marf@imation systems and publications, researchipatibns an
materials, and settlement, clearing and custodies find expenses;

0] compensation and expenses of thafamy’s custodian and transfer agent, if any;

0] the costs of maintaining compliance with all fediesiate and local rules and regulations or anrotiegulator
agency;

(K) all taxes and license fees;

0] all insurance costs incurred in gection with the operation of the Compasusiness except for the costs attribu

to the insurance that the Manager elects to carritdelf and its employees;

(m) costs and expenses incurred in contracting witld tharties, including affiliates of the Manager; fbe servicing ar
special servicing of assets of the Company;

(n) all other costs and expenses relatmghe Companyg business and investment operations, includinghour
limitation, the costs and expenses of acquiringniag, protecting, maintaining, developing and d&pg of Investments, including apprai
reporting, audit and legal fees;

(0) expenses relating to any office(s) or office faig, including but not limited to disaster backwgovery sites ar
facilities, maintained for the Company or Investtseseparate from the office or offices of the Masrag

(9) expenses connected with the payments of interestiedds or distributions in cash or any other faathorized ¢
caused to be made by the Board of Directors tonoaarount of the holders of securities of the Campar its Subsidiaries, including, witht
limitation, in connection with any dividend reinve®nt plan;

(@ any judgment or settlement of pending or threatepredeedings (whether civil, criminal or otherwisgainst th
Company or any Subsidiary, or against any trustzector or officer of the Company or of any Sulesid in his capacity as such for which
Company or any Subsidiary is required to indemasifgh trustee, director or officer by any court ovgrnmental agency; and

n all other expenses actually incurred by the Manageich are reasonably necessary for the performdaycéhe
Manager of its duties and functions under this A&grent.

In addition, the Company will be required to pag tbompanys pro rata portion of rent, telephone, utilitiefjoce furniture, equipmer
machinery and other office, internal and overhegdenses of the Manager and its affiliates requicedthe Companys operations. The
expenses will be allocated between the Managetten@€ompany based on the ratio of the Compapyoportion of gross assets compared |
remaining gross assets managed by the Manager@sdated at each quarter end. The Manager andmpany will modify this allocatic
methodology, subject to the Board of Directompproval if the allocation becomes inequitable. (ifethe Company becomes highly levera
compared to the Manager’s other funds and accaunts)

The Manager may, at its option, elect not to se@klbursement for certain expenses during a givamteply period, which determinati
shall not be deemed to construe a waiver of reisgruent for similar expenses in future periodscepx as noted above, the Manage
responsible for all costs incident to the perforoganf its duties under this Agreement, includinghpensation of the Managsrexecutives ar
employees and other related expenses and overbeaepf those expenses that are specifically theonsibility of the Manager as set fc
herein).
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The Manager shall pay all past and future expettiegsthe Company and the Audit Committee of thenBany incur to: (1) evaluate 1
Company’s accounting policy related to the appiwatof generally accepted accounting principleshi® Company’s nowgency residentii
mortgage-backed securities portfolio (the “Evaloiait); (2) restate the Comparsyfinancial statements for the period covering 2008ugh 201
as a result of the Evaluation (the “Restatememtiiy (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholdératiee demands arising from the Evalua
and/or the Restatement (the “Investigation”); pdexd, however, that Managsrbbligation to pay expenses under this paragraphies only t
expenses not paid by the Company’s insurers ut@ge€bmpanys insurance policies, and the Company agrees supull valid and collectib
insurance claims that it has. Expenses underptiiagraph shall include, without limitation, Excésslit Fees and fees and costs incurred
respect to outside counsel and consultants endagéte Company and/or the Audit Committee of thenPany for the Evaluation, Restaten
and the Investigation. By entering into this paapl, the Manager and the Company do not intendake, nor shall they be deemed to |
made (i) any admission of liability or concessidraay kind, such admission and/or concessions bexpgessly denied or (ii) any settlemen
waiver of any rights, remedies or claims that tleenany may have against the Manager. Nothing swdan this Agreement shall be constr
as an admission by the Manager or by the Compaiy e merit or lack of merit of any claim or safjgent claim or the settlement or waive
any claim or subsequent claim that the Company haase against the Manager. Except in an actiondmtwhe Manager and the Compar
enforce this paragraph, this paragraph shall natskeel as evidence in any court or other disputdusn proceeding to create, prove, or inter
any rights, duties or obligations of the Managethe Company. As used herein, the term “ExcesstAwgks”’means the amount by which
audit fees incurred by the Company in connectiah tie Evaluation, the Restatement and the Invasig exceed $542,400.

The provisions of this Section 9 shall survive ghiration or earlier termination of this Agreeméatthe extent such expenses t
previously been incurred or are incurred in conpeatvith such expiration or termination.

SECTION 10. CALCULATIONS OF EXPENSES

The Manager shall prepare a statement documetiiggxpenses of the Company and the Expenses idduyrthe Manager on behalf
the Company during each fiscal quarter, and sheliver such statement to the Company within 30 daftsr the end of each fisi
quarter. Expenses incurred by the Manager on behdahe Company shall be reimbursed by the Companthe Manager on the fifth (8)
business day immediately following the date of wily of such statemenprovided, however, that such reimbursements may be offgehé
Manager against amounts due to the Company. Toeispyns of this Section 10 shall survive the expin or earlier termination of tt
Agreement.

SECTION 11. LIMITS OF MANAGER RESPONSIBILY; INDEMNIFICATION .

(a) The Manager assumes no responsibility under thieéxgent other than to render the services calledirider thi
Agreement in good faith and shall not be respoasibt any action of the Board of Directors in feliag or declining to follow any advice
recommendations of the Manager, including as st fo Section 7(b) of this Agreement. The Managisr officers, directors, employees, .
Person controlling or controlled by the Manager angt Person providing suddvisory services to the Manager and the officgirgctors an
employees of the Manager, its officers, directersployees and any such Person will not be liabteédCompany or any Subsidiary, to the Bi
of Directors, or the Company’s or any Subsidiargtockholders or partners for any acts or omission any such Person, pursuant to ¢
accordance with this Agreement, except by reasaactd constituting bad faith, willful misconductogs negligence or reckless disregard o
Managers duties under this Agreement. The Company stwalhe full extent lawful, reimburse, indemnify ahdld the Manager, its office
stockholders, directors, employees, any Persorrabng or controlled by the Manager and any Perpooviding subadvisory services to t
Manager, together with the managers, officersctiirs and employees of the Manager, its officemmivers, directors, employees, and any
Person (each a * Manager Indemnified P&jtyharmless of and from any and all expenses, loskgaages, liabilities, demands, charges
claims of any nature whatsoever (including attoghéges) in respect of or arising from any acts orssioins of such Manager Indemnified P
made in good faith in the performance of the Managduties under this Agreement and not constigusach Manager Indemnified Pagybac
faith, willful misconduct, gross negligence or rksds disregard of the Manager’s duties under tigiedment.
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(b) The Manager shall, to the full extent lawful, reimée, indemnify and hold the Company (or any Suésiyl its
stockholders, directors, officers and employeesemuth other Person, if any, controlling the Comp@agh, a “ Company Indemnified Pattgnc
together with a Manager Indemnified Party, the ddmnite€’), harmless of and from any and all expenses, logsesages, liabilities, deman
charges and claims of any nature whatsoever (imguattorneys’ fees) in respect of or arising frére Manages bad faith, willful misconduc
gross negligence or reckless disregard of its dutigler this Agreement.

(c) The Indemnitee will promptly notiflye party against whom indemnity is claimed (thedemnitor”) of any claim fo
which it seeks indemnification; provided, howewuigt the failure to so notify the Indemnitor wilbtrelieve the Indemnitor from any liabil
which it may have hereunder, except to the extect ailure actually prejudices the Indemnitor.eThdemnitor shall have the right to assum
defense and settlement of such claim; provided,ttfe@Indemnitor notifies the Indemnitee of itsatiilen to assume such defense and settle
within thirty (30) days after the Indemnitee giwbe Indemnitor notice of the claim. In such céabke, Indemnitee will not settle or compron
such claim, and the Indemnitor will not be liabde &ny such settlement made without its prior wnittonsent. If the Indemnitor is entitled to,
does, assume such defense by delivering the afot@med notice to the Indemnitee, the Indemnite @i have the right to approve t
Indemnitors counsel (which approval will not be unreasonakithheld, delayed or conditioned), (ii) be oblighten cooperate in furnishi
evidence and testimony and in any other mannerhictwthe Indemnitor may reasonably request anyl l{@i entitled to participate in (but |
control) the defense of any such action, with s @ounsel and at its own expense.

SECTION 12. NO JOINT VENTURENOothing in this Agreement shall be construed to enfie Company and the Mang
partners or joint venturers or impose any liabiisssuch on either of them.
SECTION 13. TERM:; TERMINATION
(a) Until this Agreement is terminated in accordancthis terms, this Agreement shall be in effecilultigust 7, 201

(the “ Term”) and shall be automatically renewed for a tworyteam each anniversary date thereafter (a “ Reh@&aman ) unless at least two-
thirds of the Independent Directors or the holddra majority of the outstanding shares of commtogls(other than those shares held by An
or its affiliates) elects not to renew this Agreema their sole discretion and for any or no reasti the Company elects not to renew
Agreement at the expiration of the Term or any Rexlélerm as set forth above, the Company shalvdelio the Manager prior written not
(the “ Termination Notice) of the Companys intention not to renew this Agreement based uperterms set forth in this Section 13(a) pric
the expiration of the then existing term. If thentpany so elects not to renew this Agreement, tiragainy shall designate the date, not less
one hundred eighty (180) days from the date ofribice, on which the Manager shall cease to prosg&t®ices under this Agreement and
Agreement shall terminate on such date.

(b) In the event that this Agreement igrminated in accordance with the provisiook Section 13
(a) of this Agreement, the Company shal o the Manager, on the date on whichhst@mination i
effective, a termination fee (the “ TerminatioFe€ ) equal to two (2) times the sum of therage annual Base Management
calculated as of the end of the most recently meted fiscal quarter prior to the date of terrtiora The obligation of the Company to pay
Termination Fee shall survive the termination df #hgreement.

(c) No later than one hundred eighty (180) days piothe anniversary date of this Agreement of any yleaing the
Term or Renewal Term, the Manager may deliver amithotice to the Company informing it of the Managiéntention to decline to renew t
Agreement, whereupon this Agreement shall not hewed and extended and this Agreement shall tetengféective on the anniversary dat:
this Agreement next following the delivery of sumbtice. The Company is not required to pay toMamager the Termination Fee if the Man:
terminates this Agreement pursuant to this SedRgin).
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(d) If this Agreement is terminated pursuant to Sectl® such termination shall be without any furttiability or
obligation of either party to the other, exceppeasvided in Sections 6, 9, 10, 13(b), 15(b), andflhis Agreement. In addition, Sections 11
21 of this Agreement shall survive terminationtoétAgreement.

SECTION 14. ASSIGNMENT

(a) Except as set forth in Section 14bthis Agreement, this Agreement shall termiretéomatically in the event of
assignment, in whole or in part, by the Managelessmsuch assignment is consented to in writinghbyCompany with the consent of a majc
of the Independent Directorgrovided, however, that no such consent shall be requirékdd case of an assignment by the Manager tofitinta
of Annaly. Any such permitted assignment shalldbihe assignee under this Agreement in the sam&enas the Manager is bound, and
Manager shall be liable to the Company for all exror omissions of the assignee under any suclyramsint. In addition, the assignee <
execute and deliver to the Company a counterpatiiefAgreement naming such assignee as Manades. Agreement shall not be assignet
the Company without the prior written consent of tilanager, except in the case of assignment byCtimapany to another REIT or otl
organization which is a successor (by merger, dafetmn, purchase of assets, or similar transatio the Company, in which case s
successor organization shall be bound under thieekgent and by the terms of such assignment isahee manner as the Company is bt
under this Agreement.

(b) Notwithstanding any provision of thigreement, the Manager may subcontract and asaignor all of it
responsibilities under Sections 2(b), 2(c) and 2(fthis Agreement to any of its affiliates in amtance with the terms of this Agreen
applicable to any such subcontract or assignmert,the Company hereby consents to any such assigremel subcontracting. In additi
provided that the Manager provides prior writtetigeto the Company for informational purposes pnlything contained in this Agreement s
preclude any pledge, hypothecation or other trarsffany amounts payable to the Manager underAgreement. In addition, the Manager r
assign this Agreement to any of its affiliates withthe Company’s approval if such assignment am¢sequire the Comparg/approval und
the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended.

SECTION 15. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE

(a) The Company may terminate this Agreet effective upon thirty (30) dayptior written notice of termination fro
the Company to the Manager, without payment of &egmination Fee, if (i) the Manager, its agentsterassignees materially breaches
provision of this Agreement and such breach staitinue for a period of thirty (30) days after weit notice thereof specifying such breach
requesting that the same be remedied in such 3@ekégd (or fortyfive (45) days after written notice of such bre#dhe Manager takes steps
cure such breach within thirty (30) days of thetteri notice), (ii) the Manager engages in any dcfraud, misappropriation of funds,
embezzlement against the Company, (iii) there is\emt of any gross negligence on the part of thedder in the performance of its duties u
this Agreement, (iv) there is a commencement of @iegeeding relating to the ManageBankruptcy or insolvency, (v) there is a dissoluidt
the Manager, (vi) there is a Change of Contro(voy the Manager is convicted of (including a plefanolo contendere) a felony.

(b) The Manager may terminate this Agreet effective upon sixty (60) daygtior written notice of termination to t
Company in the event that the Company shall defaute performance or observance of any mategiaht condition or covenant containet
this Agreement and such default shall continueafgeriod of thirty (30) days after written notideteof specifying such default and reque
that the same be remedied in suchda@-period. The Company is required to pay toMamager the Termination Fee if the terminationtog
Agreement is made pursuant to this Section 15(b).
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(c) The Manager may terminate this Agreement, withaynpent of any Termination Fee, in the event the Gam
becomes regulated as an “investment compamger the Investment Company Act, with such tertinadeemed to have occurred immedie
prior to such event.

SECTION 16. ACTION UPON TERMINATION From and after the effective date of terminatiortto$§ Agreement, pursuant
Sections 13 or 15 of this Agreement, the Managel slot be entitled to compensation for furthewvgms under this Agreement, but shall be
all compensation accruing to the date of termimatad, if terminated pursuant to Section 13(a) ectiSn 15(b), the applicable Terminat
Fee. Upon such termination, the Manager shalhyath:

@ after deducting any accrued compensation and regelment for its expenses to which it is then exjtpa
over to the Company or a Subsidiary all money ct#le and held for the account of the Company owlasifliary pursuant to tf
Agreement;

(i) deliver to the Board of Directors a full accountimgluding a statement showing all payments catigdy i

and a statement of all money held by it, coverimg period following the date of the last accounfungnished to the Board of Directt
with respect to the Company or a Subsidiary; and

(iii) deliver to the Board of Directors all property atmtuments of the Company or any Subsidiary thethé
custody of the Manager.

SECTION 17. RELEASE OF MONEY OR OTHER PROGHE UPON WRITTEN REQUEST The Manager agrees that |
money or other property of the Company or Subsydi@ld by the Manager under this Agreement shaliddd by the Manager as custodian fol
Company or Subsidiary, and the Managegcords shall be appropriately marked clearlefi@ct the ownership of such money or other pry
by the Company or such Subsidiary. Upon the rédsipthe Manager of a written request signed byl duthorized officer of the Compa
requesting the Manager to release to the CompaaypySubsidiary any money or other property thdd bg the Manager for the account of
Company or any Subsidiary under this Agreement,Miaaager shall release such money or other propertiie Company or any Subsidi
within a reasonable period of time, but in no eviatér than thirty (30) days following such requeShe Manager shall not be liable to
Company, any Subsidiary, the Independent Directorshe Company’s or a Subsidiasystockholders or partners for any acts perfornm
omissions to act by the Company or any Subsidiargonnection with the money or other property redelto the Company or any Subsidiar
accordance with the second sentence of this Set#iorThe Company and any Subsidiary shall indeythié Manager and its officers, direct
employees, managers, officers and employees agaigsind all expenses, losses, damages, liahilitesaands, charges and claims of any n
whatsoever, which arise in connection with the Mpams release of such money or other property to thegamy or any Subsidiary in accorda
with the terms of this Section 17. Indemnificatiparsuant to this provision shall be in additionatoy right of the Manager to indemnificat
under Section 11 of this Agreement.

SECTION 18. NOTICES Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agremmall notices, requests, demands and
communications required or permitted under thise&gnent shall be in writing and shall be deemedai@tbeen duly given, made and rece
when delivered against receipt or upon actual ptadi(i) personal delivery, (ii) delivery by re@itle overnight courier, (iii) delivery by facsinm
transmission with telephonic confirmation or (ilidery by registered or certified mail, postagepaid, return receipt requested, addressed
forth below:

(a) If to the Company:

Chimera Investment Corporation
1211 Avenue of the Americas
Suite 2902

New York, New York 10036
Attention: Chief Executive Officer
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(b) If to the Manager:

Fixed Income Discount Advisory Gueny
1211 Avenue of the Americas

Suite 2902

New York, New York 10036

Attention: Chief Legal Officer

Either party may alter the address to which comgations or copies are to be sent by giving notfceuch change of address in conformity \
the provisions of this Section 18 for the givingnotice.

SECTION 19. BINDING NATURE OF AGREEMENT; SSCESSORS AND ASSIGNSThis Agreement shall be binding uf
and inure to the benefit of the parties heretothpd respective heirs, personal representativexessors and permitted assigns as provided |
Agreement.

SECTION 20. ENTIRE AGREEMENTThis Agreement contains the entire agreement adérstanding among the parties he
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreetnand supersedes all prior and contemporaneoeagnts, understandings, inducement:
conditions, express or implied, oral or writtenaofy nature whatsoever with respect to the subjatter of this Agreement. The express tern
this Agreement control and supersede any cours@ediormance and/or usage of the trade inconsistétit any of the terms of tr
Agreement. This Agreement may not be modifiedmeded other than by an agreement in writing sidneithe parties hereto.

SECTION 21. GOVERNING LAWTHIS AGREEMENT AND THE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF TH PARTIES UNDEF
THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUEBND INTERPRETED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAW OF TH
STATE OF NEW YORK WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICTS OF IMX PRINCIPLES TO THE CONTRARY (BUT WITH REFERENCE *
SECTION 5-1401 OF THE NEW YORK GENERAL OBLIGATIONAW, WHICH BY ITS TERMS APPLIES TO THIS AGREEMENT).

SECTION 22. NO WAIVER; CUMULATIVE REMEDIES No failure to exercise and no delay in exercisioig,the part of ar
party hereto, any right, remedy, power or priviléggeunder shall operate as a waiver thereof; malf any single or partial exercise of any ri
remedy, power or privilege hereunder preclude atheroor further exercise thereof or the exerciseay other right, remedy, power
privilege. The rights, remedies, powers and pEpdls herein provided are cumulative and not exausf any rights, remedies, powers
privileges provided by law. No waiver of any praiein hereto shall be effective unless it is in Wgtand is signed by the party asserted to
granted such waiver.

SECTION 23. HEADINGS The headings of the sections of this Agreement teen inserted for convenience of reference
and shall not be deemed part of this Agreement.

SECTION 24. COUNTERPARTSThis Agreement may be executed in any number oftesparts, each of which shall be dee
to be an original as against any party whose digeappears thereon, and all of which shall togeatbestitute one and the same instrument.
Agreement shall become binding when one or morateoparts of this Agreement, individually or takegether, shall bear the signatures of ¢
the parties reflected hereon as the signatories.

SECTION 25. SEVERABILITY. Any provision of this Agreement that is prohibitedunenforceable in any jurisdiction shall, a
such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extentsoth prohibition or unenforceability without inwdditing the remaining provisions hereof, and
such prohibition or unenforceability in any juristion shall not invalidate or render unenforceahleh provision in any other jurisdiction.
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SECTION 26. GENDERWords used herein regardless of the number andegepecifically used, shall be deemed and cons
to include any other number, singular or pluratj any other gender, masculine, feminine or neatethe context requires.

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have exetthtiss Agreement as of the date first written above
CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
By: /s/ Matthew Lambias

Name:Matthew Lambias:
Title: Chief Executive Officer and Preside

FIXED INCOME DISCOUNT ADVISORY
COMPANY

By: /s/ Glenn A. Votel
Name:Glenn A. Votek
Title: Chief Financial Office




Exhibit A

No investment shall be made that would cause timep2ay to fail to qualify as a REIT for federal imee tax purpose:

No investment shall be made that would cause thep@ay to be regulated as an investment companyr tinelénvestment Compar
Act;

With the exception of real estate and housingsingle industry shall represent greater than 20%ebsecurities or aggregate risk
exposure in the Compa’s portfolio; anc

Investments in non-rated or deeply subordinatese&Backed Securities or other securities thamanequalifying assets for purposes of
the 75% REIT asset test will be limited to an ammot to exceed 50% of the Comp’s stockholder’ equity.



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Matthew Lambiase, certify that:
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report does aotain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated &irzustatements, and other financial informatiotiuded in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer ainare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within thosentities, particularly during the period in whidtist report is being prepare

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamee with generally accepted accounting princjj

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgihort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controtsprocedures, as of the end of the period covsrekis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thratcurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; 8

The registrant’s other certifying officer ahnldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the rtegig’s ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifioéatn the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 11, 201

[s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambiasi

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipatExtive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Rob Colligan, certify that:
I have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

Based on my knowledge, this report does aotain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this repor

Based on my knowledge, the consolidated &irzustatements, and other financial informatiotiuded in this report, fairly present in all
material respects the financial condition, resoftsperations and cash flows of the registrantfaara for, the periods presented in this
report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer ainare responsible for establishing and maintaimlisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))%nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act Rules
13e-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutas designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preggh

b. Designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atamee with generally accepted accounting princjj

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgihort our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controtsprocedures, as of the end of the period covsrekis report based on such
evaluation; ant

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thratcurred during the registrast’
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fotigbal quarter in the case of an annual repod llas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; 8

The registrant’s other certifying officer ahnldave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitae@mmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contralerdinancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the rtegig’s ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvearmagement or other employees who have a signifioéatn the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: August 11, 201-

[s/ _Rob Colligan

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Offige



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June 30,
2014 to be filed with Securities and Exchange Caossian on or about the date hereof (the “ReportYdtthew Lambiase , President, and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, certify, pursuamBection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2A@2|).S.C. Section 1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods caveyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deeméxe tiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeof 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
August 11, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350

In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended June 30,
2014 to be filed with Securities and Exchange Caossian on or about the date hereof (the “ReportRdb Colligan , Chief Financial Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to Section 906 ef$larbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. SectiorD18%&t:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSetction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods caveyethe Repor

It is not intended that this statement be deeméxe tiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeof 1934.

[s/ Rob Colligar

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
August 11, 201



